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Vision Statement

Built on strong foundations that embrace our rich History and natural environment, our
region will be a place of progressions and possibility. We are a community that is happy,
healthy and harmonious - we are empowered, we are respectful and we are proud.

Our Mission

We will lead, advocate, partner and provide efficient services and opportunities for
growth and the wellbeing of our community, environment and economy.

Our Values

Council values our residents and community and will be responsive to their needs. In
pursuing our objectives, we believe in, and are committed to, the following values:

Community engagement - We will ensure that our communities are consulted,
listened to and informed.

Leadership - We will be at the centre of our community and by actively engaging our
community we will form the collective view on strategic issues and will then express
our views through strong advocacy and action.

Fairness - We will value and embrace the diversity of our community and ensure
that all people are treated equally.

Accountability- We will be transparent and efficient in our activities and we will
always value feedback.

Trust - We will act with integrity and earn the community’s trust by being a reliable
partner in delivering services, projects and providing facilities.
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1 Procedural Matters

1.1 Welcome

Mayor, Councillor Les McPhee assumed the chair and declared the meeting open at
2:00 pm

1.2 Acknowledgement Of Country

“Swan Hill Rural City Council acknowledges the traditional custodians of the land on
which we meet, and pays its respects to their elders, past and present.”

1.3 Prayer

Cr Moar read the prayer.

We beseech you Lord, that we may be granted wisdom, understanding and
sincerity of purpose, in the decisions we are called on to make for the welfare
of the people of the Rural City of Swan Hill.

1.4 Apologies / Leaves of Absence
Nil

1.5 Directors / Officers Present

Scott Barber, Chief Executive Officer

Bruce Myers, Director of Community and Cultural Services
Bhan Pratap, Director of Corporate Services

Leah Johnston, Director of Infrastructure

Kate Jewell, Development Manager

Dennis Hovenden, Economic Development Manager
Grant Jones, Development Officer Facilities

Helen Morris, Organisational Development Manager
Sharon Lindsay, Executive Assistant

1.6 Confirmation of Minutes

1.6.1 Confirmation of Minutes

Recommendation/s

That the minutes of the Scheduled Meeting held 19 September 2023 be
confirmed.
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CM 2023/62 Motion

MOVED Cr Jeffery

That the minutes of the Scheduled Meeting held 19 September 2023 be
confirmed.

SECONDED Cr King

The Motion was put and CARRIED 7 /0

1.7 Disclosures of Conflict of Interest
Nil.

1.8 Joint Letters and Reading of Petitions
Nil.

1.9 Public Questions Time

CM 2023/63 MOTION

MOVED Cr Jeffery

That standing orders be suspended at 2.02pm.
SECONDED Cr Moar

The Motion was put and CARRIED 7/ 0

QUESTION 1: Alison Black

Robinvale Skate Park: When will the landscaping including lawn, trees, shade
structures, toilets and drinking fountains be completed and the skate park opened to
the public?

Response:

Council is currently undertaking activities to support the completion of the skate park
in Robinvale. This includes the construction of a new path from Robin Street to the
skate park, landscaping treatment around the skate park (within 5m) and signage.
These works are expected to be completed early November.

A dedicated shade structure for the skate park is planned to be installed by
December, to be finalised with the supplier at the end of this week.

Further landscaping works and shade will be incorporated into this precinct, with the
delivery of the playground early 2024.
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As per Council's Major Project Plan, toilet facilities for Centenary Park will be
installed in 2025, as per agreed playground precinct masterplan.

CM 2023/64 MOTION
MOVED Cr Jeffery
That standing orders be suspended at 2:03 pm.

SECONDED Cr Moar

The Motion was put and CARRIED 7 /0

1.10 Open Forum
Nil.
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2 Officer Reports for Decision

21 Aged Care Transition

Directorate: Community and Cultural Services
File Number: 20-22-20
Purpose: For Decision

Council Plan Strategy Addressed

3. Harmony - We will be a welcoming community for all, recognised for our maturity
and respect for each other.

3.1 Communities that are safe, welcoming and inclusive

3.1.4 Our elderly and vulnerable are cared for

4. Leadership - We will ensure accountable leadership, advocacy and transparent
decision making.

4.2 Transparent communication and engagement

4.2.1 Effective and authentic engagement with our community

4. Leadership - We will ensure accountable leadership, advocacy and transparent
decision making.

4.3 Bold leadership, strong partnerships and effective advocacy

4.3.2 Strong relationship with State and Federal governments to influence advocacy
and funding opportunities

Current Strategic documents

Council Plan
10 Year Financial Plan

Declarations of Interest:

Council Officers affirm that no general or material conflicts need to be declared in
relation to the matter of this report.

Summary

This report provides Council with an update on the next steps and process involved
with transitioning for the delivery of community-based aged care services. A
confirmation is also sought on the transition target date, to allow these next steps to
proceed.

Discussion

At the June 2023 Council Meeting, it was resolved that Council:
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1. Determine through an in-principle decision to conduct an orderly transition
from community-based aged care service delivery by 30 June 2024.

e To seek to formalise at least one appropriate provider through negotiation with
the Commonwealth and agree on a date of transition to ensure all existing
clients are properly transitioned to the new service provider.

e Communicate with affected staff and clients during this negotiation period.

e Provide a report on the outcomes of the negotiation with the formal transition
date, to confirm the in-principle decision.

e Determine what other roles Council may play in supporting elderly residents.

Communication with affected staff, clients, stakeholders and the wider community
was undertaken immediately, informing everyone of the in-principle decision.

Over the next two months, officers contacted the Commonwealth Department of
Social Services (DSS) seeking advice on the requirements from the funding body
and contract holder. Contact was also made with service providers identified in the
research project undertaken in early 2023. Further communication with affected staff
has also been planned or undertaken.

The next key stage is to provide the DSS with Council’s preferences for service
providers in this region; those who are demonstrating the capacity and willingness to
expand their services to the clients currently serviced by Council.

It is anticipated that some of the funded services may remain under review following
this notification to the DSS; for example, Council is acutely aware of the community
satisfaction with the Meals on Wheels service model and elements of Social Support.
Delivery of Assessment services is also yet to be determined as this is currently
under review by the funding bodies.

Potential providers have been identified and these recommendations will be
presented to the DSS for consideration and final approval granted by the
Commonwealth Department of Health and Ageing.

The Commonwealth reviews and provides this final approval quarterly, so it is
anticipated that this will be formalised in December 2023, allowing the transition
process to begin early in the new year.

The transition process will begin in earnest in February 2024, and will involve
ongoing communication and a project management approach to ensure client
consent, data transfer and service planning leads to continuity of services.

Based on advice from the Commonwealth and other service providers and councils
who have conducted a transition process, it is recommended that Council confirm
the final date for completion of transition as Friday 31 May 2024.

Consultation
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Following the in-principle resolution of June 2023, clients, staff and the community
were informed via the media, letters and phone calls. Further updates have been
provided at staff meetings, community group meetings and newsletters.

Following Council’s resolution to support a transition completion date of 31 May
2024, all affected staff will be formally notified, within the requirements of the
Enterprise Bargaining Agreement 2021.

Clients will be notified in writing of the confirmation of date.

When Council is formally notified of the Commonwealth decision regarding approved
providers, staff and clients will also be kept informed. Clients will be notified both in
writing and by phone calls.

It also proposed to hold an ‘aged care expo’ to allow clients, families of clients, new
service providers and Council staff to begin to build relationships and address the
unknown questions that may arise during the transition. This has been a feature of
other councils’ successful transitions.

Throughout this process, further media releases will be produced to keep the wider
community updated.

Financial Implications

There are no negative financial implications for Council to withdraw from the service,
but exploration of alternative service models to ensure continuity of service are yet to
be determined.

All providers are awaiting details on pricing models from the Commonwealth - which
was likely to be September 2023, but is now prior to 30 June 2024. The lack of an
accurate pricing model is also a major factor influencing local government in Victoria.

With staff redundancies triggered with a completion date for the transition process,
Council has managed a reserve to ensure all commitments are met at no cost to rate
payers. Leave accruals are already contained within budgets.

Social Implications

The exit from providing a high-profile service to the community over many decades is likely
to cause short-term angst among those not yet engaged in the community-based aged care
system, a system still under review by the Commonwealth.

It is likely a small team will continue to ensure the community has a local point to assist with
navigation following the completion of the transition. This has proven to be very worthwhile in
other councils and will be further developed in coming months.

Affected staff will also be encouraged and supported to continue in similar roles for a new
provider, which is important in recognising the skills, training, and passion for their work

Economic Implications

The Commonwealth Home Service Provider (CHSP) services bring more than $2 million of
Commonwealth funding into the region annually, complemented by a minor ratepayer
contribution.

Page: 10 | 243




Q_\-.y,l_-.- HILL MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

All funding is used for service delivery and coordination and is spent within the
municipality. The services will still be required to be provided locally, so the
expenditure of Commonwealth funding will continue whether Council is a provider or
not.

This program provides employment to around 35 people who are mostly in their
second round of employment. It is important that affected encouraged and supported
to continue in similar roles for a new provider, to ensure the ongoing Commonwealth
funding stays in the region.

Environmental Implications
Nil.
Risk Management Implications

The highest risks associated with Council’s decision on this topic are categorised as
financial, reputational, and contractual risks.

Aged care services consistently rank highly in community satisfaction surveys for
both importance and performance. A satisfactory transition from the program will
minimise reputational risk; the recent changes and Commonwealth plans means
Council will not be seen to be ‘walking away’ from a high-profile program it has been
providing for over 35 years.

Attachments: Nil

Options
1. That Council note this report and confirm the date of completion of transition as 31
May 2024.

CM 2023/65 Motion
MOVED Cr Moar

That Council:

1. Note the contents of this report and confirms Friday 31 May 2024 as the
date for completion of the aged care transition process.

2. Formally notifies the Commonwealth Department of Social Services of
this transition date.

SECONDED Cr Jeffery

The Motion was put and CARRIED 6/ 1

Cr McKay called for a division

For: Cr King, Cr Kelly, Cr McPhee, Cr Young, Cr Jeffery and Cr Moar
Against: Cr McKay
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2.2 2022/23 Annual Report

Directorate: Corporate Services
File Number: S15-28-14
Purpose: For Decision

Council Plan Strategy Addressed

4. Leadership - We will ensure accountable leadership, advocacy and transparent
decision making.

4.3 Bold leadership, strong partnerships and effective advocacy

4.3.1 Create meaningful partnerships across our communities

4.3.2 Strong relationship with State and Federal governments to influence advocacy
and funding opportunities

4.3.3 Working together in promotion of the municipality

Current Strategic documents

Council Plan
Budget

Declarations of Interest:

Council officers affirm that no general or material conflicts need to be declared in
relation to the matter of this report.

Summary

Council’s Annual Report incorporating the Financial and Performance Statements
and the Audit Opinions, are completed within 4 months of the end of the 2022/23
financial year. The Annual Report is now presented for Council’s consideration and
endorsement.

Discussion

Following the completion of all statutory requirements, Swan Hill Rural City Council’s
Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2023 is presented for consideration and
endorsement by Council. The format of the Annual Report is consistent with the
model recommended by Local Government Victoria.

Some of the highlights of the 2022/23 year were:
- The completion of the Tree Planting Program which included hundreds of
trees being planted across Lake Boga, Swan Hill, Ultima, Nyah, Nyah West
and Robinvale.
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- Overnight visitors spent $174 million on travel to the region, an increase of
89.5% and domestic visitors spend totalling $253 million on travel to the
region - up by 91.7%.

- Council has secured at least $13 million in new funds, since July 2022, from a
variety of State and Federal Government funding programs, to enable the
delivery of new or improved infrastructure and facilities.

- Attendance rates at the Town Hall, for Performing Arts/Commercial Touring
Shows, have seen an increase of 170% and attendance rates at the Town
Hall, for Town Hall led events, have seen an increase of 52%.

- Council constructed and sold four out of eight proposed houses in Ronald
Street, Robinvale.

- Together with Lower Murray Water, put together three Home Energy Audit
Toolkits to help community members beat the rising cost of electricity and
gas, and help lower household emissions.

All of Council’s Financial Accountability Statements received clear audit opinions.
Council remains in a good financial position, achieving an accounting surplus of $6.8
million for the year. Council should note that much of this surplus is grant funding
committed to existing and planned works including $8.6 million received in advance
from the Victorian Grants Commission. This is the fourteenth successive annual
surplus. Council requires operational surpluses to fund future capital works. These
works include replacement of roads, community assets and increasing regulatory
requirements placed on Councils, for example waste and landfill operations.

The Balance Sheet continues to indicate Council’s good financial base. Current
assets exceed current liabilities by $46.8 million and exceed total liabilities by $43.4
million. The sum of $0.27 million was repaid to lending institutions during the year.

Consultation

Council accepted an in-principle adoption of the Performance and Financial
Statements at its September Council Meeting. The Executive team and relevant
officers have been involved in the development of the Annual Report.

Financial Implications

Council remains in a healthy financial position.
Social Implications
Not applicable

Economic Implications

Not Applicable

Environmental Implications

Not Applicable
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Risk Management Implications

Attachments: 1. Annual Report 2022-2023 TVc 3 T Zzm XEWn NP 2 n GL
S7jQ[2.2.1 - 187 pages]
Options
1. Consider and endorse the 2022/23 Annual Report of Swan Hill Rural City
Council as presented.
2. Failure to endorse the 2022/23 Annual Report of Swan Hill Rural City Council
as presented may put Council outside the deadline for adoption of the Annual
Report by 31 October 2023.

Recommendation/s

That Council:

1. Consider and endorse the 2022/23 Annual Report of Swan Hill Rural City
Council as presented.

F}_ Page: 14 | 243



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Annual Report
2022/23

B
L e

SWAN HILL

Rural City Council

Page: 15|
243 ATT: 2.2.1



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Acknowledgement

Swan Hill Rural City Council acknowledges the traditional custodians of the land, and
pays its respects to their elders, past and present.
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About our Annual Report

Swan Hill Rural City Council is pleased to present it's 2022/23 Annual Report, which
provides a detailed account of our performance from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023.

Documenting Council’s performance against the 2022/23 Budget and the Council Plan, the
Annual Report highlights achievements and challenges faced within key service areas and
programs.

Council seeks to achieve community engagement and an understanding of Council’s
operations by conducting its affairs openly and with integrity.

Transparency in our decision-making and accountability are core values of Council,
reflecting high levels of good governance.

This report provides information to a variety of audiences including community groups,
businesses, ratepayers, visitors, investors, government agencies and other interested

stakeholders.

Our offices

Swan Hill office Robinvale office Postal address

45 Splatt Street 72 Herbert Street PO Box 488

SWAN HILL VIC 3585 ROBINVALE VIC SWAN HILL VIC 3585

(T) 03 5036 2333 (T) 03 5051 8000

(F) 03 5036 2340 (F) 03 5057 2070 E: council@swanhill.vic.gov.au

W: www.swanhill.vic.gov.au

:
.

Swan Hill Rural City Council would like to thank everyone who contributed photos to this annual report, with a special
mention to Harmony Day photographers, Russell Singh and Anthony Whiting, for generously allowing the use of their
photos.
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Welcome to the report of operations

We are committed to transparent reporting and accountability to our community. The Annual Report
is our primary means of advising residents within the Swan Hill Rural City Council region about our
operations and performance during the 2022/23 financial year.

Introduction
Provides a snapshot of our region and highlights what we have accomplished.

The year in review
Messages from our Mayor and CEO, a financial summary and major project highlights.

Our Council
Our region’s history and profile, and information on our Councillors.

Our people
Information on Council’'s employees, including our organisational structure, occupational health
and safety, equal opportunity, and appreciating our staff.

Our performance

Results against our Council Plan key strategic initiatives, Local Government performance
reporting indicators, and major initiatives and services identified in the 2022/23 Budget.

Corporate governance

Governance and statutory information including decision-making, elected members, risk
management, benchmarking and accountability.

Performance statement

Local Government performance reporting indicators for sustainable capacity, service performance
and financial performance.

Financial performance
Council’s general purpose financial statements.
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INTRODUCTION

Snapshot of Council

Swan Hill Rural City Council covers 6,116 square kilometres and is home to 21,403* people. It includes
the townships of Swan Hill, Robinvale, Lake Boga, Nyah, Nyah West, Piangil, Beverford, Woorinen South,
Ultima, Manangatang and Boundary Bend.

The Swan Hill municipality has experienced significant growth over the past decade, led by the expansion
of horticultural and agricultural practices and supported by an innovative manufacturing sector.

This success is depicted by the fact that irrigated areas have been increasing with a higher proportion of
mature, highvalue crops such as almonds and table grapes. The region is one of Australia’s largest
producers of almond and table grape plantings, vegetables including potatoes and carrots, stone fruit,
olives, avocados and field crops.

The region also boasts an impressive 69% of its municipality dedicated to cropping and associated
dryland infrastructure, including wheat, barley, lentils, cereal/hay, pulses (including chickpeas and lupins),
grazing, oats, and canola.

More than 20 per cent of all jobs in the city are directly related to agriculture.

The SunRISE report for Swan Hill on 2021 irrigated crops had a value of production of $1.22 billion, and
an additional $268.4 million for dryland cropping.

Located along the Murray River, tourism plays an important role in our region’s economy. Our climate and
natural beauty attracted approximately 768,000 visitors this year as reported in the Murray Regional
Tourism (MRT) Snapshot report, March 2023. Visitation was up by 39% and tourists spent 960,000 nights
in the region — up by 14%. Overnight visitors spent $174 million on travel to the region, and increase of
89.5%. With domestic visitors spent totalling $253 million on travel to the region - up by 91.7%.

Our municipality: fast facts

21,403* Our population
6,116km? Our area

3,655km The length of our local
roads (sealed and B
unsealed)

12,230 Our rateable properties

$3.293 billion Annual economic output

People working

*2021 ABS data estimates the Swan Hill Rural Council residential population to be 21,403, however, due to ongoing concern that
the ABS consistently underestimates the population of Robinvale, Council commissioned Geografia to undertake a population
determination study. The ABS census figure of 2021 show the Robinvale population as 3,740 people. The work of Geografia has
reliably demonstrated that the true Robinvale population sits at approximately 7,900 people; making the total residential
population 25,367.
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Vision Statement

Built on strong foundations that embrace our rich
history and natural environment, our region will be a
place of progression and possibility , we are a
community that is happy, healthy and harmonious—
we are empowered, we are respectful and we are
proud.

Our Mission

We will lead, advocate, partner and provide efficient
services and opportunities for growth and the
wellbeing of our community, environment and
economy.

Our Values

Council values our residents and community and
will be responsive to their needs. In pursuing our
objectives, we believe in, and are committed to, the
following values:

Community engagement
We will ensure that our communities are consulted,
listened to and informed.

Leadership

We will be at the centre of our community and by
actively engaging our community we will form the
collective view on strategic issues and will then
express our views through strong advocacy and
action.

Fairness
We will value and embrace the diversity of our

community and ensure that all people are treated
equally.

Accountability
We will be transparent and efficient in our activities
and we will always value feedback.

Trust
We will act with integrity and earn the community’s

trust by being a reliable partner in delivering
services and providing facilities.

Part one | Introduction 8
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Highlights of the year
Liveability

Successful trial of a Sustainable Vegetation
Management Program with the use of three
rescued goats. Zero labour, machinery and
chemical use recorded on grass maintenance at
retarding basin.

The Renewal Irrigation Program has upgraded all
sports grounds and major parks and reserves with
Galcon GSI Irrigation Controller units. The systems
are controlled by a phone app and/or laptop and
can be used anywhere in the world. This process
will save Council in labour costs each year. A
shared pathway and hydro-seed (grass) has
reclaimed land from the number 9 channel along
McCallum Street, adding a vast green space to
Council maintained parklands.

Pioneer Settlement external landscaping works
have been completed including aeration, irrigation,
levelling, top dressing, soil treatment and over
sowing. The project converted a previously barren
area, with difficult terrain to maintain, into a
complementary Pioneer Settlement entrance and
parking upgrade.

The completion of the 2022/23 Tree Planting
Program which included hundreds of trees being
planted across Lake Boga, Swan Hill, Ultima,
Nyah, Nyah West and Robinvale.

The completion of a section of landscaping works
at Robinvale P12 and Community Library, has
enhanced the space and created a welcoming
environment.

Council successfully carried out two Roadside Pest
and Weed Programs. As part of these initiatives,
more than 340km of Council roadsides were
treated for regionally controlled weeds, while
248km were targeted for rabbit control. These
efforts help to ensure the region’s unique and
diverse wildlife is protected while also helping to
reduce the impact of invasive species on farming
communities.

In partnership with the Mallee CMA, Council
delivered pest weed and animal control activities
across 580ha. These efforts were specifically
aimed at safeguarding the critically endangered
Buloke Woodlands, an ecologically significant
community, listed under the Environment
Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999
(EPBC Act).

Council developed Home Energy Audit Toolkits
that can be borrowed free of charge at each of
Council’s library services to help community

INTRODUCTION

members beat the rising cost of electricity and
gas and to help lower household emissions. The
toolkits aim to guide users to conduct a full
energy audit of their own home and identify ways
to reduce household bills.

e Council partnered with Better Building Finance
(BBF), to enable Environmental Upgrade
Finance to be offered to local businesses in the
municipality. Local businesses can take out long-
term loans for works to become more
environmentally sustainable, that can then be
repaid quarterly alongside their Council rates.

Prosperity

e The Community Development Fund supported
16 community groups/organisations that shared
in just under $53,000 worth of funding to support
various projects throughout the municipality.

e Our 22/23 Event Support Fund allocated
$80,468.75 in funding for events across the
municipality.

e Overnight visitors spent $174 million on travel to
the region, an increase of 89.5%. With domestic
visitors spend totalling $253 million on travel to
the region - up by 91.7%.

¢ Following a significant funding application
process Swan Hill's Country University Centre
was approved in November 2022. The Country
University Centre will help students in regional
and remote areas access higher education,
without having to leave their community. They
provide student support and campus-style
facilities for students who study online.

e Council constructed and sold four out of eight
proposed houses in Ronald Street, Robinvale.

e Council has secured at least $13 million in new
funds, since July 2022, from a variety of State
and Federal Government funding programs, to
enable the delivery of new or improved
infrastructure and facilities.

e Attendance rates at the Town Hall, for
Performing Arts/Commercial Touring Shows,
have seen an increase of 170%.

e Attendance rates at the Town Hall, for Town Hall
led events, have seen an increase of 52%.

e Council released Stage 14 of its Tower Hill
residential estate, and provided support to other
newly established residential developments.
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Harmony

e Our municipality is proud to have more than 40
nationalities among our community and a
population that is welcoming and resilient.

e We have welcomed 99 new citizens to our
municipality in this financial year, coming from
20 countries.

Challenges for 2022/23

The high river event in 2022 created extensive
damage within our municipality to road networks,
other assets, and infrastructure, including
residential and commercial property damage.
Recovery efforts will continue for quite some time
as we continue to repair roads and infrastructure
and work with Government to ensure we have the
funds to do so.

Leadership

e Reviewed Domestic Animal Management Plan

o Reviewed OHS Framework and Management
Plan

e Reviewed Governance Rules

e Adopted Project Management Governance
Framework

e Reviewed Public Interest Disclosure Policy and
Procedure

o Reviewed Gender Equality Committee Terms of
Reference

e Reviewed Business Continuity Management
Framework

e Reviewed Financial Hardship Policy and
Procedure

e Childsafe Standards Review of
Processes against legislative changes

Recruitment — our region is currently facing, like
many other areas, a severe labour and skills
shortage. The number of vacancies is at a high,
which makes recruiting difficult and is further
impacted by housing and childcare shortages.

Major changes for 2022/23

Swan Hill Region Visitor Information Centre
temporarily relocated to Swan Hill Senior Citizen
Centre in March 2023. The decision followed the
expiration of the lease, along with a funding
variation agreement to construct a new Swan Hill
Tourism and Cultural Hub at the Pioneer
Settlement. The Economic and Community
Development department also relocated to our
main Splatt Street office.

Plant and Fleet acquisition has been impacted by
worldwide supply chain blockages and
replacement of some plant items have been
delayed. Parts supply has also been an issue, with
the most significant example being Councils Flow-
con Road patching truck was out of service for two
months while waiting on parts. Setbacks like this
impact our ability to provide acceptable service
levels and Road Management Plan compliance.
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12,230

rateable properties

7,926

visits to the Art Gallery

2,755

registered
animals

21,141

people attended 267 events
and performances at Swan
Hill Town Hall PACC

181

inspections of
food businesses
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7,640

tonnes of garbage,
recycling and organics
collected from
kerbside bins

143

planning permits and

134

building permits issued

130,923

visits to aquatic facilities

117

media releases

$15.1 million

spent on capital works
projects

INTRODUCTION

2,855

immunisations administered

Over 600

Social media posts

2,967

active library members

17,913

hours of community care
provided

5,764

maternal and child health
consultations
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Year at a glance

July
New Library Outreach Vehicle

A new Library Outreach Vehicle replaces the
Mobile Library, allowing more programs and
activities on visits to rural communities.

NAIDOC Cultural Day

Council and Mallee District Aboriginal Services
held a family and cultural day to celebrate
NAIDOC Week.

We saved 647 tonnes of drums from going
into Landfill!

DrumMUSTER regional consultant John Knight
presented Acting Mayor Cr Bill Moar with

a drumMUSTER Milestone Achievement Award
in recognition of the municipalities’ efforts in
collecting 600,000 drums for recycling since
1999.

August

The Robertson Brothers are bringing back
the good old days

The Robertson Brothers bring back the good old
days to the Swan Hill Town Hall PACC with their
1960’s variety TV show.

Gym expansion and aquatic upgrade are on
the way

Swan Hill Leisure Centre’s gym expansion and
aquatic upgrades commenced.

National Tree Planting Day

In support of National Tree Day Mayor Cr Bill
Moar teamed up with our Parks and Garden team
to plant three new shade trees at Riverside Park.

Vibrant villages Beverford

Upgrades commenced in Beverford as part of the
Vibrant Villages project. The project includes new
car parking spaces and landscaping works.
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Page: 26 |
243

12

ATT: 2.21



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

September

Swan Hill Youth Ball, ran by young people —
for young people

A local event — Swan Hill Youth Ball, ran by our
Novo Youth Council returned bigger and better
this year. Providing the opportunity for young
people to come together in an inclusive
environment.

Swan Hill Soccer Pavilion

Swan Hill Rural City Council’s newest sporting
facility, Swan Hill Regional Soccer Hub, was
formally opened by Mark Gepp MP on Tuesday,
6 September.

A record year for Heartbeat

Swan Hill Rural City Council’s state-of-the-art
Heartbeat of the Murray laser light show, has
seen record visitations.

INTRODUCTION

October

VNI West Kerang Link project funded

Council celebrated news from the Australian and
Victorian governments’ that the construction of
the VNI-West KerangLink project will be jointly
funded.

The project will see a new 500KV transmission
network interconnector constructed between
Victoria and NSW via Kerang by 2028 and is the
key first stage to unlocking enormous renewable
energy supplies in northern Victoria.

It's a team effort

We received a visit from Emergency
Management Commissioner Andrew Crisp, ADF
Brigadier Matt Burr and VICSES Incident
Controller Alistair Drayton.

80 replacement ADF troops arrived on the
ground to relieve the 30 ADF personnel, who had
been supporting our local flood response efforts.

Council’s welcome greater connectivity

Digital connectivity and broadband services are
set to be improved for communities within Swan
Hill Rural City Council and Murray River Council,
thanks to funding support from the Victorian
Government, and the NSW Cross Border
Commissioners Infrastructure fund.

Libraries to help local residents Get Online!

‘Get Online Week 2022’ was held from 17-21
October.

The annual campaign aims to support local
residents that are not online, through digital skills
mentoring events.
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Year at a glance continued...

November

Country University Centre — Mallee, is on the
horizon
Higher education students in the Swan Hill region

are set to benefit from a new Country University
Centre, soon to be based in Swan Hill.

Free Japanese Encephalitis Vaccinations
sessions

Swan Hill Rural City Council residents can take
advantage of free Japanese Encephalitis
Vaccinations sessions, being run by Council this
month.

Cr Les McPhee elected as Mayor Councillor

Les McPhee has been elected as Mayor of Swan
Hill Rural City Council. It will be his sixth term as
Mayor. Cr Stuart King was elected Deputy Mayor.

Council to aid in sandbagging

Depot staff worked alongside SES, CFA and
ParksVic to lay sandbags to protect community
Infrastructure.

Council closing gender pay gap

Swan Hill Rural City Council has welcomed a
report published by Workplace Gender Equality
Agency that showcases the municipality as the
most economically lucrative place for women to
work.

December

Council Youth Officers recognised

Swan Hill Rural City Council was delighted to
learn that their very own Will Burns, Youth
Support Officer had won the 2022 YACVic Rural
Youth Award for ‘Young Person Leading
Change’. We were proud to also have our own
Jess Kei, Robinvale Youth Officer a finalist in the
Awards.

Home Energy Audit Toolkits now available

Swan Hill Rural City Council, together with Lower
Murray Water, have put together three Home
Energy Audit Toolkits to help community
members beat the rising cost of electricity and
gas, and help lower household emissions.

Two new buildings — on the way!

Councillors resolved to investigate a funding
variation to build two new buildings, rather than
pursue the proposed Our Place project.
Council was delighted to be commencing
concepts for the Swan Hill Art Gallery
redevelopment and the Swan Hill Tourism and
Cultural Hub.

One year of emissions reductions and cost
savings through VECO

Swan Hill Rural City Council is one of 51
Victorian councils to have slashed their energy
bills and reduced emissions through the Victorian
Energy Collaboration (VECO), a joint renewable
electricity contract.
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January

Congratulations to award recipients

Swan Hill Rural City Council has awarded Sharon
Denham 2023 Australia Day Citizen of the Year,
Alannah Taylor 2023 Australia Day Young Citizen
of the Year and the Nyah District Christmas
Carnival the Community Event of the Year.

Art Gallery Redevelopment - focus group
sessions

Swan Hill Rural City Council held focus group
sessions to seek feedback from the community
regarding the new Art Gallery redevelopment.

New look for CBD parking meters

Swan Hill Rural City Council parking meters in
the Swan Hill CBD now allow for tap and go
payments.

Coffee with a Councillor — with a twist!

Swan Hill Rural City Council’s, Coffee with a
Councillor is back for 2023, only this year we also
see the popular ‘Coldie with a Councillor’ return
every second month.

INTRODUCTION

February

Spoons Riverside new lessee

Swan Hill Rural City Council is delighted by the
official announcement that Spoons Riverside is to
change hands—reopening the much-loved
riverside restaurant.

New chapter in 20 - year partnership with
Belgravia Leisure

Swan Hill Rural City Council has awarded
Belgravia Leisure a Management and Operation
of Leisure and Aquatic Services contract, building
upon a partnership first created 20 years ago.

Local libraries are calling on young people to
get involved

Swan Hill and Robinvale Libraries are seeking
interest from young people to be part of a project
in which they will co-design an activity or event
with library staff. This is the chance to have their
say and create a program that matters to young
people in our region.

Farewell to our beloved Gemma

Council and Pioneer Settlement are saddened by
the death of our much-loved resident Clydesdale
horse, Gemma.
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Year at a glance continued...

March

Swan Hill Town Hall exterior works

Works commenced to repairs cracks and repaint
the exterior of the Swan Hill Town Hall PACC.

M!I!M! ,AI.A nln.q.uiau,nu-l.o{! —

Tower Hill stage 14 release

The much anticipated Stage 14 lots at Tower Hill
open for registrations of interest, with the ballot
system to soon follow.

Swan Hill Harmony Day

A smorgasbord of international food, singing and
dancing came together on Saturday, 25 March at
Riverside Park for the annual community
celebration - Harmony Day.

Robinvale Skatepark - Design Workshops
Robinvale residents had their opportunity for
input on a new skate park design through various
drop in sessions.

April

Microchip your pet for free!

Swan Hill Rural City Council gives residents the
chance to microchip their pets for free in April,
the program also included one year of free
animal registration.

Rocky, captivating hearts at Pioneer
Settlement

Swan Hill Rural City Council and Pioneer
Settlement are delighted to introduce the newest
addition to the Pioneer Settlement family, Rocky.

Lighting up Swan Hill

Swan Hill shined brightly with a spectacular light
display arriving to town. "Yana Waingi,” meaning
Walk in Lights, allowed participants to journey
through a spectacle of light and sound at
Riverside Park, Swan Hill.

Recent Swan Hill riverfront events
overflowing with success!

Swan Hill seen its riverfront come to life with
various events being held throughout March-
April. Thousands of visitors and locals embraced
a range of different foods, culture’s and
entertainment through diverse events held at
both the Riverside Park and Pioneer Settlement.
Events included Swan Hill Food and Wine
Festival, RockWiz, Harmony Day and Yana
Waingi — Walk in Lights.
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May

River viewing platform and Boardwalk

Works commenced on our River Viewing
Platform and Boardwalk on Monash Drive, Swan
Hill.

First Nation Community Advisory Committee

Swan Hill Rural City Council calls on members of
our First Nation Community to join an Advisory
Committee and help shape the future of
upcoming projects.

Community and event grants open.

Applications for both Swan Hill Rural City
Council’s Community Development Fund and
Event Support Fund open.

Community groups and organisations can apply
for up to $5,000 through our grants and
contributions programs.

Calling all community groups that involve
local seniors

Council seek to partner with local community
groups to recognise local seniors, during the
2023 Victorian Seniors Festival celebrations.

INTRODUCTION

June

A diamond celebration for our queen of the
Murray

Council celebrates a momentous occasion in
Pioneer Settlement's history - the Diamond
Jubilee celebration, commemorating the arrival of
the Paddle Steamer Gem.

iy
fu

4

Making a splash in Robinvale

Council released initial designs concepts for a
proposed Splash Park in Robinvale.

Advocating on issues that matter to our
community

Council participated in a Murray River Group of
Council’s advocacy trip, to Parliament House in
Canberra — advocating for the issues that matter
to their community and region.
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

extension of the licensed bar area. We
completed the Catalina carpark upgrade,
Robinvale Leisure Centre carpark upgrade, the
McCallum Street shared footpath in Swan Hill,
commenced the Nyah West toilet block
renewal, and more. Economic development
initiatives throughout the year have assisted our
local business community and tourism providers
to recover from ongoing impacts of recent
flooding events and the pandemic.

Several projects across our municipality have
been delivered in partnership with the State and
Federal government, while continuing our
Mayor and CEO message important advocacy efforts for essential
infrastructure projects such as a new Swan Hill
Bridge, a new Hospital, increased housing for
our region and essential infrastructure. We have
contributed to several inquiries this year
including the Federal Senate Committee Inquiry
into Bank Closures in Regional and Rural
Australia, the Victorian State Parliamentary
Inquiry into the 2022 Flood event and the State
Legislative Council Inquiry into the Rental and
Housing Affordability Crisis in Victoria. We were
the only municipality to participate in the

We are pleased to present the 2022/23 Annual
Report to our community. In this document you
will see our continued work on project and
service delivery, advocacy and planning for the
future.

This Report provides a snapshot of Council’s
performance, our achievements on behalf of
the community, and areas for improvement.

Our 2022/23 financial year has been a record Federal Parliament Joint Standing Committee
year for project (_jc_-:-llvery - th_at we are proud of. Inquiry into Migration Pathway to Nation

To address significant housing shortages, we Building. Our municipality remains a strong and
released additional lots at the Tower Hill active member of the Murray River Group of
development and accelerated land Councils advocating for improvements to water,
development in new residential estates. We energy, telecommunications, and infrastructure
have completed and sold four homes in stage  gtivities to benefit the Murray River region.

one of the Ronald Street housing development.
The installation of light projection has further
enhanced and activated Pioneer Settlement
and Leisure Centre expansions in Robinvale
and Swan Hill commenced. An external
refurbishment of the Swan Hill Town Hall has
reinvigorated the popular venue, along with a
new name for the café bar space and an

We have successfully secured over $13 million
new funds this year, to provide even more
exciting new projects for our residents in the
coming years. We look forward to working
alongside our community as we bring them to
life.

The role of Council includes:
Acting as a representative government by taking into account the diverse needs of the local community
in decision making.
Providing leadership by establishing strategic objectives and monitoring their achievement.

Maintaining the viability of the Council by ensuring that resources are managed in a responsible and
accountable manner.

Advocating the interests of the local community to other communities and governments.

Acting as a responsible partner in government by taking into account the needs of other communities.
Fostering community cohesion and encouraging active participation in civic life.
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The annual community satisfaction survey Plant and Fleet acquisition has been impacted by
has shown an improvement in customer worldwide supply chain blockages and
satisfaction relating to community replacement of some plant items have had to be
engagement. Our organisation has strived to pushed back, by considerable margins. Parts
ensure we are providing a high standard of supply has also been a big issue and setbacks like
community engagement and with the this impact our ability to provide acceptable
implementation of our Let’s Talk online service levels and compliance to Road
engagement platform, we have seen almost Management Plans. Despite limitations our Roads
10,000 residents contributing to various and construction team has continued to produce
Council projects and initiatives. positive outcomes for our network, including $2.9

spent to reconstruct and reseal multiple roads
This year has also been met with some within the municipality, this year.
challenges.

Recruitment continues to be an ongoing challenge
The high river event in 2022 created for our organisation and our region, with a severe
extensive damage within our municipality to labour and skills shortage the number of vacancies
road networks, other assets, and experienced for our Council this financial year, has
infrastructure, including residential and been at a record high. This is also impacted by
commercial property damage. We were significant housing and childcare shortages.
fortunate that our operations and existing
infrastructure, including the new Robinvale ABS released the 2021 census data and whilst a
Levee Bank, were able to protect our towns growth was recorded for our municipality, our true
from more extensive damage. population figures were not recognised. We will,

along with other service providers in the area,
Recovery efforts will continue for quite some continue to advocate for the Robinvale community
time as we continue to repair roads and with our data, at any chance we get.
infrastructure and work with Government to
ensure we have the funds to do so.

Thank you

We would like to thank residents, community
groups, businesses, and Council officers for
continuing to work together towards our
municipality’s successes in 2022/23.

Cr Les McPhee Scott Barber
Mayor Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for:
o Establishing and maintaining an appropriate organisational structure for Council.
Ensuring that the decisions of the Council are implemented without undue delay.
The day to day management of the Council's operations in accordance with the Council Plan.

Developing, adopting and disseminating a code of conduct for Council staff.
Providing timely advice to Council.
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Financial Summary

Operating position

On a full accrual basis the surplus for the year was $6.8 million. It is important to note that this is an
accounting profit after recognising non-cash items such as depreciation and amortisation of $12.68
million and the receipt of infrastructure assets created by developers. This significant profit is due to
the receipt of the Grants Commission funding allocation for the 2023/24 financial year in June 2023.

Major revenue and expenditure items included in the operating result can be identified from the
following graphs.

For more information on the comprehensive income statement, balance sheet and cash flows for the
year, please refer to the audited General Purpose Financial Report in Part Eight of this Annual Report.

Revenue Expenditure
Council’s total revenue for 2022/23 was $61.5 Council’s total expenses for the 2022/23 year
million as per the Comprehensive Income were $54.7 million as per the Comprehensive
Statement. A breakdown of Council’s revenue Income Statement. A breakdown of Council’s
sources highlights that 86.9 per cent of Council's expenses highlights that 97 per cent relates to
income comes from three income categories. three expenditure categories.
. Rates and garbage charges 50.1% . Employee costs 37.6%

. . . o
. Grants—operating 29.5% Materials and services 36.2%

. Depreciation 23.2%
. User Fees 7.3%

Total revenue ($61.5 million) Total expenditure ($54.7 million)

W Rsies & garbags chinges 50.1% B E mpicyes costs 37 5%

O Shatubany M & Saas 1 6% ehlaianak and sardces 3 1%
BN gain on Sseaaal of xaseia 0 1% BBad and doubSul debls 0 1%
B Lines feea 7% O Depralan & amoiaabon 73 7%

B Granis - operaling 79 5%

@ Girants - capital £ 1%

O Contribubions 5 5% mFinance coats 0%
o e ravin e & §%

oi0ber expermes 2 0%
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Purchase and creation of assets Capital expenditure

During the financial year, Council spent $15.1 million

ey L e . on capital works and asset purchases, bringing the
: _ e five- year total of expenditure on fixed assets to
p e $i2 e almost $69 million.
2 The graph at left shows the level of expenditure
- . spent on new and redeveloped assets over the past
o | five years.
w b =l e ' Major capital expenditure items were road networks,
e e = e = construction works at Tower Hill, sporting facilities,
parks and open spaces.
New borrowings
§20 - 180 Borrowings
ie Loans are used to fund major capital projects and
p o asset purchases. Loan funding allows the
8 $10 community to pay for the asset (such as a leisure
= $0.50 $0.50 centre) over some of the time that it is being used.
$0.5
$0.0 . . . . . $0.00 $0.00 At 30 June 2023, Council had a loan liability of

' $2.35 million. This is a planned and responsible
level of debt, achieved in accordance with Council's
borrowing strategy.

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Loan balance at 30 June each vear
During 2021/22 Council repaid an interest only loan

$10 - of $4.8 million. This loan was for a term of seven

$7.84 $7.85 $7.19 years, and each year Council had put aside funds

$8 1 in a reserve for the loan to be repaid in full at

$6 maturity.

47 $2.62 $2.35 Loan repayments for the upcoming year are

$2 - . . forecast to be $0.27 million.

$0 _ T T T T
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Loan repayments

$6.0 - $5.17
$5.0
o $4.0
< $30
320 $0.49
$10 | - $0.49 $0.57 s0.27
sop [ DN . ==
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Equity
Total equity The Balance Sheet shows total community equity of
$700 - se1a %0 $665 million, represented by accumulated surplus
$600 sarr $516 $537 and asset revaluation reserve.
$500 A
@ $400 The increase in equity is due to the
2 g300 | revaluation of Council’'s property, road and
2 200 4 infrastructure assets and a $6.8 million
$100 | surplus in 2023.
$0 - 2010 2020 2021 2022 2023 This graph shows the movement in equity over the
past five years.
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Financial indicators

Debt commitment ratio

2 4% -
=
% The debt commitment ratio identifies the
£ O O percentage of rate revenue required to pay
w = 7 95% 304% interest and principal on Council’s loans.
£ 7 297%
B g Closely tied to the Borrowing Strategy, the ratio
B E shows that Council is in a healthy position and
[ 178% that it decreased in 2022 due to the repayment
E 075% of our $4.8 million interest only loan. Of the
g 0% . . . L . $2.62 million in loans, $0.5 million are interest
| T T T T T 1
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 ©nlyrepaymentloans.

5.00 -

400 Bee o m—0—g  Working capital ratio

3,00 - 404 373 .88 L ¥ Working capital ratio shows the level of current

’ assets Council has available to meet its current
2 00 - liabilities. The graph shows that the ratio is
’ healthy and has increased over the past four
100 4 years due to increased levels of cash holdings.
0,00 , , } , The ratio is expected to decrease marginally in
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 futureyears.
E
5 o0% 1 a0.10% 45.17% .
= 50% - : Revenue ratio
& 53.09% .
w B 40% S0.07% The revenue ratio shows rate revenue as a
22 0% 117% proportion of total revenue and seeks to
e measure Council’s reliance on property rates. It
E £ 20% A is influenced by other revenue sources such as
'E 10%, | government grants, contributions, user fees and
= charges. This ratio increased in 2022 due to the
] 0% - - T - " reduced level of grants received.
Ed 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
o  1.0% 4 o )
E Debt servicing ratio
E, 0.8% The debt servicing ratio shows the amount of
a 0 6% rates required to pay the interest on Council’s
E : 0.54% loan liability. This ratio documents that loan
= 0 49 - interest does not place a burden on finances.
z .
(= -
- 0.2% 0.28%
= 00% . . : — 14
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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Description of operations

Swan Hill Rural City Council plays a vital role in shaping the future prosperity, health and wellbeing of our
municipality. Council aims to be progressive, dynamic and committed as we work towards this.

Swan Hill Rural City Council delivers more than 100 services to our community.

These range from waste and road management, to managing and improving open space and community
buildings.

We deliver services and facilities for children, young people, families and our elderly. We offer business
development, town and strategic planning and community health initiatives.

Council’s vision, strategic objectives and strategies to improve services and facilities are described in our
Council Plan 2021-25 and the associated Budget.

The progress of these strategies and their delivery against the Budget is reported in this Annual Report. Refer
to the section on Our Performance for more information about delivery of Council services.

The delivery of core services and facilities are measured by a set of Service Performance Indicators, as you
will see in this report. We also track progress on the Initiatives set out in our Council Plan.

Council has a wide range of responsibilities under both Victorian and Commonwealth legislations.

Economic factors

Council delivered its seventh budget under the ‘Fair Go’ rates system. Council’s rates increase was aligned
with the rate cap set at 1.75%.
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Services provided

Council receives funding from a number of sources and had a budgeted income of over $62.1
million in 2022/23. Below is a breakdown of the services Council delivered and what these
cost, for every $100 of expenditure.

$1 3 Recreation and Community Facilities
Halls, parks, reserves, pools, playgrounds, sporting facilities and street
beautification.

$1 6 Transport Services

Maintaining over 3,650km of roads, footpaths, signs, street cleaning, tree
maintenance and the aerodrome.

$1 1 Governance and Administration

Municipal offices in Swan Hill and Robinvale, Councillor support, Council depots
and plant equipment.

$4 Community Care

Domestic assistance and property maintenance for our seniors.

$1 (O Environmental and Waste Management
Recycling services, garbage collection, landfills, drainage and environmental
management.

$4 Cultural Services
Performing Arts, Libraries, Art Gallery and Indigenous Affairs.

$3 Family, Youth and Children’s Services
Services and support for families, children and youth.

$5 Pioneer Settlement
Managing, marketing, maintaining and developing this premium tourist attraction,
including Heartbeat of the Murray Laser Light Show.

$1 8 Economic Development and Marketing Services

Business development and investment, marketing of the region and leases of
caravan parks.

$7 Public Health, Safety and Regulatory Compliance

Animal control and registrations, parking, immunisations, emergency
management, lighting and community health.

$9 Other

Livestock Exchange, property acquisitions and disposal, commercial works,
planning and building services, Tower Hill residential development.
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Major capital works
During 2022/23 the major capital works included:

Monash Drive Upgrade

Major upgrades were made to Monash Drive in
Swan Hill in the 21/22 and 2022/23 financial years
including additional car parking, landscaping,
footpaths, road reseal and connection of Riverside
Park and Pioneer Settlement.

Actual spend 2022/23: $693k
Total project cost: $1.149M

Swan Hill Aerodrome

Lighting and Runway 2022/23: $751k
Refurbishment of Terminal Building 2022/23: $138k
Total project cost: $889k

»
-.« -_:,A.&',

)

New Soccer Pavillion -
Ken Harrison Sporting Complex

Actual spend 2022/23: $549k
Total project cost: $1.46M

SWAN HILL SOCCER LEAGUE

McCallum Street Footpath
Actual spend 2022/23: $527k
Total project cost: $888k
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Road reconstruction, sealing and maintenance
Actual spend 2022/23: $2.9 million

Multiple roads around the municipality were
reconstructed and/or resealed during 2022/23.

Ronald Street Sub-division
Actual spend 2022/23: $530k
Total project cost: $1.75M

Activation of lighting and digital content -
Pioneer Settlement

Actual spend 2022/23: $440k
Total project cost: $613k

Swan Hill Leisure Centre Pool
Equipment Renewal

Actual spend 2022/23: $343k
Total project cost: $368k

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Tower Hill - Stage 14 Development
Actual spend 2022/23: $337k
Total project cost: $1.58M

Catalina Carpark Upgrade
Actual spend 2022/23: $267k
Total project cost: $493k

Robinvale Leisure Centre Carpark
Actual spend 2022/23: $229k
Total project cost: $254k

Library Collection Book Purchases
Actual spend 2022/23: $151k
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Advocacy campaigns

Swan Hill Rural City Council regularly advocates to the Victorian and Federal governments for funding for
important programs and projects that will benefit our community and the broader region.

Swan Hill Bridge

Efficient road and rail freight is essential to our $1.2
billion agriculture and manufacturing sectors. Access
to safe transport is also essential for our people to
access the services and social activities they need -
many of which are unavailable locally.

The aging single-lane Swan Hill bridge creates a
bottleneck for traffic moving through our region, is
costing millions in ongoing repairs, and is simply
unusable for the higher mass and over dimensional
vehicles that local and interstate industry relies on.

In 2019 the Federal Government committed $60
million towards a new bridge - this is now,
unfortunately, under review. We need all levels of
government to continue working together to complete
designs, and for Federal and State governments to
commit funding.

Water and sewerage for small towns

Poor water and wastewater infrastructure is one
element restricting housing development in our small
towns, in areas where our agriculture, horticulture
and manufacturing sectors need housing the most.

The northern end of Nyah and the townships of
Boundary Bend and Wood Wood have no potable
water supply. Businesses and homes rely on
rainwater and trucking water in during dry times.

Sewage treatment is also needed for towns,
especially in the prime horticultural area of Woorinen
South, the township of Piangil and residential areas
around Lake Boga.

Extending water and sewer networks is cost
prohibitive for water authorities and private
landowners.

Investment is needed to introduce a fund that water
authorities can access to extend water and
wastewater systems to small towns and ease our
critical housing shortage.
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A new Swan Hill Hospital

Swan Hill District Health services a catchment of
35,000 people. Much of the hospital’'s key
infrastructure is old, not fit for purpose and in need
of redevelopment.

The Swan Hill Needs a New Hospital Committee
and Council have been advocating for a new
hospital. The Federal Government’s $30 million
commitment, has acted as seed funding for Stage
1 of the new hospital.

Council will continue advocating the State
Government to build the new Swan Hill Hospital in
its entirety; and provide future seed funding to
support further stages and to prompt the State
Government to commit to Stages 2, 3 and 4.

Assist overseas workers

The demand for overseas professional, skilled,
and semi-skilled workers, is higher than ever. The
pandemic exacerbated workforce gaps that
existed in our region beforehand, placing
extraordinary pressure on local industry —
including agriculture, horticulture, tourism,
hospitality, and healthcare.

Council welcomes the recent announcements
regarding new immigration labour agreements, but
further support is needed.

Fix our roads

Recent flooding events and an extraordinarily wet
season had a significant impact on our local roads
as well as our state road networks.

Council is grateful that the Roads to Recovery
program has injected essential funding into our
ageing road network, and we encourage Federal
Government to continue it.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

A true population

The ABS'’s data for Swan Hill Rural City Council
inaccurately represents the number of residents
who actually call our region home.

The Council-commissioned 2019 Robinvale
Population Determination Study showed that
Robinvale’s population is between 7,000 and
8,800, much higher than the official Census data
of 3,200. It is expected this discrepancy in
population is similar for other parts of the
municipality.

Council asked the Government to ensure
Robinvale is being correctly serviced and has
facilities commensurate with the population from
the 2019 study. In addition provide financial
support to further investigate municipal wide
population through a study, estimated to cost
$80,000. And introduce a new and more modern
way to collect Census data, to cater to an
increasingly diverse Australian population.

Improved housing availability

A lack of suitable, affordable housing is a
significant barrier to economic growth across our
municipality. Workers in all sectors have trouble
finding housing when re-locating to our area. This
is especially problematic for the seasonal
workforce that our horticulture sector relies on.

Council’s Robinvale Housing Strategy is guiding
us with some solutions. The Robinvale Worker
Housing Project has constructed and sold four of
eight new dwellings in Robinvale, while the
Seasonal Worker Accommodation Study is
reviewing compliance and incentives for more on-
farm accommodation for seasonal workers.

It is widely agreed that solving housing shortages
needs a multi-level government approach.
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Local Government Awards

Citizen of the Year - Sharon Denham

Sharon Denham was awarded the Australia Day Citizen of the Year for 2023 in
recognition for her long and valued commitment to basketball and player
development in our community.

Sharon has volunteered extensively for Swan Hill Basketball Association and had
held most positions on the committee. She is recognised as an excellent coach
and a champion of the sport by her peers.

Sharon'’s off court work spans over 27 years and she has been recognised both
state wide and nationally for her tireless work to ensure that everyone can have
access to the game.

Sharon has been a trailblazer for female coaches and has been a mentor for
young female coaches. Her experience and knowledge has seen her win the
Basketball Victoria Country Female Coach of the Year award, on five separate
occasions. She is identified as one of the best female coaches in Victoria.

Sharon has coached in various Basketball Victoria Country programs, from under
twelves and under fourteen Country wide skills days, through to the under
fourteen BVC Regional Academy, as a head coach. She has coached and
volunteered at the BVC Jamboree from its inception in Swan Hill in 1995 to the
many events across Regional Victoria that followed.

She coached Victoria Country Development teams at the prestigious Australian
Country Junior Basketball Cup (ACJBC) and was also successful head coach of
the Victorian Country State teams at the National Championships.

Sharon was part of the Victorian Country 2017 National Championship winning
under eighteen girls team at the assistant coach and won the 2017 ACJBC Gold
Medal as the Head Coach of the Victorian Country under eighteen girls.

This has all been whilst Sharon has been contributing to her local association and
players.

Sharon is an outstanding advocate for basketball in our community and is a
worthy recipient of the 2023 Australia Day Citizen of the Year Award.

Young Citizen of the Year - Alannah Taylor

Alannah Taylor was awarded Australia Day Young Citizen of the Year for 2023 in
recognition for her outstanding contribution to her local community.

Alannah has broadly demonstrated a passion for her community and beyond by
participating as a volunteer in a number of charitable and community events. Her
commitment at times spanning over five years, a significant amount of time for
someone of her age.

Alannah has diverse experience including supporting not-for-profit charitable
events, sporting events as both a participant and helper, as well as participating in
the Rural Ambassador program in 2021.

She is a remarkable sporting all-rounder having been involved as a club member
and participant in football, netball, tennis and basketball throughout the year.

Alannah is a respectful and a well-liked member of the community and has
developed good rapport and relationships with others. She was School Captain at
Manangatang P-12 College and supported other students through her role on the
student leadership team. She was the recipient of Ampol All Rounder award in
2022.

Alannah is a worthy recipient of the 2023 Australia Day Young Citizen of the Year
Award.
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

Community Event of the Year -
Nyah District Christmas Carnival

The Nyah District Christmas Carnival was awarded the Australia
Day Community Event of the Year for 2023.

The family-friendly carnival is the major annual community
gathering for people in the Nyah District, including the communities
of Nyah, Nyah West, Koraleigh, Vinifera and Wood Wood.

The 2021 carnival was held on 3 December at the Nyah
Recreation Reserve, with over 1000 people attending the COVID
safe event. Following the event’s cancellation in 2020 due to Covid
-19 restrictions, the event brought the community together for the
first time in over 12 months, providing a safe and enjoyable
evening. It included live music, children’s rides and activities,
cultural display, market stalls, food stalls and an impressive
fireworks display.

The annual carnival provides a positive focus for community
members, helping to improve wellbeing. The evening gave local
groups and organisations an opportunity to raise funds and
connect with the community, once again.

A committee of 12 people and 5 local organisations put the
Christmas carnival together each year, they have fantastic support
from community members and sponsors.

The evening provided a family friendly event that brought cheer to
all that attended.

Student Achievement award winners

Samantha Mullan

Jack Duncan

Jordan Baker

Isabeau Fitzpatrick
Ruby Eastwood

Xavier Morpeth

Audrey Williams

Tess Foley

Alannah Taylor

Ellena Panagiotopoulos

St Mary MacKillop College

Swan Hill College

Swan Hill Specialist School

Swan Hill Primary School

Swan Hill North Primary School
Woorinen District Primary School
Lake Boga Primary School

Nyah District Primary School
Manangatang P-12 College
Robinvale St Mary’s Primary School

Kira Leslie Robinvale P-12 College
Swan Hill Rural City Council - Annual Report 2022/23 31
Page: 45 |

243 ATT: 2.21



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Part three

Our Council

Page: 46 |
243 ATT: 2.2.1



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

OUR COUNCIL

Our Region

The Swan Hill municipality covers 6,116 square kilometers that over 40 nationalities call home, creating a
community that is diverse, welcoming and resilient. Our region has experienced significant economic growth over
the past decade, led by the expansion of horticultural/agricultural practices and supported by an innovative
manufacturing sector. With more than 40 commercially grown products including almonds, olives, stone fruit,
grapes, vegetables, cereals, legumes, lucerne, sheep, beef and dairy — it is easy to see why our municipality is an
important part of Victoria’s food bowl.

The beautiful Murray River winds its way through much of the municipality, offering a major draw card for visitors
and those who call the region home.

21,403* "

Total Population

G 595

- O

$3.004b 2633 9,462 478,000
Annual Number of local Local jobs Total visitors
economic output businesses

Top Four Gross Regional Product by Industry

$331.3M $107.7M $105.3M $97.9M

Agriculture, Health care and Manufacturing Construction
forestry and social assistance
fishing

*2021 ABS data estimates the Swan Hill Rural Council residential population to be 21,403, however, due to ongoing concern that
the ABS consistently underestimates the population of Robinvale, Council commissioned Geografia to undertake a population
determination study. The ABS census figure of 2016 show the Robinvale population as 3,497 people. The work of Geografia has
reliably demonstrated that the true Robinvale population sits at approximately 7,900 people; making the total residential
population 25,806.
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Our history

For thousands of years, the traditional owners of the lands that now form the Swan Hill Rural City Council
lived in the region, with the land providing abundant food sources and a permanent water supply.

In 1836, led by explorer Major Thomas Mitchell, the first Europeans arrived. Settlers started to arrive soon
after, establishing large sheep stations next to the Murray River.

In 1871, the Shire of Swan Hill was proclaimed and was located in Kerang (which now forms part of the
Gannawarra Shire).

In 1890, part of the Shire of Swan Hill was severed and formed the Mildura Shire, now called the Mildura
Rural City Council.

In 1893, the Shire of Castle Donnington was created and centred around the town of Swan Hill. By 1904 it
had assumed the name Shire of Swan Hill.

Returned servicemen settled in the Tol Tol and Robinvale areas circa 1923 and established farms,
persevering through the Depression and providing a solid foundation for the prosperous farming
community centred there today.

The Borough of Swan Hill was formed in 1939 and in March 1965 became the City of Swan Hill.
Throughout the 1960s and 1970s, the City of Swan Hill was considered one of the largest wheat-
producing municipalities in Victoria. Whilst broadacre farms are still found in abundance in our region,
many farmers have since transitioned away from dryland farming to grow grapes, citrus, olives, carrots,
asparagus, stonefruit and a wide range of other crops.
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OUR COUNCIL

Councillors
The Council is elected to provide leadership and good governance for the municipal district and the
local community.

Swan Hill Rural City Council is not divided into Wards, with seven Councillors elected as
representatives for all residents and ratepayers across the municipality.

They have responsibility for setting the strategic direction for the municipality, policy development,
identifying service standards and monitoring performance across the organisation.

Cr McPhee was first elected to Swan Hill Rural City Council in 2008. He was born in
Melbourne and moved to Swan Hill in 1987 with his wife and two children.

He was a member of Victoria Police for 36 years and held the position of Sergeant in
Charge of the Swan Hill Highway Patrol. Cr McPhee retired in February 2022.

Since moving to Swan Hill, Les has been a member of numerous community
organisations and is currently a meals on wheels volunteer.

Les has a passion for ensuring that Swan Hill Rural City Council remains a great place
to live, work and visit.

Councillor McPhee was re-elected as Mayor in November 2023.
Cr Les McPhee

Mayor

Elected 2008

(M) 0427 319 394

Cr King was born and raised within the municipality and elected to Council in 2020. He
is a former farmer, qualified engineer and project manager, a current commercial
business owner and football umpire. Stuart is married to Angela and between them
they have 9 children and 2 grandchildren.

Stuart is passionate about this community. He was motivated to seek election to
Council to fulfil an obligation to deliver basic services to ratepayers and to create an
environment that stimulates existing businesses. His goal is to attract new investment
to the municipality from higher tiers of Government and the private sector to provide
better infrastructure, improved services, and a place where people want to live, work
and play.

Cr Stuart King Cr King was elected Deputy Mayor in November 2022.
Deputy Mayor

Elected 2020

(M) 0437 967 531

Councillor Bill Moar was elected to Council in 2016. He was elected Mayor in
November 2019 and re-elected in November 2020.

Bill was born and raised in Swan Hill and has had a varied career, predominately in
farming but also extending to aged care nursing and sports.

A proud father of six and grandfather of ten, Bill spent 25 years at Goschen as a dry
land farmer, as well as being involved with his parents’ irrigation farm just over the
border in New South Wales - where he currently farms sheep and cereals.

Bill has held over the years a number of voluntary positions in the agricultural sector,
within sporting and community groups and within the CFA.

He is passionate about the place he calls ‘home’ and continues to advocate for the

Cr Bill Moar future of this community that he loves.
Deputy Mayor )
Elected 2016 Cr Moar was Acting Mayor from July 2022 to November 2022.

(M) 0429 496 194
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Cr Ann Young

Elected 2016
(M) 0409 503 711

Cr Chris Jeffery
Elected 2016
(M) 0429 447 802

Cr Nicole McKay
Elected 2019
(M) 0436 299 842

Cr Jacquie Kelly
Elected 2023
(M) 0436 804 012

Cr Jade Benham

MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Cr. Young has always lived around Swan Hill and Woorinen areas. Her family have
been involved in growing packing and marketing stone-fruit to Australian and overseas
markets.

Ann has studied remotely for many years and has qualifications including accounting,
horticulture, management, training, business along with others. She has owned two
Registered Training Organisations with scope for delivery to both local and
international students. Ann has also delivered services for both drought and business
support programs for farmers as well as Food Safety, Chemical, Business Planning
which often involved serving on local, state and federal boards and committees.

Ann served as Mayor in 18/2019 and has always had a passion for Swan Hill Rural City
region to grow and develop both economically and socially for the benefit of all
community members.

Cr Jeffery was elected to Council in 2016, with an aim to give younger representation,
views and direction that benefits the municipality now and into the future.

He was born and raised in Swan Hill and has lived in Swan Hill for most of his life with
his wife and two young children. Chris works for CFA in corporate administration.

Chris is passionate about seeing our towns continue to grow through improved sporting
facilities, expansion of existing businesses and seeing new business investment in the
area, while ensuring good planning outcomes and a high standard of community
services.

Cr McKay grew up in a family business at Nyah, forging connections with many sectors
including: natural resources management, small business, community services, with
family involved in agriculture of all types. Nicole was elected in April 2019 after a by-
election was held.

She studied nursing and worked in Jacaranda Lodge at Nyah before relocating to
Melbourne to complete Midwifery at Monash Medical Centre. She worked there for five
years and has worked in Midwifery and Community Health in Swan Hill for the past 12
years. She sees excellent health services as essential for the region.

Nicole believes that multiculturalism is the building block of our vibrant community and
economy. She sees Aboriginal culture and communities as important and central to the
region, and hopes we can grow stronger together.

Cr Kelly was elected to Council in January 2023 and is serving her second term as a
Councillor. She previously served as a Lakes Ward Councillor from 1999 to 2003. She
has three children between the ages of 21 and 32, is a business owner and volunteers in
local environment groups.

Cr Kelly has a strong sense of community, having grown up in Swan Hill and chosen to
return here to live and work. She is passionate about improving community engagement
at Council level as she wants to ensure people feel connected and have the opportunity
to have their say in decisions that affect the community.

Cr Kelly is an advocate of responsible budgets and robust strategic and corporate
planning. She recognises the importance of sustainable economic and environmental
decision making that enhances the long term liveability of the region.

Cr Kelly has a Bachelor of Applied Science- Chiro. From RMIT University.

Cr Benham took a leave of absence from her role as Mayor in July 2022 to pursue a career in politics.
She formally resigned in December 2022.
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OUR COUNCIL

Community Satisfaction Survey

Each year, Local Government Victoria
coordinates a state-wide local government
community satisfaction survey. The survey
measures the community’s perceptions of their
local council’s performance in key areas.

During February and March 2023, a total of 400
residents from across the municipality provided
their feedback via a telephone survey.

Overall performance

The overall performance index score of 50 for
Council represents a decrease on the 2022
result. Although this overall performance
decrease is not significant, it represents the
continuation of decline since the most recent
peak of 56 in 2021.

Top performing areas

Council’s three highest performing services are:
e Appearance of public areas
e \Waste Management
e Customer Service

Areas for improvement

Council’s three poorest performing services are:
¢ Unsealed roads

e Planning & building permits
e Elderly support services

fx)ﬁﬁﬁi 43 ﬁgi]

for overall performance for overall Council direction
State average - 56 State average - 46
Large rural council - 52 Large rural council - 44
63 000 44
N
for customer service for sealed local roads
State average - 67 State average - 48
Large rural council - 65 Large rural council - 40

s0 (O

for community consultation
State average - 52
Large rural council - 49

o00)
45

for making community
decisions

State average - 51
Large rural council - 48

Full survey results are available on Council’s website - www.swanhill.vic.gov.au
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OUR PEOPLE

Executive Leadership Team

Council is the governing body that appoints a Chief Executive Officer (CEO). The CEO is responsible
for the day-to-day management of operations, in accordance with the strategic directions of the
Council Plan. Four Directors and the CEO form the Executive Leadership Team (ELT) and lead the
organisation.

Scott Barber - Chief Executive Officer

Scott Barber is a results-driven Executive with more than two
decades experience developing and leading high performing
teams within Local Government, utilities and services sectors, as
well as governance roles within the private and public sectors.
Scott has an in-depth understanding of the challenges and
opportunities facing regional communities, with experience
spanning local government, irrigated agriculture, bulk water
management, infrastructure operations and financial leadership.

Scott has held Executive roles at Goulburn-Murray Water, Murray
River Council and most recently Director of Projects & Strategy at
Wagga Wagga City Council. He has completed a Master of
Applied Science, Bachelor of Engineering, Graduate Certificate in
Management and is a Graduate of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors.

Bruce Myers - Director Community and Cultural
Services

Bruce is a qualified librarian who started his career at the
Swan Hill Regional Library, managing the mobile library, in
1994. From 1998 until 2007 Bruce was Manager of the
Library. Bruce became the Director Community and Cultural
Services in 2007. He now heads a team of about 90 people
involved with a wide range of community services, including
community-based aged care, children’s and youth services
and cultural experiences.

Heather Green - Director Development and
Planning

Heather started as Council’s Director Development and
Planning in July 2017. She has extensive local and state
government experience across Australia. During her nine
years as a manager and director at Victoria's Alpine Shire
Council, she focused on sustainable development, planning,
tourism and economic development. Heather was at
Toowoomba for 15 years as the Manager of Strategic
Planning. And during her time working for the Northern
Territory Government as the Katherine Land Manager, she
oversaw planning, Crown leases and grazing licences.
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Bhan Pratap - Director Corporate Services

Bhan has 21 years of dedicated service to Local Government in
Queensland, Northern Territory and Victoria, working within several
regional and outback councils in a variety of positions. Bhan has worked
in senior Executive positions, as CEO, Deputy CEO, Director of
Corporate and Financial Services, and Chief Financial Officer. In addition
to this, he is a Fellow of CPA Australia (FCPA) and has following
qualifications: Bachelor of Arts with majors in Accounting & Financial
Management and Management & Public Administration, Graduate
Diploma in Management and a Master of Business Administration (MBA)
with majors in Local Government, Human Resources & Associations
Management.

Leah Johnston - Director Infrastructure

Leah commenced her role as Director of Infrastructure with Council
in April 2023. Leah is a qualified engineer, and recognised on the
National Engineering Register. She also has an Advanced Diploma
in Project Management, and Diploma in Emergency Management.
She has had a long career in local government, having worked within
the engineering and works departments from a range of Councils in
South West Victoria over the last 25 years, before relocating to Swan
Hill.

As the Director of Infrastructure, her role incorporates engineering,
asset management, road construction and road maintenance, parks
and gardens, waste and the airport.

John McLinden—Acting Director Infrastructure

John joined Council as its Chief Executive Officer in March 2016. He
was previously the Chief Executive Officer of Loddon Shire Council, a
position he held since 2005. John, who has a wealth of experience in
local government, was previously the Director Operations (and
formerly Director Technical Services) at Loddon Shire Council since
local government amalgamations in 1995. A qualified engineer, he
has also held engineering positions at the Shire of Rosedale, City of
Broadmeadows and the Shire of Colac.

John ended his role as CEO in November 2021 and returned for the
Acting role from December 2022 to March 2023.

Svetla Petkova - Director Infrastructure

Svetla began as Director Infrastructure at Council in December 2017.
Svetla is a qualified engineer with a Bachelor of Engineering, a
Masters in Engineering, and a PhD in Fluid Mechanics. Before
joining Council, Svetla spent more than a decade working in asset
management and project delivery in the Victorian water industry, and
enterprise asset management within local government in
Queensland. As Director Infrastructure, she oversees infrastructure
projects and services, manages Council’'s environmental and natural
resource programs, and manages and maintains Council assets.

Svetla ended her role with Council in December 2022.
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Chief Executive Officer

Scott Barber

Director Infrastructure

Svetla Petkova/ John
McLinden (Acting)/
Leah Johnston

Enterprise Assets
Manager

Laura O’Dwyer

Engineering and
Strategic Projects
Manager

Peter Ross

Operations Manager

Domonic Johnston

Director Development
and Planning

Heather Green

Development Manager

Kate Jewell

Pioneer Settlement
General Manager

Jessica Warburton

Economic and
Community
Development Manager

Dennis Hovenden

Director Community
and Cultural Services

Bruce Myers

Family, Youth and
Children’s Services
Manager

Jan McEwan

Libraries Manager

Camille Cullinan

Performing Arts and
Venue Manager

Simon Myers

Art Gallery Director
lan Tully

Director Corporate
Services

Bhan Pratap

Organisational
Development Manager

Helen Morris

Finance Manager
Ash Free

Information and
Technology Manager

Warren Taylor

Project Management
Office Manager

Azam Suleman
(Acting)
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Council employees

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) Council staff by organisational structure,
employment type and gender as at 30 June 2023 is set out below.

Directorate

Corporate
1 1 '0

Community
and Cultural 7.0
Services

Development
and Planning 14.0 16.0 6.0 23.0 11.0 70.0 17.0 26.6 43.6

59 9.0 1.0 2.0 - 7110 59.8 10.6 70.5

Number of staff (FTE)
70
60 -
50
e kTR
40 -
HFemale Ul ime
R paT g
30
Famuls pary-nme
Cagusl
20
) I ‘ '
o , , , _m
Corporate Services Community and Development and Infrastructure Executive
Cultural Services Planning
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OUR PEOPLE

A summary of the number of full time equivalent (FTE) staff categorised by employment classification
and gender as at 30 June 2023 is set out below.

Self-
Employment Classification Male FTE Female FTE described Total FTE

gender FTE

- 23-6 ) 69.4
- 26-6 ) 35.4

- 18-2 - 27.2

. 1 1 .0 ) 19.9
Non-banded positions (includes
salary packages)

Band 1 Band 2 Band 3 Band 4 Band 5 Band 6 Band 7 Band 8 Non-banded
positions
B Male EFT Female EFT M Self-described gender FTE
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Valuing our people

At Swan Hill Rural City Council, we recognise the
importance that each individual plays in achieving our
goals. Our aim is to ensure that Council is a great
place to work, where capability of our people is
nurtured and performance is focused on delivering
exceptional service for our communities.

Council is committed to recruiting and retaining staff,
but recognises ongoing challenges in today’s climate
including: skill shortages, pay condition, an ageing
workforce and staff turnover. To address the
challenges Council is implementing a number of
strategies to keep valuable staff, expand Councils
potential employee base and promote as an employer
of choice. Local Governments are significant
employers within communities and require a diverse
workforce that encompasses a wide range of
occupations.

Council staff strategies include:
e A focus on enhancing the skills of staff to
increase efficiency.
e Implementation of the Workforce Plan including;
0 Succession planning
o Recruitment and retention of staff

o Apprenticeships, traineeships and/or
bursaries

e Offering phased retirement options to extend the
careers of higher skilled staff.

e Ongoing development of systems and processes
to continually improve productivity
e Flexible work arrangements.

Swan Hill Rural City Council delivers substantial levels
of government services, including community, social,
health, physical, regulatory and environmental
services, amongst others. Council also drives and
develops considerable economic activity, supporting
significant employment across the municipality.

Fast Facts

3740

Volunteers

Council is fortunate to have numerous local volunteers
who give their time and expertise to assist Council and
help others in the community. These dedicated
volunteers play an essential role in delivery valuable
services and support.

Professional development

Council is committed to providing learning and
development opportunities to support the continuing
professional development of our staff.

This year staff have accessed a range of learning and
development opportunities including on-the-job training
and coaching; attendance at courses, workshops,
seminars, conferences, webinars, and meetings; and
participation in professional networks. More than 3740
hours of organisational training was provided to staff
during the year, or 17 hours per EFT. Council also
offers study assistance for staff undertaking relevant
undergraduate or postgraduate studies.

Online training

Council continued to offer an expanded suite of
compliance courses through e3Learning - an online
learning program.

All internal courses are developed with industry
experts and the courses are delivered in an engaging
and easy to use format.

Courses are designed in line with relevant legislation,
are fully customisable and are suitable for Council.

The system also allows both administrators and end
users to record attendance and completion of in-
person training (accredited and non-accredited).

Scholarship Program

Council’s Scholarship Program supports up to seven
local students who are completing undergraduate or
TAFE studies during the school year. In addition to
financial support, students receive valuable on-the-job
experience by working at Council during semester
breaks.

Students participating in the program are:

e Amy Cadd, Graduate Diploma in Child, Family
and Community Nursing

e Claudia Free, Bachelor of Design (Architecture)
and Bachelor of Construction Management
(Honours)
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Other staff matters

Equal Employment Opportunity Program

Council is dedicated to providing a workplace where
diversity is embraced and decisions are merit-based.
This includes ensuring fair, equitable and non-
discriminatory consideration being given to all job
applicants, regardless of age, sex, disability, marital
status, pregnancy, sexual orientation, race, religious
beliefs or other irrelevant factors.

All staff undertake mandatory equal opportunity
training every three years and our Equal Employment
Opportunity Policy and Procedure supports our
organisation in fulfilling its obligations under the Equal
Opportunity Act 2010. In 2022/23, 104 employees
undertook Equal opportunity training, as well as 127
employees successfully completing Culture at Work
training.

Council offers bullying and harassment and secual
harassment courses with over 256 staff completing
these programs.

We have six equal opportunity contact officers
available to provide guidance and assistance.

Gender Equality Act 2020

The Gender Equality Act 2020 commenced on 31
March 2021. The Act will improve workplace gender
equality in the Victorian public sector, universities and
local councils. Our Council is committed to this work.

A Gender Equality Committee from volunteers within
Council forms part of this work. This active committee
is focused on compliance obligations in line with the
Gender Equality Legislation. The committee provide
gender-based recommendations and advice to the
Council and Executive Leadership Team.

The Council Gender Equality Action Plan is currently
in the second part of it's 4 year period and has been
an important document for improvements in
increasing gender equality within Council.

The Gender Impact Assessment requirement of the
Gender Equality legislation is being embedded into
the policies, programs and services of Council to
benefit all genders.

Understanding the prevalence of sexual harassment
in a workplace and taking proactive steps to stop
sexual harassment occurring, rather than only
respond after it occurs is a key step in effectively
eliminating it.

In Victoria, employers have a positive duty to prevent
and eliminate sexual harassment in their workplaces
under the Equal Opportunity Act 2010.

Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

OUR PEOPLE

People Matters Survey

This is an independent opinion survey conducted by
the Victorian Public Sector Commission that enables
employees from Councils across Victoria to have their
say. The survey responses remain anonymous and
confidential to create and safe space to express their
opinions on their workplace culture and environment.
It is designed to evaluate morale, engagement,
achievement and overall employee satisfaction.

Preventing violence against women

Council is actively working towards Prevention of
Violence Against Women primarily through promoting
gender equity and building respectful and safe
relationships and breaking down stereotypes of
women. This prevention approach is consistent with
Council’s health and wellbeing planning approach,
which is incorporated into the Council Plan.

Council’s partnership with Women’s Health Loddon
Mallee through the Collective Action for Respect and
Equality (CARE), is leading to further access training
for staff and various actions within the Gender
Equality Action Plan continue to be addressed.

Council also supported the local Prevention of
Violence initiative in late 2022, with a well attended
street walk in orange to the area behind the clock
tower in Swan Hill. There is also an active Gender

Equality Network with agencies from across the LGA,
who support events for the 16 Days of Activism
events.
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Health, safety and wellbeing

Council continued its commitment to staff health, safety and wellbeing by continuing several programs to
encourage a healthy lifestyle and improved work/life balance. Programs include:

. Ergonomic assessments
. OHS and manual handling training
. Providing sunscreen and insect repellent

. Six-weekly issues of the HR Newsletter outlining Council policies and procedures, professional
development and wellbeing

. Employee wellbeing initiatives including the flu vaccination program undertaken by Council’s Public
Health Unit, and subsidised gym memberships

. Ongoing provision of Council’'s Employee Assistance Program for employees requiring support and/
or counselling for work and non-work related matters.

o Continued support of our internal Health and Wellbeing Committee with awareness day activities for
example RUOK day, Men’s health week, LGBTQI+ initiatives, Women'’s health day and international
women’s day.

OHS Committee

Council’'s OHS Committee is made up of 14 committed and competent staff who have been elected by
their designated work group who are accompanied by a member of the management. Together they work
towards compliance with the OH&S Act and Regulations and assist with the delivery of Councils OH&S
management plan. The committee meets every 2 months and met six times during 2022/23.

In 2022/23 there were 21 reported injuries compared to 17 in the previous year. There were 0 standard
WorkCover Claims, compared to 2 in the previous year and 1 minor WorkCover Claims compared to 2 in
the previous year.

Staff Recognition Awards

Harmony Strategic Pillar Winner and overall winner: Jacinta Chaplin, Aboriginal Community
Development Officer (pictured)

Liveability Strategic Pillar Winner: Maternal Child Health Team

Prosperity Strategic Pillar Winner: Cynthia Hewitt, Team Member Regional Livestock Exchange
Innovation/Customer Service Winners: Community Care Team

Leadership Strategic Pillar Winner: Barry lIsley, Outdoor Team Member & OHS Representative
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Every year Council acknowledges service and presents awards to staff who have reached service
milestones. Eleven staff were presented with Staff Service Awards at the annual all-staff function in
December 2022.

Staff service awards

10 years of service

Maryanne Darroch Sharon Bennett Josefina Gabriel

Adam Hunter Jamie Scott Rebecca Herman

20 years of service

Rhonice Graham Steven Brown

25 years of service

Kerry Young Eileen Morath
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OUR PERFORMANCE

Our performance

Integrated strategic planning and reporting framework

Part 4 of the Local Government Act 2020 requires councils to prepare the following:

A Community Vision (for at least the next 10 financial years);

A Council Plan (for at least the next 4 financial years);

A Financial Plan (for at least the next 10 financial years);

An Asset Plan (for at least the next 10 financial years);

A Revenue and Rating Plan (for at least the next 4 financial years);
An Annual Budget (for the next 4 financial years);

A Quarterly Budget Report;

An Annual Report (for each financial year); and

Financial Policies.

The Act also requires councils to prepare:

o A Workforce Plan (including projected staffing requirements for at least 4 years);

The following diagram shows the relationships between the key planning and reporting documents
that make up the integrated strategic planning and reporting framework for local government. It also
shows that there are opportunities for community and stakeholder input and feedback.

10+ years 4+ years Performance Monitoring
& Accountability

Repeorting on
Community Vision

MPHWP
*|  (Municipal Public Health
and Wellbeing Plan) |

Vision, Strategy, | Community Vision ls Council Plan
and poljcy,

Other Strategic

D Council Plan Reporting

—

Quarterly Finance &

Asset Plan | L Project Reporting.
> Workfi Pl
Resource _— Budget '
managEment Revenue and Rating
Financial Plan L L Plan
Annual Report
[ Palicy & Strategy Review ]
Cyclic and
Ongofng [ Business / Service Planning, Service Review and Continuous Improvement ] Ml
Processeg
L Long-term Financial Modelling and Asset Planning ]
Swan Hill Rural City Council - Annual Report 2022/23 49

Page: 63 |
243 ATT: 2.2.1



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Community Vision and Council Plan

The Community Vision and Council Plan 2021-25 includes strategic objectives strategies for achieving
these for the four-year period, strategic indicators for monitoring achievement, and the Municipal Public
Health and Wellbeing Plan.

Performance

Council’s performance for the year has been reported against each strategic initiative to demonstrate how
Council is performing in relation to the 2021-25 Council Plan.

Performance has been measured as follows:

e Results achieved in relation to the strategic indicators in the Council Plan.
e Progress in relation to the major initiatives defined in the Budget.

e Services funded in the Budget and the persons or sections of the community who are provided those
services.

e Results against the prescribed Service Performance Indicators and measures.

Strategic Pillars

The Community Vision and Council Plan is supported by four themed pillars as detailed below which form
the key directions and focus.

We will be a healthy, connected and growing community supported
by a range of infrastructure and services.

Liveability
We will continue to build and strengthen a prosperous local
economy, through sustainable growth and education. We will focus
on creating jobs and wealth through adding value to existing
strengths in all areas of our economy.

Prosperity
We will ensure accountable leadership, advocacy and transparent
decision making.
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Council Plan Initiatives

The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan, including results
achieved in relation to the strategic initiatives included in the Plan.

v Completed

>> In progress/continuing in 2023/24

- Carried over to 2023/24

Council Plan Initiative Action Status
Complete stage 1 of Vibrant Villages project v
Continue to implement relevant actions of the Swan Hill os
Riverfront Masterplan

Attractive urban areas and Complete and implement the Robinvale Riverfront Masterplan >>

regional townships Develop Nyah Riverfront Masterplan >>
Develop Boundary Bend Riverfront Masterplan >>
Develop a Small Town Strategy >>
Develop and build houses on Council owned property >>

Ensure adequate provision | Continue to implement the Robinvale housing strategy >>

of a variety of safe and

secure housing Continue development of Tower Hill stages >>
Assist South West Development Precinct developers >>
Advocate for the completion of the Murray Basin Rail Project >>
Advocate for the continual improvement of the Murray Valley o>

Excellent transport links to Highway and upgrade of the Robinvale-Sea Lake Road

allow ease of movement Actively participate in the Central Murray Regional Transport v
(CMRT) Forum
Implement relevant actions from the CMRT strategy v

Accessible open spaces Implement effective diversion and resuse of waste resources >>

and healthy rivers and lakes
Develop detailed plans for the lade Boga-Swan Hill trail >>

Encourage active and Support initiatives leading to better outcomes for children and

healthy lifestyles for people o >>

s families

of all ages, abilities and

interests Partner with agencies to address preventable illnesses and o>
active lifestyles

Spaces v.v.h.ere people of all Reinvigorate performance spaces across the area, including

ages, abilities and . . v

. Robinvale Community Art Centre
backgrounds can flourish
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Major Initiatives

The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in

the 2022/23 Budget.

Major Initiative

Progress

Tower Hill Stage 15 residential estate development (Budget

$1,045,000 Actual $8,445)

$2,500,000 Actual $ 670,777) Incomplete
Robinvale Leisure Centre expansion (Budget $2,840,000
Actual $2,309,946) Incomplete
Art Gallery National Print and Drawing Awards (Budget $31,000 Actual| Complete
$36,684)
Re-seal sealed roads (Budget $1,335,400 Actual $1,115,303) Complete
Re-sheet unsealed gravel roads (Budget $792,500 Actual $504,559) Incomplete
g (Budg p
Complete road works funded by the Federal Roads to Recovery Incomplete
program (Budget $1,434,160 Actual $736,065) P
Ronald Street Sub-division — increase housing supply (Budget
$1,443,000 Actual $530,018) Incomplete
Deliver the roadside weeds and pest management program (Budget Comblete
$75,000 Actual $75,000). P
Swan Hill Landfill — construction of a new waste cell (Budget Incomplete
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Services funded in 2022/23 Budget

The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2022/23 Budget
and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Service Area

Description of services provided

Provide statutory planning services including processing

Budget

Actual

Variance
$000

(Income to
Council) / Cost
to Council

all planning applications, providing advice and making 414
decisions about development proposals that require a (9_8)
planning permit. Represent Council at the Victorian Civil
and Administrative Tribunal where necessary. Monitor
Building and planning Council’s Planning Scheme and prepare major policy
statutory services documents shaping the future of the municipality.
Provide statutory building services to the community,
including processing building permits, emergency
management responsibilities, fire safety inspections,
swimming pool barrier audits and complaints, and illegal
building works investigations.
Co-ordinate food safety, immunisations and 738
management of public health concerns to ensure an 679
acceptable state of physical, mental and social (5_9)
. wellbeing is maintained within the community. This
Public health and . . .
. service also provides staff at school crossings
regulatory services L .
throughout the municipality, animal management
services, parking control and enforcement and provides
education, regulation and enforcement of the general
Local Law and relevant state legislation.
3,261
A wide range of programs and services giving the
: e 3.780
Leisure centres community a chance to participate in cultural, health, 519
education, and leisure activities that contribute to the
community’s general wellbeing.
Provide the community with well-maintained public 3,290
areas with a focus on community access and safety. 2,972
Maintain urban streets and public areas, including (318)
Amenity and safety footpaths, in a clean and litter-free state and provide
access to public conveniences and lighting of public
areas. Provide and maintain efficient and effective open
and underground drainage systems.
1,487
Maintain and renew community buildings and facilities, 1,100
Community buildings including community centres, public halls and pre- (387)
schools.
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Budget
Actual
Variance
$000

(Income to
Council) / Cost
to Council

Service Area Description of services provided

2,428
Maintain Council’s parks, reserves, playgrounds and
. . . . . 3,013
Recreation streetscapes in a functional and visually pleasing
landscape. 585
504
Swimming pools Provide qugllty, acc.eSS|bIle aquatlc'facnmes tha_t . 403
support a high quality of life for residents and visitors. (101)
5,095
Manage Council’s roads and associated infrastructure 29203
Traffic and assets. Ongoing maintenance and renewal work to ==
transportation services municipal infrastructure assets including sealed roads, (2,892)
unsealed roads, footpaths and aerodromes.
435
Advocate for, and assist to deliver environmental
. o 481
projects as part of Council's aim to become more
Environmental sustainable in both built and natural environments. (916)
management This service also provides emergency management
planning and support ensuring the municipality is
prepared in the event of an emergency.
Provid t llecti i including kerbsid 1,333
rovide waste collection services, including kerbside
9 (1.001)

collection of garbage, hard waste and green waste
from households and some commercial properties. (2,334)
This service area aims to operate at a surplus in order
to make provision for future waste management
service and compliance costs, including the
construction of new cells and compliance with
environmental protection guidelines.

Waste management

(495)

Residential Facilitating the eff|0|.ent.development Qf Council owned (510)
land and the maximisation of economic returns to rate

development . . (15)

payers from its realisation.

) . . 1,655

Performing arts, art gallery and library services. A 2044

customer-focused service that caters for the cultural, B

educational and recreational needs of residents, while 389

Cultural services offering a place for the community to meet, relax and
enjoy the facilities and services. Includes the
operation and maintenance of the Swan Hill Town Hall
and Performing Arts Centre.
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Service Performance Indicators

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and
measures.

*Please note expected ranges are set by the State Government

Result 2023 Reason

column colour

Within expected range

Outside of expected range

Service/lndicator/ Result Result Result Result . . ..
Material Variation

Measure 2020 2021 2022 2023

Aquatic Facilities Sampling for remotely located
swimming pools was unable to be
performed due to travel time and
Health inspections of 0.6 04 1.0 0.6 opening hours being outside
aquatic facilities Council employee work schedule.
[Number of authorised officer
inspections of Council aquatic
facilities / Number of Council
aquatic facilities]

Service standard

Utilisation Utilisation of aquatic facilities has
b . increased due to COVID-19
g%ﬁ;;?n of aquatic 4.56 343 5.58 6.17 restrictions being lifted in late

2022, allowing full use of facilities.
Previous years had restrictions
which decreased usage of these

[Number of visits to aquatic
facilities / Municipal

population]

venues.
Service cost The cost decrease is due to

. i maintenance performed on various

Cost of aquatic facilities $13.69 $18.56 $14.91 $12.39 facilities bringing down running
[Dirg(_:t cost of aquatic expenses considerably, for
facilities less income example reduced water usage
received / Number of visits to costs, chemical and maintenance
the aquatic facilities]

costs.
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Result
2020

Result
2021

Result
2022

Result
2023

Material Variation

Animal Management

Timeliness
Time taken to action animal 1.47 1.07 1.20 1.31
requests
[Number of days between receipt
and first response action for all
animal management requests /
Number of animal management
requests]
Service standard Animals reclaimed from the
) . ound remains low due to costs
[Number of animals reclaimed / vaccinations.
Number of animals collected]
x100
Service standard This decrease may be
. attributed to the higher cost of
Animals rehomed 67.27% | 67.42% | 69.31% | 60.95% |lying and caring for & cat or
[Number of animals rehomed/ dog and the extra expenses
Number of animals collected] associated with adoption fees,
x100 vet fees and other costs
associated with caring for
animals.
Service cost Reduction in costs per animal
. was due to several factors
Cost of animal management $10.01 $10.30 $18.38 $14.02 |inciuding an increase in
service per population registered animals and
[Direct cost of the animal population, an ipcrease in
management service / income from animal .
Population] reglstratlons. and reclaimed/
rehomed animals, and the
major projects due for this year
were rescheduled to 2023/24
which resulted in a saving in
2022/23.
Health and safety
Animal management 0 100% 0 0

prosecutions

[Number of successful animal
management prosecutions/ Total
number of animal management
prosecutions] x 100
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. . Result Result Result Result . o
Service/lndicator/Measure 2020 2021 2022 2023 Material Variation
Food safety This increase is due to 2
. . complaints being remote venues
Timeliness that only operate on very limited
The time taken to action 1.80 1.90 2.56 3.17  |daysand hours.

food complaints

[Number of days between
receipt and first response
action for all food complaints /
Number of food complaints]

Service standard 100% of Class 1 and 85% of

Cl 2 food i ived
Food safety assessments | 84.97% | 28.07% | 79.63% | 84.76% |anannual food inspoction in

[Number of registered class 1 2022.
food premises and class 2
food premises that receive an
annual food safety
assessment in accordance
with the Food Act 1984 /
Number of registered class 1
food premises and class 2
food premises that require an
annual food safety
assessment in accordance
with the Food Act 1984] x 100

Service cost This cost has increased due to

high ber of statutory food
Cost of food safety service | $488.61 | $510.35 | $513.99 | $690.59 Sfmglre';“r';‘qf{ré’d Z:duc%%p?;nt

[Direct cost of the food safety samples conducted this year.
service / Number of food Plus an increase in training
premises registered or notified completed by the Environmental
in accordance with the Food Health Officers this year.

Act 1984]

Health and safety Increase in outcomes is due to a
L . dedicated Environmental Health
Critical and major non- 100.00% | 66.67% | 40.00% 100% | Officer was employed to complete
compliance outcome Food and Safety Inspections. Al

notifications critical major and crucial non-

compliance outcome notifications
were followed up within the 2022
calendar year.

[Number of critical non-
compliance notifications and
major non-compliance
notifications about a food
premises followed up /
Number of critical non-
compliance notifications and
major non-compliance
notifications about food
premises]
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Material Variation

Roads
Satisfaction of use

The notable increase on the
previous year's figures is due
to the major flood event
combined with localised

Sealed local road requests 6.87 6.76 5.96 14.64 S
flooding in what has proven to

[Number of sealed local road be one of the wettest years

requests / Kilometres of sealed on record.

local roads] x 100

Condition

Sealed local roads maintained | 99.28% | 99.28% | 99.37% 99.27%

to condition standards

[Number of kilometres of sealed

local roads below the renewal

intervention level set by Council /

Kilometres of sealed local road]

x100

Service cost There has been a reduction
from the previous years where

reconstruction remote areas, which

[Direct cost of sealed local road mcrteased the previous years

reconstruction / Square metres of cost.

sealed local roads reconstructed]

Service cost Focus on urban roads with
shorter segments has resulted

Cost of sealed local road $4.98 $5.58 $4.80 $6.79  |inarise ingcost this financial

resealing year as shorter segments

[Direct cost of sealed local road result in a higher rate charged.

resealing / Square metres of

sealed local roads resealed]

Satisfaction The decrease on the previous

. . . ear’s satisfaction with sealed
Satisfaction with sealed local 44 52 51 44 |)floads can be attributed to the

roads

[Community satisfaction rating
out of 100 with how Council has
performed on the condition of
sealed local roads]

major flood event combined
with localised flooding in what
has proven to be one of the
wettest years on record.
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. . Result Result Result Result . ..
Service/Indicator/Measure 2020 2021 2022 2023 Material Variation

Waste Collection
Satisfaction

Kerbside bin collection 28.37 112.19 118.16 115.82
requests

[Number of kerbside garbage
and recycling bin collection
requests / Number of kerbside
bin collection households] x 1000

Service standard This figure includes numbers

of when bins were not put out
Kerbside collection bins 1.76 5.78 3.99 5.19 for collection. P
missed

[Number of kerbside garbage
and recycling collection bins
missed / Number of scheduled
kerbside garbage and recycling
collection bin lifts] x 10,000

Service cost Due to many newly
constructed dwellings, the
collection service bin collection services

increased. The state levy
went up which increased
contractor collection costs.

[Direct cost of the kerbside
garbage bin collection service /
Number of kerbside garbage
collection bins]

Service cost This increase is due to an

I CPIli d
Cost of kerbside recyclables | $42.38 | $78.51 | $80.40 | $88.77 |{ne contract and am incroase

collection service in the number of newly
constructed dwellings that

[Direct cost of the kerbside ; h
require service.

recyclables bin collection
service / Number of kerbside
recyclables collection bins]

Waste diversion

Kerbside collection waste 27.67% 29.51% 30.92% 29.28%
diverted from landfill

[Weight of recyclables and green
organics collected from kerbside
bins / Weight of garbage,
recyclables and green organics
collected from kerbside bins] x
100
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Strategic Pillar 2: Prosperity
Council Plan Initiatives

The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan, including results
achieved in relation to the strategic initiatives included in the Plan.

v Completed >> In progress/continuing - Carried over

Council Plan Initiative Action Status

Support our key industries Develop an Economic recovery plan in response to COVID-19 -
Continue to support existing businesses to grow through the
) - >>
implementation of the Better Approvals process

Encourage the growth and

development of our economy
Actively pursue the establishment of a Designated Area Migration o>
Agreement (DAMA)
Deliver and review Council’s capital works program and Major o>
Projects Plan each year

Assets for our current and - - -

future needs Rgvnew current assgts arjd |dent_|fy futurg needs - create a program to o>
bridge the gap and identify funding requirements
Continue to plan and seek funding to implement the development of o>
community infrastructure
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Major Initiatives

The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the
2022/2023 Budget.

Major Initiative Progress
Provide seed funding for economic development initiatives as identified in Incomolete
the Economic Development Strategy (Budget $75,000 Actual $43,572) P
Livestock Exchange anti-slip surfacing and drainage (Budget $82,000
Actual $51,000) Incomplete
McCallum Street footpath (Budget $379,160 Actual $527,131) Complete
Swan Hill Town Hall exterior refurbishment (Budget $440,000  Actual
$150,570) Incomplete
Art Gallery and interpretive centre development — Our Region Our Rivers Incomolete
funding (Budget $7,196,790 Actual $51,413) P
Activation of lighting and digital content in the Pioneer Settlement (Budget Complete
$330,000 Actual $439,904) P
Monash Avenue Nyah West toilet block renewal (Budget $165,000 Actual Incomolete
$12,692) P
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Services funded in 2022/23 Budget

The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2022/23 Budget
and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Budget
Actual
Variance
Service Area Description of services provided $000
(Income to
Council) / Cost
to Council
Provide and maintain caravan park facilities to a (120)
Caravan parks standard that promotes local tourism and supports a 33
high quality of life.
5,277
Assist the organisation with economic development to 3.689
facilitate an environment that is conducive to a
. ; . i (1,588)
Economic development | sustainable and growing local business sector, and
provide opportunities for local residents to improve their
skill levels and access employment.
. . 1,086
Care for and conserve the Pioneer Settlement and its
collection. Market and promote the Settlement as a 1172
Pioneer Settlement tourist destination, provide quality visitor programs and 86
promote the sale of merchandise as an additional
source of income.
1
. . . " , 206
Provide a livestock selling facility and associated 205
Livestock exchange services to primary producers, purchasers and stock
agents.
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Service Performance Indicators

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and
measures. *Please note expected ranges are set by the State Government

Service/lndicator/Measure

Result
2020

Result
2021

OUR PERFORMANCE

Result
2022

Result
2023

Material Variation

Statutory Planning

This increase in time taken to
decide planning applications

that did not set aside Council’s
decision in relation to a
planning application / Number
of VCAT decisions in relation
to planning applications] x100

Timeliness is a result of a reduction in

Time taken to decide 49 41 79 96 planning staff in 2022/23 and

planning applications difficulty in recruiting for
planning positions.

[The median number of days

between receipt of a planning

application and a decision on

the application]

Service standard The decrease in planning

. L. applications decided within

Plar_mlng a.pp'llcatlor{s 85.53% 96.39% 71.28% 59.85% required time frames is a

decided within required result of a reduction in

timeframes planning staff in 2022/23 and

[Number of planning difficulty in recruiting for

application decisions made planning positions.

within 60 days for regular

permits and 10 days for

VicSmart permits / Number of

planning application decisions

made] x 100

Service cost Contractors were engaged

, during the year, where

Cost. of statutory planning $3,417.33 | $2,675.24 | $3,217.67 | $3,967.19 Council have been

service unsuccessful in recruiting

[Direct cost of statutory permanent staff which

planning service / Number of resulted in increased

planning applications associated costs.

received]

Decision making In 2022/23 Council had 5

Council’s planning 0 0 0 g |Manning applications
referred to VCAT with 3

decisions upheld at VCAT being upheld and 2 were not

[Number of VCAT decisions compared to previous years

where we had no planning
decisions upheld at VCAT.
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Community funding

Swan Hill Rural City Council recognises, respects and values the contribution that community,
sporting and not-for-profit organisations make within our community. One of the ways Council does
this is through the annual Community Grants program. Recipients of the 2022/23 Community Grants
are detailed in the tables that follow:

Community Development Fund

The Community Development Fund provides grants of up to $5,000 to eligible community groups and
organisations. Funding may be given for projects including minor repairs or upgrades to community
facilities; purchase of new or upgraded equipment; new programs or activities; local sustainability
initiatives or environmental innovations; increasing club capacity; OHS or risk management issues
and more.

Organisation Approved Project description

amount
Robinvale Swan Hill Rifle Club Inc. $5,000 | Concreting works to target gallery
Lake Boga Bowling Club Inc. $5,000 | Concreting works to driveway entrance

Swan Hill Genealogical and Historical Society $2,914.50 |Computer replacement

Inc.
Ultima Football Netball Club Inc. $2,500 Purchase of new BBQ
Swan Hill Bowls Club Inc. $5.,000 Replace section of acoustic ceiling tiles

with plasterboard in clubrooms

Speewa Heritage Collectors Club $4,000 | Upgrade toilet facilities at Speewa Hall

Chinkapook Reserve Committee of

Management $2,580 New vacuum cleaner for Chinkapook Hall

1%t Lake Boga Sea Scouts $2,600 |Upgrade to lighting in clubrooms

$4.834 Installation of commercial dishwasher in

Robinvale Lawn Tennis Club clubrooms

Tyntynder Football Netball Club Inc. $1,000 | Replacement of defibrillator at clubrooms

$3.500 Installation of lighting along frontage onto

Swan Hill Theatre Group McCrae Street

$5.,000 Replacement of recreation reserve water

Mallee Steam, Oil & Machinery Club Inc. tanks

Robinvale Storm Rugby League Football Club $2,000 | Purchase of equipment

Swan Hill Neighbourhood House $5,000 | Concreting works to driveway
Kooloonong Natya Landcare Group $1,500 Fencing of Piangil Depot
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The Event Support Fund provides grants and logistical support to community groups and event organisers to
develop new events, or existing events that provide significant economic and/or social benefit to the region.

Event Support Fund

Of the first section of applications listed in the table below and received in the official round for 22/23, Council
allocated $80,468.75 worth of funding (cash and/or logistical support).

After this round Council allocated further funding towards:
. Yana Waingi Walk in Lights Swan Hill and Kartini Waingi Water Lights Robinvale - $15,000

. $50,000 in funding from the 21/22 FY was rolled over to fund the Go North Arts Festival 2022
($25,000) and RocKwiz LIVE Under the Stars 2023 ( $25,000).

o There was also some additional ad-hoc expenditure and/or allocations amounted to an estimated
$4,461

The rollover of previous Event Support Fund and Local Entertainment grant allocations into the 22/23 FY
amounted to $53,000 (excluding Go North and Rockwiz).
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Logistical support

Total Value of
the Grant
Approved

(cash and if
any logistical
support)

Cash
Sponsorship
acquitted and
received by the
applicant
2022/23

May Carnival $3,000 $2,000
Celebrating 100 Years Since the
Soldier Settlement of Kooloonong
Natya $2,000 $2,000
: . $10,000
Brew & Chew Festival 2022 POPE permit fee, event permitfee, | (§7,000 cash, | Rolled over to
raffic management and signage, $3.000 logistical | 23/24
venue hire and toilet cleaning. subport) 9

Cinema Pop Up

POPE permit fee (if POPE permit
required), event permit fee, toilet

$3,000 logistical

Rolled over to

cleaning and venue hire. support only 23/24
$7,000 ($5,000
Acoustic Vibes Swan Hill POPE permit fee, event permit fee, | cash and Rolled over to
venue hire and cleaning. $2,000 23/24
logistical)
Australian Police Bowling
Championships $2,500 $2,500
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Logistical support

Total Value of
the Grant
Approved
(cash and if
any logistical

Cash
Sponsorship
acquitted and
received by the
applicant
2022/23

POPE permit fee (if

support)

required), event permit fee, | $3,000
2023 Robinvale Euston 80 Ski Race venue hire, traffic logistical
management and signage, support only
cleaning and depot support.
$2,500
Robinvale Lawn Tennis Club 2023 SHRCC 2 x trophies/ ( $2,000 cash
; - and $500 $2,000
Easter Tournament medallions for juniors. L
logistical
support)
$1,102.50
($1,000 cash
Annuello 100 Celebration Event permit fee. and $102.50 $1,000
logistical
support)
The Spirit of Rural Communities $2,000 $2,000
Swan Hill Badminton Veterans
Tournament 2023 $1.500 $1.500
Nyah District Christmas Carnival $2,000 $2,000
Swan Hill Basketball $5.000
Swan Hill Junior Invitational Basketball | Stadium venue hire and lo ’istical Rolled over to
Tournament Pioneer Settlement Lodges sug ort onl 23/24
accommodation. PP y
Robinvale Swan Hill Rifle Club Annual
Prize Meeting $1,815 $1815
$1,000 ($1,000
o . Providing local information cash, no value
érs]sac;?aiggghci)rgquet Regional material to place into your assigned to $1,000
P P promotional bags. logistical
support N/A)
$3,700 ($2,000
. cash and
. POPE permit fee, event Rolled over to
Blues On The Murray Swan Hil permit fee and venue hire. 51 700 2023/24
logistical
support)
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Total Value of

K‘e Gran(tj Cash Sponsorship
e pprove acquitted and
LSS0 (cash and if received by the
any logistical applicant 2022/23
support)
Marking the Centenary of the Ultima War $1,000 $1,000
emorial
NAB League Game - 2023 $3,000 Grant cancelled
POPE permit fee, event
permit fee, venue hire, $3,500
Mallee Almond Blossom Festival traffic management and logistical
signage, depot support and | support only
cleaning.
$800 ($800
cash, no
Bollards and SHRCC value
Speewa Swap Meet banner. assigned to $800
logistical
support N/A)
$11,000
POPE permit fee, event ($5,000 cash
Swan Hill Region Food and Wine Festival | permit fee, venue hire and | and $6,000 $5,000
cleaning. logistical
support)
) $1,500
Swan Hill Easter Market Day ;I'ira:falc (rananagement and logistical
gnage. support only
) $1,500
Swan Hill Market Day 1raffic management and | o gistical
gnage. support only
$5,000
Event permit fee, traffic ($3,000 cash
Robinvale Christmas Carnival management, signage and | and $2,000 $3,000
depot support. logistical
support)
$1051.25
($1,000 cash
Iéggg Boga Yacht Club Easter Regatta Event permit fee. and $51.25 $1,000
logistical
support)
Swan Hill & District Garden Club Inc. -
40th Birthday Celebrations $1,000 $1,000
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Local Entertainment Grants

In response to the impacts of COVID-19, during February 2021 Council introduced the Local
Entertainment Grants to offer businesses the opportunity to apply for up to 2 grants, of up to $500 each;
to pay for entertainment within their premises. It is hoped that these grants have and will help
strengthen business in the short-term by encouraging patronage. This grant program was not fully
exhausted but has now closed due to a lengthy application period. Outstanding grants were allowed an
extension beyond the 31 December 2021 and any remaining have been rolled over into 22/23 to allow
business to still benefit. The Local Entertainment Grant component of the Event Support Fund had an
allocation of $25,000. The below table notes a record of grants rolled over into the 22/23 FY.

Approved

Applicant Total value acquitted

amount

Robinvale Wines $1,000 $1,000

Peachy’s Bar $1,000 g;?nrltezxpired — not
Swan Hill Football Netball Club $500 $500
Manangatang Hotel $1,000 $1,000

Spoons Riverside ( Swan Hill Club) $1,000 $1,000

Grant expired — not

Manangatang Racecourse $500 claimed
Robinvale Lawn Tennis Club $500 $500
Tyntynder Football Netball Club $1,000 Grant expired — not
’ claimed

. Grant expired — not

Jack Bar and Bistro $1,000 claimed
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Strategic Pillar 3: Harmony

Council Plan Initiatives

The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan, including results
achieved in relation to the strategic initiatives included in the Plan.

v Completed >> In progress/continuing - Carried over to

Our elderly and vulnerable

are cared for Review Community Access and Inclusion Strategy (CAIS). >>

Work in partnership with local agencies to prevent all forms of

. . >>
Family Violence.
All members of our Devel 4 imol Gender Equality Action Plan (GEAP v
Communities are supported evelop and implement a Gender Equality Action Plan ( )
Ensure that we consider people of all abilities in the o>
development of infrastructure and events
Continue to offer Aboriginal scholarships and leadership o>
Encourage and support opportunities
community leadership Continue to assist to develop Our Place identifying an os
Aboriginal language name and business model
Formal inclusion of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander input v
Celebration and recognition | in Art Gallery programming and cultural activities
of Aboriginal and Torres
Strait history and culture Support Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander days of v
significance
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Major Initiatives

The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the
2022/23 Budget

Deliver the Empower Youth Initiative (Budget $156,620 Actual
$202,351) Complete

Coordinate the L2P Driver program in Swan Hill and Robinvale Comblete
(Budget $139,260 Actual $101,256) P

Youth Support — Engage program (Budget $90,000 Actual $36,352) Incomplete

Services funded in 2022/23 Budget

7
. . 168
o A range of home and community care services for the aged
Aged and disability and people with a disability including home delivered meals, (175)
services personal care, transport, dementia care, home
maintenance, housing support and senior citizen clubs.
1,139
770

Family oriented support services including pre-schools,

Family and children maternal and child health, youth services, out of school (369)

services hours, and holiday programs.
663
. N . 805
Effective and ongoing liaison with, and support to, 142
Community community and recreation groups. Support for the
development development and implementation of Community Plans and
liaison with our Indigenous community.
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Service Performance Indicators

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and
measures. *Please note expected ranges are set by the State Government

Usage of the physical
collection has slightly

Utilisation decreased as usage of
Physical library collection 1.24 0.89 0.97 0.92 the electronic collection
usage has increased.

[Number of physical library
collection item loans / Number
of physical library collection
items]

Resource standard The decrease in the
Recently purchased library | 48.61% = 43.45% | 41.20% @ 37.07%  Percentage of items
collection purchased in the last 5
years is due to an
increase in the number of
collection items that are

[Number of library collection
items purchased in the last
five years / Number of library

collection items] x 100 now more than 5 years
old.

Participation

Active library borrowers 16.28% 14.52% 13.35% 13.41%

[The sum of the number of
active library borrowers in the
last 3 financial years / the sum
of the Municipal population in
the last 3 financial years] x
100

Service cost

Cost of library service $46.96 $44.18 $50.14 $51.98

[Direct cost of library service /
population]

Further information can be found at https://knowyourcouncil.vic.gov.au/
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Service Performance Indicators cont...

Service standard 102.13% | 102.21% @ 102.01% @ 100.69%

Infant enrolments in the MCH
service

[Number of infants enrolled in the
MCH service / Number of birth
notifications received] x 100

Service cost

Cost of the MCH service $91.19 $109.86 @ $121.52 = $110.69

[Cost of the MCH service / Hours
worked by MCH nurses]

Participation Slight increase due to

C 0 0 0 o increased capacity to follow
Participation in the MCH 75.04% 80.05% 82.74% 89.19% up on overdue Key Age

and Stage visits each
[Number of children who attend month.

the MCH service at least once (in

the year) / Number of children

enrolled in the MCH service] x

service

100

Participation Council have an agreement
. 0 o o o to provide MCH services

Pam'CIpat/on in t'ht'a MCH. 66.20% 76.26% 77.50% 83.57% on behalf of MDAS in Swan

service by Aboriginal children Hill It is noted that there is

[Number of Aboriginal children an increase in Aboriginal

who attend the MCH service at children/ families enrolling

least once (in the year) / Number in mainstream services

of Aboriginal children enrolled in over the 2022/23 year.

the MCH service] x 100

Satisfaction Slight reduction in the

Participation in 4-week key 96.65% @ 94.01% & 9599% 92443  Participationinthe 4-

week Key Age and Stage
visit due to an increase
[Number of 4-week key age and in neonates having

stage visits / Number of birth
notifications received]

age and stage visit

longer term postnatal
stays in Special Care or
Intensive Care
Nurseries.
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Strategic Pillar 4: Leadership

Council Plan Initiatives

The following statement reviews the performance of Council against the Council Plan, including results
achieved in relation to the strategic initiatives included in the Plan.

v Completed >> In progress/continuing - Carried over

Council Plan Initiative Action Status
Invest in the development of employees to enable a highly o
Well managed resources for | skilled and engaged workforce
a sustainable future
Develop and implement a Workforce Development Plan v
Implement a Project Management Framework and system >>
Develop and implement a Strategic Asset Management v
. lan and supporting Asset Management plans
Provide robust governance P PP 9 9 P
and effective leadership Provide Councillors with professional development and o
support to ensure effective governance
Work with Town Representative groups to better plan and o
deliver projects
Sound, sustainable:
« Financial management Deliver projects on time, on budget and within scope >>
o Excellence in service
delivery V.Vorkilrlg to budget and ensure future planning to meet v
» Strategic planning financial needs
Effective and authentic Review our use of social media platforms across Council o
engagement with our with a view of increasing Council’s exposure and ensuring
Continue quarterly Coffee with a Councillor around the o
Visible presence in our municipality
community Create a culture where staff are ambassadors for the o
Council
Create meaningful Continue involvement in community groups >>
partnerships across our
communities Continue to support and work with Swan Hill Incorporated >>
Continue to advocate on the following issues:
¢ Improved Healthcare for our people, including a new
hospital for Swan Hill
Strong relationship with State e A new Murray River Brldgg at Swan .H|II
o Complete the Murray Basin Rail Project >>
and Federal governments to H : q bling infrastruct
influence advocacy and » Housing and enabling infrastructure
fundi uniti Better use of environmental water and the development of
unding opportunities a plan specific to the Murray River between Swan Hill and
Robinvale
Review Council's advocacy strategy on an annual basis >>
Working together in Positively promote our region as a great place >>
promotion of the municipality | Continue to work with Murray River Tourism and Swan Hill os
Incorporated to promote the municipality
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Major Initiatives

The following statement reviews the progress of Council in relation to major initiatives identified in the
2022/23 Budget

Major Initiative Progress

Further develop Council IT processes as identified in the Data and Incomplete
Technology Strategy (Budget $660,000 Actual $323,695) P
Centenary Park Robinvale Masterplan (Budget $60,000 Actual $38,083) | "comPlete

. Complete
IT Equipment Replacements (Budget $160,000 Actual $119,625)

Services funded in 2022/23 Budget

The following statement provides information in relation to the services funded in the 2022/23 Budget
and the persons or sections of the community who are provided the service.

Budget

Actual
Variance
$000

(Income to
Council) / Cost
to Council

Service Area Description of services provided

Governance includes the Mayor, Councillors, Chief 2,107

c il q Executive Officer, Executive Leadership Team and 2092
ounctliors an associated support, which cannot easily be attributed to

corporate management (15)

the direct service provision areas.

. Proactively communicate Council decisions, programs 272
Com.munl’Fy and events to the community using a range of methods, 200
relationships and assist the organisation to respond to community (7_2)

issues as they arise.

Manage Council’s offices along with human and financial (27,208)

resources to effectively and efficiently fulfil Council (31,882)
Management of resources | objectives. This includes rate raising and collection, (4,674)

customer service, human resource management, depot
and office site management, Council finances,
information technology and records management.

Provide for the planning, design and project 1,175

Infrastructure planning management of Council’s capital works program, and 1,215

and management manage Council’s plant and fleet assets and depot 40
operations.
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Service Performance Indicators

The following statement provides the results of the prescribed service performance indicators and
measures. *Please note expected ranges are set by the State Government.

Result Result Result Result

Service/Indicator/Measure 2020 2021 2022 2023 Material Variation

Governance Decisions made at closed
meetings to the public is
Transparency determined by the nature

Council decisions made at 4.37% 4.04% 4.93% 5.56% g:;zg decisions being
meetings closed to the public '

[Number of Council resolutions
made at meetings of Council, or at
meetings of a delegated
committee consisting only of
Councillors, closed to the public /
Number of Council resolutions
made at meetings of Council, or at
meetings of a delegated
committee consisting only of
Councillors] x 100

Consultation and
engagement

Satisfaction with community

consultation and engagement 52 51 48 50

[Community satisfaction rating out
of 100 with how Council has
performed on community
consultation and engagement]

Attendance A Countback was held in

. this period due to
Councillor attendance at 95.92% | 94.44% | 90.00% 89.52% Cougcillor being elected to
Council Meetings State Government which
reduced attendance until a
new Councillor was
appointed to that elected
position.

[The sum of the number of
Councillors who attended each
Council Meeting / (Number of
council meetings) x (Number of
Councillors elected at the last
Council general election)] x 100

Service cost
Cost of elected representation $43,914 | $43,117 | $52,315 | $53,993

[Direct cost of the Governance
service / Number of Councillors
elected at the last Council general
election]

Satisfaction

Satisfaction with Council 45 48 45 45
decisions

[Community satisfaction rating out
of 100 with the performance of
Council in making decisions in the
interest of the community]

Further information can be found at https://knowyourcouncil.vic.gov.au/
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Governance

Swan Hill Rural City Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 2020 to provide leadership for
the good governance of the municipal district and the local community. Council has a number of roles
including:

e Taking into account the diverse needs of the local community in decision-making

¢ Providing leadership by establishing strategic objectives and monitoring achievements
o Ensuring that resources are managed in a responsible and accountable manner

o Advocating the interests of the local community to other communities and governments
o Fostering community cohesion and encouraging active participation in civic life.

Council is committed to effective and sustainable forms of democratic and corporate governance as the key
to ensuring that Council and its administration meet the community’s priorities. The community has many
opportunities to provide input into Council’s decision-making processes including community consultation,
public forums such as Council meetings and the ability to make submissions to Council.

Council’s formal decision-making processes are conducted through Council meetings and Delegated
Committees of Council. Council delegates the majority of its decision-making to Council staff. These
delegations are exercised in accordance with adopted Council policies.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Meetings of Council

Council conducts open public meetings on the third Tuesday of each month. Members of the community
are welcome to attend these meetings and observe from the gallery. Council meetings also provide the
opportunity for community members to submit a question of Council, make a submission or speak to an
item.

For the 2022/23 year, Council held the following meetings:

¢ 11 Scheduled Council Meetings
e 4 Unscheduled Council Meetings
Below are the dates and locations of the Scheduled Council Meetings held in 2022/23:

19 July 2022 Swan Hill 21 February 2023 Swan Hill
16 August 2022 Swan Hill 21 March 2023 Swan Hill
20 September 2022 Swan Hill 18 April 2023 Swan Hill
18 October 2022 Swan Hill 16 May 2023 Swan Hill
15 November 2022 Swan Hill 20 June 2023 Swan Hill
20 December 2022 Swan Hill

Councillor attendance at Council meetings

The following table provides a summary of Councillor attendance at Council Meetings and Unscheduled
Council Meetings for the 2022/23 financial year.

Scheduled Scheduled Unscheduled Unscheduled

Council Meetings Council Meetings Council Meetings Council Meetings
Eligible to attend Attended Eligible to attend Attended

Cr Les McPhee 11 10 4 3

Cr Ann Young 11 11 4 4

Cr Bill Moar 11 11 4 4

Cr Stuart King 11 9 4 4

Cr Chris Jeffery 11 8 4 2

Cr Jade Benham 1 1 0 0

Cr Nicole McKay 11 10 4 4

Cr Jacquie Kelly o 5 3 3

Delegated committee and Community Asset Committees

The Local Government Act allows councils to establish one or more delegated and assets committees
consisting of:

Councillors

Council staff

Other persons

Any combination of the above.

Council did not establish any delegated or Community Asset committees during 2022/23.
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Council representation on other committees

Councillors are representatives on Delegated Committees of Council, as well as other external

committees, associations and groups.

Cr Les McPhee

e Chief Executive Officer Employment and
Remuneration Committee

e Municipal Association of Victoria

e Joint Bridge Committee

¢ North West Municipalities Association

e Central Murray Regional Transport Forum

e Robinvale Elders Committee

e Murray River Group of Councils

e Community Development Fund

e Piangil Community Group

e Central Murray Regional Transport Forum

e Local Aboriginal Network Robinvale

e Swan hill Resident Ratepayers Association

e Event Support Fund

e Manangatang Improvement Group

Cr Ann Young

e Chief Executive Officer Employment and
Remuneration Committee

e Swan Hill Regional Art Gallery Advisory Committee

e Swan Hill Inc. (sub-delegate)

e Agribusiness Advisory Committee

e Lake Boga Inc.

e Nyah Action Group
e Ultima Progress Association
e Lake Boga land on Water Committee of

Management

Cr Bill Moar

¢ Loddon Mallee Waste and Resource Recovery
Board

e Audit and Risk Committee

o Joint Bridge Committee

e Swan Hill Regional Livestock Exchange
e Agribusiness Advisory Committee

e Central Victorian Greenhouse Alliance

e Chief Executive Officer Employment and
Remuneration Committee

e Community Development Fund

e Grampians Wimmera Mallee Water Advisory
Committee

o Pental Island levees management project steering
committee

e Event Support Fund
¢ Rural Councils Victoria

Cr Chris Jeffery

e Indoor Sports Stadium Advocacy Committee

¢ Swan Hill Leisure Centre Committee of
Management (sub-delegate)

e Lake Boga Land on Water Committee of
Management

e« Woorinen Progress Association

Cr Nicole McKay

e Swan Hill Regional Art Gallery Advisory
Committee (sub-delegate)

e Swan Hill Inc.

¢ Municipal Association of Victoria (sub delegate)

e Rural Councils Victoria

e Boundary Bend Progress Association

e Local Aboriginal Network Robinvale—sub
delegate

e Local Aboriginal Network Swan Hill—sub
delegate

e Swan Hill Rate Payers—sub delegate

Cr Stuart King

e Swan Hill Leisure Centre Committee of
Management

e Swan Hill Motorplex

e Audit and Risk Committee

e Swan Hill Rec Reserve Advisory Committee

¢ Robinvale Euston Business Association

e Local Aboriginal Network Swan Hill

« Rail Freight Alliance

¢ Wemen Progress Association

Cr Jacquie Kelly

¢ Swan Hill Leisure Centre Committee of
Management

e  Community Development Fund

¢ Rural Councils Victoria

¢ Manangatang Improvement group

e Ultima Progress Association

e Pental Island levees management project
steering committee

Cr Jade Benham

Municipal Association of Victoria (sub delegate)
e Community Development Fund

Murray River Group of Councils
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Conflict of interest

Councillors and staff are required by legislation to act in the best interests of the community, During the
course of dealing with matters that come before Council for decision, individual Councillors and
members of staff might find that they or their immediate family, have a financial or some other
advantage that could be interpreted as having undue influence on the outcome. A conflict of interest
occurs when personal or private interests might compromise the ability to act in the public interest.

To ensure transparency in the decision-making processes of Council, both Councillors and staff are
required to declare and document their interest in a matter. Where Councillors have declared an
interest, they take no part in the decision-making process.

During 2022/23, 5 conflicts of interest were declared at Council and Delegated Committee meetings.

Copies of the document Conflict of Interest: A Guide for Councillors, October 2012, published by the
Department of Planning and Community Development, has been provided to Councillors for their
reference.

Code of Conduct

The Local Government Act 2020 requires councils to review and adopt the Councillor Code of Conduct
within 4 months after each general election. Swan Hill Rural City Council’s Councillor Code of Conduct
was reviewed and adopted on 23 February 2021.

After the review on 23 February 2021, Councillors signed the Code of Conduct declarations.
A copy of the code is available at www.swanhill.vic.gov.au/about/overview/policies

Councillor allowances

In accordance with Section 39 of the Local Government Act 2020, Councillors are entitled to receive an
allowance while performing their duty as a Councillor. The Deputy Mayor and Mayor are also entitled to
receive a higher allowance.

The State Government sets the upper and lower limits for all allowances paid to Councillors, Deputy
Mayors and Mayors. Councils are divided into three categories based on the income and population of
each council. In this instance Swan Hill Rural City Council is recognised as a category two council.

For the period 1 July 2022 to 17 December 2022, the Councillor annual allowance for a category 2
council (as defined by the Act) was up to $30,024 per annum, Deputy Mayor was up to $48,235 per
annum and Mayor was up to $96,470 per annum. For the period 18 December 2022 to 30 June 2023,
the Councillor annual allowance for a category 2 council increased to $31,353 per annum, Deputy
Mayor $50,319, and the allowance for the Mayor increased to $100,637per annum. The value of the
allowance payable to Council members is inclusive of any Superannuation Guarantee Contribution
amount, that is payable under Commonwealth law to the Council member.

The following table contains details of allowances paid to Councillors during the year.

Councillor Allowance

Cr Jade Benham (Mayor) $8,039.17
Cr Les McPhee (Mayor) $57,836.87
Cr Bill Moar $37,517.03
Cr Ann Young $30,738.51
Cr Chris Jeffery $30,738.51
Cr Nicole McKay $30,738.51
Cr Stuart King $42,576.89
Cr Jacquie Kelly $13,738.01
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Councillor expenses
In accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Act 2020, Council is required to reimburse a

Councillor for expenses incurred whilst performing his or her duties as a Councillor.
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Council is also required to adopt and maintain a policy in relation to the reimbursement of expenses for

Councillors.

The policy provides guidance for the payment of reimbursements of expenses and the provision of

resources, facilities and other support to the Mayor and Councillors to enable them to discharge their

duties.

Council also publishes in its Annual Report the details of the expenses, including reimbursement of

expenses for each Councillor and member of a Council Committee paid by the Council.

The details of the expenses, including reimbursement of expenses for each Councillor and member of a
Council Committee, paid by Council for the 2022/23 year are set out in the following table:

Councillor Travel & Car Catering & Information & Conference Total
Accommodation Mileage meals Communication &
Training
Cr Jade Benham
(Mayor) = = $7300 - $7300
?,Vr,;‘fjr)'\"cphee $1,24513  $5004.06  $291.46 $904.08 $280.82 $7,725.55
Cr Bill Moar $394.55 $878.97 $135.08 $876.00 - $2,284.60
Cr Ann Young $200.43 $522.30 - $476.50 $86.36  $1,285.59
Cr Chris Jeffery - - $26.89 $2,293.60 - $2,320.49
Cr Nicole McKay - $447.02 $31.90 $933.82 $197.79 $1,610.53
Cr Stuart King $1,176.98  $1,276.00 $210.44 $792.00 $1,102.66 $4,558.08
Cr Jacquie Kelly $1,278.88  $1,290.94 $123.74 $1,476.93 $1,499.30 $5,669.79
Note: No expenses were paid by Council, including reimbursements, to members of Council
Committees during the 2022/23 year.
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Management

Council has implemented a number of statutory and
better practice items to strengthen its management
framework.

Having strong governance and management
frameworks leads to better decision making by
Council.

The Local Government Act requires Council to
undertake an assessment against the prescribed
governance and management checklist and include
this in it's report of operations.

Council’'s Governance and Management Checklist
results are set out in this section. The following
items have been highlighted as important
components of the management framework.

.
. A 7
P L3P

g

1
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Audit and Risk committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is an independent
Advisory Committee to Council and is formed under
Section 53 of the Local Government Act 2020.

The primary objective of the Audit and Risk Committee is
to assist Council in the effective conduct of its
responsibilities for:

e Enhancing the credibility and objectivity of internal
and external financial reporting

e Effective management of financial processes, to
ensure integrity and transparency

e Effective management of risks and the protection
of Council assets

e Compliance with laws and regulations as well as
use of best practice guidelines

e The effectiveness of the internal audit function

e The provision of an effective means of
communication between the external auditor,
internal auditor, management and the Council

e Facilitating the organisation’s ethical development

e Maintaining a reliable system of internal controls

Audit and Risk Committee Members

The Audit and Risk Committee consists of five members,
three of whom are independent experts in a range of areas
including financial management, business, and project
management.

The members of the committee during the 2022/23
financial year were:

Warren Pollock (Chairperson) — fourth term appointment
expired 30 September 2022.

Rosanne Kava (chairperson) — appointed for three years,
first term expires 30 September 2025.

Greg Kuchel — appointed for three years, first term expires
18 November 2024.

Bradley Hutchinson — appointed for three years, first term
expires 6 April 2025.

Cr Les McPhee — appointed for two years at the Council
Meeting in December 2019, term expired 31 December
2022.

Cr Nicole McKay — appointed for the remainder of Cr Jade
Benham’s term.

Cr Bill Moar — appointed for one year at the Council
Meeting in December 2022, term expires 31 December
2023.

Cr Stuart King— appointed for one year at Council
meeting in December 2022, term expires 31 December
2023.

The following table contains details of attendance at Audit and Risk Committee meetings during 2022/23:

Member

Warren Pollock, Independent member and Chairperson
Rosanne Kava, Independent member and Chairperson
Greg Kuchel, Independent member

Bradley Hutchinson, Independent member

Les McPhee, Councillor

Nicole McKay, Councillor

Bill Moar, Councillor

Stuart King, Councillor

Eligible to attend Attended
1 1
3 3
4 4
4 4
2 2
2 1
2 2
2 1

The Total Remuneration paid to Independent members of the Audit and Risk Committee for

2022/23 was $5973.60.
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Internal Audit
Council’s internal audit function is externally resourced to provide independent and objective assurance that

appropriate processes and controls are in place across Council.

A three-year risk-based Strategic Internal Audit Plan (SIAP) is revised annually to ensure the audit resources remain
focused on the nominated areas.

The review process considers Council’s risk framework, the Council Plan, the impact of any change on our operations,
systems or the business environment, prior audit coverage and outcomes, and relies heavily on management
directional input. The SIAP is revised and approved by the Audit Committee annually.

The Internal Auditor attends Audit Committee meetings to report on the status of the SIAP and to present findings of
completed reviews.

The responsible Director and Manager for each area reviewed is required to attend the Audit Committee meeting to
respond to questions in relation to the review. All audit issues identified are risk rated.

Recommendations are assigned to responsible managers and tracked through the Audit Committee agenda until all
recommendations have been completed.

Quality assurance is measured through completion of the review recommendations and completion of the nominated
annual SIAP reviews.

The SIAP for 2022/23 was completed with the following reviews conducted:
- Payroll and HR
- Accounts Payable
In order to attain a wider review of internal audit coverage, a mix of ‘detailed’ and ‘insight’ reviews are identified.

‘Detailed’ reviews typically include walk throughs, identification of key controls and sample testing of key controls to
form a conclusion, resulting in a detailed report.

‘Insight’ reviews are high level discussions with those officers responsible for managing the area of focus, resulting in a
brief report of observations and insights.

External Audit

Council is externally audited by the Victorian Auditor-General. For the 2022/23 year the annual external audit of
Council’s Financial Reports and Performance Statement was conducted by the Victorian Auditor-General’s
representative, Brad Bohun of Crowe (Albury).

The external auditors attend Audit and Risk Committee meetings to present the annual audit strategy and independent
audit reports.

The external audit management letters and responses are also provided and discussed with the Audit and Risk
Committee.
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Risk Management

Council's Risk Management Committee consists of members from all levels of the organisations. The
Committee meets on a quarterly basis to review operational and strategic risks and provide information to
the Audit and Risk Committee.

Council’s Risk Management Policy and Framework provides an integrated and consistent approach to risk
management to ensure that risks are identified and addressed during planning, decision-making and
everyday operations. Each department has a risk profile with strategies to minimise and mange identified
risks.

This year Council has continued to implement our Risk Management Framework, processes and systems
which has further strengthened our ability to respond to changes in existing risks as well as respond to new
risks that have been introduced through the increasing complex external environment, with particular focus
on the areas outlined below:

. Cybersecurity - Council continued to invest in our cyber security risk management program to
ensure we are prepared to respond to the increasing sophistication and frequency of external
cyberattacks

. Integrity, ethics and culture - Council continues to make improvements to Council’s fraud and
corruption control framework

. Insurance - Council continues to monitor its increasing insurance renewals which is a result of
the industry being impacted by events both national and international.

Swan Hill Rural City Council - Annual Report 2022/23 86

Page: 100 |
243 ATT: 2.2.1



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Governance and Management Checklist

The following are the results in the prescribed form of Council’s assessment against the prescribed

governance and management checklist.

Governance and Management Iltems Assessment

1. Community Engagement Policy

(policy under section 55 of the Act outlining Council’s
commitment to engaging with the community on matters of
public interest)

Adopted in accordance with section 55 of
the Act: 15 March 2022

2. Community Engagement Guidelines

(guidelines to assist staff to determine when and how to engage
with the community)

Date of operation of current guidelines:
15 March 2022

3. Financial Plan

(plan under section 91 of the Act outlining the financial
resources required for at least the next 10 financial years)

Adopted in accordance with section 91 of
the Act:

Date of adoption: 20 July 2021

4. Asset Plan

(plan that set out the asset maintenance and renewal needs for
key infrastructure asset classes for at least the next 10 years)

Adopted in accordance of section 92 of the
Act:

Date of adoption: 14 June 2022

5. Revenue and Rating Plan

(plan under section 93 of the Act setting out the rating structure
of Council to levy rates and charges)

Adopted in accordance of section 93 of the
Act:

Date of adoption: 15 June 2021

6. Annual Budget

(plan under section 94 of the Act setting out the services to be
provided and initiatives to be undertaken over the next 12
months and the funding and other resources required)

Adopted in accordance with section 94 of
the Act.

Date of adoption: 14 June 2022

7. Risk Policy

(policy outlining Council’'s commitment and approach to
minimising the risks to Council’s operations)

Date of commencement of current policy:
27 June 2023

8. Fraud Policy

(policy outlining Council’s commitment and approach to
minimising the risk of fraud)

Date of commencement of current policy:
16 March 2021
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Governance and Management Checklist cont...

Governance and Management Iltems Assessment

9. Municipal Emergency Management Plan

(plan under section 20 of the Emergency Management Act 1986
for emergency prevention, response and recovery)

Currently in process for updating in
December 2023 by the municipal
emergency management plan
committee.

Date of current plan:

21 July 2020

10. Procurement Policy

(policy under section 108 the Local Government Act 2020
outlining the principles, processes and procedures that will apply
to the purchase of goods, services by the Council)

Adoption in accordance of section
108 of the Act:

Date of Adoption and update:
05 January 2022

11. Business Continuity Plan

(plan setting out the actions that will be undertaken to ensure that
key services continue to operate in the event of a disaster)

Date of adoption of current plan:
17 May 2023

12. Disaster Recovery Plan

(plan setting out the actions that will be undertaken to recover
and restore business capability in the event of a disaster)

Date of operation of current plan:
22 March 2021

13. Risk Management Framework

(framework outlining Council’s approach to managing risks to the
Council’s operations)

Framework

Date of operation of current
framework: 18 January 2021

14. Audit and Risk Committee
(see sections 53 and 54 of the Act)

Audit Committee established
10 January 1998

Audit and Risk Committee
established under the Local
Government Act 2020

26 July 2023

15. Internal Audit

(independent accounting professionals engaged by the Council to
provide analyses and recommendations aimed at improving
Council’s governance, risk and management controls)

Engaged RSM

Date of engagement of current
provider:

1 July 2013 - Initial
11 July 2018 - Re-appointed

16. Performance Reporting Framework

(a set of indicators measuring financial and non-financial
performance, including the performance indicators referred to in
section 131 of the Act)

Framework

Date of operation of current
framework:12 April 2016
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Governance and Management Iltems Assessment

17. Council Plan Reporting Report
(report reviewing the performance of the Council against the Reported to Council on:
Council Plan, including the results in relation to the strategic Qtr 1: 18/10/2022

indicators, for the first six months of the reporting year) Qtr 2: 21/02/2023

Qtr 3: 18/04/2023
Qtr 4: 15/08/2023

18. Financial Reporting Reports presented to Council in

accordance with section 138(1) of the
(quarterly statements to Council under section 138(1) of the Local | act. M

Government Act 1989, comparing actual budgeted results and an
explanation of any material variations.) Date statements presented:

June 2022 Quarter — 22/9/2022
September 2022 Quarter — 15/11/2022
December 2022 Quarter — 21/2/2023
March 2023 Quarter — 16/5/2023

19. Risk Reporting Reports

(six-monthly reports of strategic risks to Council’'s operations, Date of reports:

their likelihood and consequences of occurring and risk 8 September 2022, 8 December 2022, 6
minimisation strategies) April 2023, 8 June 2023

20. Performance Reporting Council reports annually

(six-monthly reports of indicators measuring the results against | Date statement presented:

financial and non-financial performance, including performance In the Annual Report 2021

indicators referred to in section 131 of the Act) 15 November 2022

21. Annual Report Considered at meeting of the Council in

accordance with section 134 of the Act:
(annual report under sections 131, 132 and 133 of the Act to the Date of ideration:
community containing a report of operations and audited financial ate ot consideration:
and performance statements) 25 October 2022

22. Councillor Code of Conduct Reviewed and adopted in accordance
with section 139 of the Act.

Date reviewed:
23 February 2021

(Code under section 139 of the Act setting out the standards of
conduct to be followed by Councillors and other matters)
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Governance and Management Iltems Assessment

23. Delegations Reviewed in accordance with
section 11(7) of the Actand in a
(a document setting out the powers, duties and functions of register in (aczcordance with

Council and the Chief Executive Officer that have been delegated | gections 11(8) and 47(7) of the Act
to members of staff), in accordance with sections 11 and 47 of the

Act) Date of review:
18 April 2023
24. Meeting procedures Governance Rules adopted in
accordance with section 60 of the
(Governance Rules under section 60 of the Act governing the Act.

conduct of meetings of Council and delegated committees) Date Governance rules adopted:

21 April 2023

I certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council’s governance and management
arrangements.

Scott Barber Cr Les McPhee
Chief Executive Officer Mayor
Dated: 17 October 2023 Dated: 17 October 2023
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Statutory information

Documents available for public inspection
Council’s public transparency policy now provides
details of how and what Council information is
available to the public. This policy is available on
Council’s website.

Council’s website contains a wide array of Council
information including all policies, plans and reports
required under the Local Government Act 2020 and
any other Act.

An extensive list of publicly available information is
provided in Council’s Part Il Statement provided
under the Freedom of Information Act 1982. This
statement is also available on Council’s website and
is required to be updated annually.

Carers Recognition Act 2012

Council has taken all practicable measures to
comply with its responsibilities outlined in the Carers
Recognition Act 2012. Council has promoted the
principles of the Act to people in care relationships
who receive Council services, and to the wider
community by providing links to State Government
resource materials on Council’'s website and
providing information to organisations represented in
Council networks.

Council has taken all practicable measures to ensure
staff, Council agents and volunteers are informed
about the principles and obligations under the Act by
including information on the care relationship in
Council induction and training programs for staff
working in Community Care Services, and induction
and training programs for volunteers working directly
with the community.

Council has taken all practicable measures to review
and modify policies, procedures and supports to
include recognition of the carer relationship.

Contracts

During 2022/23 Council entered into one contract
valued at $200,000 or more for services without
engaging in a competitive process. This was with the
existing contractor for the Management and
Operation of Leisure and Aquatic Services to ensure
the continuity of the supply of services while Council
undertook a procurement process for the new
contract.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During 2022/23 Council entered into the following
contracts valued above $200,000, the contract value
at which the Council must invite a tender under its
Procurement Policy:

Contract Description
Type P
Capital Boardwalk & Viewing Platform - Monash
Works Drive
Design & Robinvale Skate Park—Centenary Park
Construct
Design & Design and Construction of Splash Park
Construct Facility
Capital John James Oval Robinvale—Lighting
Works Upgrade
Capital Swan Hill Town Hall Exterior
Works Refurbishment
Capital Monash Drive Carpark Upgrade Stage 2
Works P P9 9
Supply of Waste Management Services Swan Hill,
Services Robinvale
Supply of Management & Operation leisure &
Services Aquatic Services

Concept & Detailed Design Specification
Consultant of Art Gallery Development

Concept & Detailed Design Specification
Consultant of Tourism and Cultural Hub
Supply of McCallum Street Shared path—Irrigation
Services
Supply of Swan Hill Aerodrome Electrical Lighting
Services Upgrade
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Service Performance Principles

From April 2020 s106 Service Performance
Principles of the Local Government Act 2020
came into effect. This involves the setting of
Quality and Cost Standards for Council services
and annual reporting against these standards to
the community.

The Local Government Act 2020 requires Council
to review its operations to ensure that the
services provided to the community represent
‘Good Value'.

The following are the service performance
principles:

a) services should be provided in an equitable
manner and be responsive to the diverse
needs of the municipal community;

b) services should be accessible to the
members of the municipal community for
whom the services are intended;

¢) quality and costs standards for services set
by the Council should provide good value to
the municipal community;

d) a Council should seek to continuously
improve service delivery to the municipal
community in response to performance
monitoring;

e) service delivery must include a fair and
effective process for considering and
responding to complaints about service
provision.

Road Management Act 2004

Council, as a road authority, is required under
section 22 of the Road Management Act 2004 to
publish a copy or summary of any direction
received from the Minister in its Annual Report.
No directions were received from the Minister in
2022/23.

Domestic Animal Act 1994

In accordance with the Domestic Animals Act
1994 section 68a, council is required to prepare a
Domestic Animal Management Plan at four yearly
intervals and evaluate its implementation in the
Annual Report. Council adopted the Domestic
Animal Management Plan 2022—-2025 in
November 2021. The new plan was developed
through consultation with the community and key
stakeholders including veterinarians, animal
businesses and other service providers.

Community Access and Inclusion
Strategy

In accordance with section 38 of the Disability Act
2006, as Council has prepared a Disability Action
Plan, which became an adopted Community
Access and Inclusion Strategy (CAIS).

The CAIS is now due for a review and work will
commence by Council to develop a new CAIS in
consultation with stakeholders and the
community.

The four key objectives of the CAIS are to:

e Reduce barriers to Council services,
programs and facilities for people with a
disability.

e Reduce barriers to people with a disability
obtaining and maintaining employment.

¢ Increase inclusion and participation in the
community for people with a disability.

e Improve community attitudes and
perceptions that discriminate against people
with a disability.

Public interest Disclosure Act

The Public Interest Disclosures Act 2012
commenced on 6 April 2020 and is a rebranding
and expansion of the previous Protected
Disclosures Act 2012.

Council has developed procedures that provide
for the making of disclosures. The procedures
encourage the disclosure of improper conduct
undertaken by Council or its employees, provide
protections for the person making a disclosure,
and require the reporting of assessable
disclosures to the Independent Broad-based Anti-
corruption Commission (IBAC).

Council takes its role and responsibilities under
the Act very seriously. Public Interest Disclosure
procedures also form part of the staff induction
process.

Staff and members of the public are encouraged
to report matters to the public interest disclosures
co-ordinator, if they believe on reasonable
grounds that improper conduct or detrimental
action has occurred or is occurring.

One reportable matter was received in the
2022/23 financial year. The Independent Broad-
based Anti-corruption Commission determined
that the matter should not be treated as a public
interest complaint.
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Freedom of Information Act 1982

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 provides the
opportunity for public access to Council
documents.

The Act establishes a legally enforceable right for
the community to request information, in document
form, held by Council.

The Act has four principles:

1. The public has a right of access to
documents subject to certain exceptions or
exemptions.

2. Local Governments are required to publish
information on the documents they hold.

3. Individuals may request that inaccurate,
incomplete, out-of-date or misleading
information about themselves be amended.

4. Individuals may appeal against a decision not
to give access to the document(s) or not to
amend personal information.

Written requests for documents must be addressed
to Council’s Freedom of Information Officer and
should be accompanied by an application fee of
$31.80 (2023/24).

A request must specify the document(s) required or
if unable to do so, give sufficient detail to enable
the relevant document(s) to be located, the form of
access required and include the applicant’s contact
details.

In December 2019, the Victorian Information
Commissioner issued Professional Standards
relating to the conduct of an agency in performing
its functions under the Act, and the administration
and operation of the Act by an agency.

Council received eight requests in 2022/23 and one
request was carried over from 2021/22. Two
requests were released in-part for 2022/23, one
request was denied in-full, one request was
answered outside of the FOI Act, one request was
withdrawn and four requests carried forward to
2022/23

Number of Fees and Costs to
requests charges Council

2022/23
2021/22
2020/21

2019/20
2018/19

$208
$155
$287 $5,125
$114 $1,100

$87 $6,250

$4,525
$939

W W 0 W o

Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014

Council respects the privacy of its citizens,
ratepayers and clients. Council is committed to the
privacy principles prescribed by the Privacy and
Data Protection Act 2014 and the Health Records
Act 2001.

Council has adopted a Privacy Policy that
addresses the requirements of both Acts. A copy of
the policy is available at the Council offices during
business hours and at Council’s website
www.swanhill.vic.gov.au.

Council received no privacy complaints in the
2022/23 financial year.

Food Act Ministerial Direction

In accordance with 7E of the Food Act 1984,
Council is required to publish a summary of any
ministerial directions received during the financial
year in its Annual Report. No such Ministerial
Directions were received in the 2022/23 financial
year.

Local Laws

Council has the following Local Laws in place:

Local Law Date Date

Community Local 2 June 2017

Law No. 2

16 May 2017

Regional Livestock 16 November 16 November
Exchange Local 2021 2021
Law 2021
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Policies, strategies and plans

As representatives of the community, Council develops the policies that guide and inform of Council

activity. The following policies, strategies and plans were reviewed and/or adopted in 2022/23.

Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality Policy
Safe Driving Policy

Corporate Credit Cards Policy

Child Safe Standards Policy

Grants Application Policy

MCH Consent to Collect Client Information
Alternative Waterwise Naturestrip Treatments
Induction Policy

Domestic Animal management Plan
Citizenship Ceremony Dress Code
Volunteer Management Policy

Public Transparency Policy

Media Policy

OHS Framework and Management Plan
Lease and Licencing Policy

Website Policy

Fencing Contribution Policy

Financial Hardship Policy

Council Expense Policy

Community Events and Grants Policy
Governance Rules

Business Continuity Framework
Procurement Policy

Project Management Framework

Date reviewed/adopted

20 October 2022
26 October 2022
11 November 2022
17 November 2022
01 December 2022
08 December 2022
22 December 2022
16 December 2022
21 December 2022
10 January 2023
24 January 2023
15 February 2022
24 February 2023
21 February 2023
28 February 2023
28 February 2023
21 April 2023

21 April 2023

21 April 2023

21 April 2023

24 April 2023

18 May 2023

30 June 2023

30 June 2023
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Description of municipality
Swan Hill Rural City Council covers 6,116 square kilometres and is home to 20,207* people.

It includes the townships of Swan Hill, Robinvale, Lake Boga, Nyah, Nyah West, Piangil, Beverford, Woorinen,
Ultima, Manangatang and Boundary Bend.

The Swan Hill municipality has experienced significant growth over the past decade, led by the expansion of
horticultural/agricultural practices and supported by an innovative manufacturing sector.

This success is depicted by the fact that the region is Australia’s largest producer of table grapes, pistachios and
olives, responsible for one quarter of all carrots nationwide, a top contributor to the stone fruit industry and
accounts for approximately 70 percent of Australia’s Almonds and Olive Oil production.

Almost 22 per cent of the total economic output from the region comes from agricultural production.

Irrigated farming (including stone fruit, grapes, nuts, olives and vegetable production) accounts for over 15 per
cent of the total economic output for the municipality , while traditional livestock and broadacre farming accounts
for almost 5 per cent. More than 17 per cent of all jobs in the city are directly related to agriculture. Additionally
food manufacturing (processing) accounts for almost 9 per cent of the municipality’s economic output.

Located along the Murray River, tourism plays an important role in our region’s* economy. Our climate and
natural beauty attract around 574,000 visitors each year as reported in the Murray Regional Tourism (MRT)
Snapshot Report- December 2021.

Operational summary

The Comprehensive Income Statement reports a surplus of $6.8m. This includes depreciation and other non-
monetary contributions, but excludes capital payments of $14.9m and loan repayments of $0.3m.

Our operating and capital revenue returned to what would be considered a more normal level of funding this
year, following increases in the 2021 and 2022 years from various economic stimulus programs during the
coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19). A number of these projects were still ongoing at the end of the 2023 year,
and Council has endeavored to complete these projects as soon as possible. It should be noted that $8.6m of
the $18.1m reported for Grants — operating, is the prepayment received for Councils allocation of the 2023-24
Financial Assistance Grant.

A significant issue faced by Council during 2023 was the attraction and retention of staff, which resulted in
employee costs being $1.0m less than forecast. Council experienced a number of positions which remained
vacant for extended periods due to issues faced with recruiting suitably qualified staff. For a number of Council
services there are considerable shortages within the industry, and Council has been competing with private
industry to attract these staff. Areas such as building and planning, engineers, and project management staff
have been difficult to recruit.

Another impact increasing our operational revenue and expenses relates to Council’s lead role in administering
a Commonwealth Regional Growth Fund on behalf of six partner councils. Our operational income and
expenditure includes $1.6m from this arrangement in 2023.

Council remains active in the residential land development at Tower Hill Estate in Swan Hill; having a new stage
made available for sale during the year. The development continues to be cash-flow positive, and provide a
return on investment of $330k.

*This population estimate figure is provided by Local Government Victoria for the performance reporting of 2022/23.
*Swan Hill Region includes the Swan Hill Rural City, Gannawarra Shire and Balranald Shire
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PERFORMANCE STATEMENT
Sustainable Capacity Indicators

Servicel/indicator/ 2020 2021 2022 2023 Material variations
measure

Population

Expenses per $2,362.58 $2,525.03 $2,604.00 $2,580.75 No material variation
head of municipal

population

[Total expenses/

Municipal

population]

Infrastructure per ~ $20,331.95 $20,751.24 $24,532.17 $24,772.76 No material variation
head of municipal

population

[Value of

infrastructure/

Municipal

population]

Population density 5.65 5.62 6.45 6.16 No material variation
per length of road

[Municipal

population/

Kilometres of local

roads]

Own-source

revenue $1,763.31  $1,902.26  $1,939.98  $1,909.61 No material variation

Own-source
revenue per head
of municipal
population
[Own-source
revenue/Municipal
population]
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators cont..

Results
Service/indicator/ 2020 2021 2022 2023 Material variations
Recurrent grants
Recurrent grants per $569.62 $586.59 $662.68 $682.18 No material variation
head of municipal
population
[Recurrent grants/Municipal
population]
Disadvantage Socio-Economic Indexes for
Relative socio-economic 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.00 g\reals (SEIEALLS 12@?;: C;[
disadvantage evelope y € ~ a
[Index of Relative ranks a?reas in Au.stralla .
Socio-economic according to relative socio-
disadvantage by decile] economic advantage and
disadvantage. They indicate
the collective socio-economic
characteristics of the people
living in an area.
Workforce turnover
Percentage of staff 10.81% 14.40% 21.16% 22.09% Council has an aging

turnover

[Number of permanent staff
resignations and
terminations / Average
number of permanent staff
for the financial year] x 100

Sustainable Capacity Indicator definitions

“adjusted underlying revenue” means total income
other than:

(a) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital
expenditure; and

(b) non-monetary asset contributions; and

(c) contributions to fund capital expenditure from
sources other than those referred to above.

“infrastructure” means non-current property, plant and
equipment excluding land.

"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for
which the council is the responsible road authority
under the Road Management Act 2004.

"population" means the resident population estimated
by council.

workforce and movement
during COVID-19 has had a
direct impact on our turnover
rate.

"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying
revenue other than revenue that is not under the
control of council (including government grants).

"relative socio-economic disadvantage", in relation to
a municipality, means the relative socio-economic
disadvantage, expressed as a decile for the relevant
financial year, of the area in which the municipality is
located according to the Index of Relative Socio-
Economic Disadvantage (Catalogue Number
2033.0.55.001) of SEIFA.

"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for
Areas published from time to time by the Australian
Bureau of Statistics on its Internet website.

"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash
equivalents other than restricted cash.
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Service Performance Indicators

Service/indicator/measure
Aquatic Facilities
Utilisation

Utilisation of aquatic facilities
[Number of visits to aquatic
facilities / Municipal population]

Animal management
Health and safety

Animal management
prosecutions

[Number of successful animal
management prosecutions/ Number
of animal management
prosecutions] x 100

Food and safety
Health and safety

Critical and major non-
compliance outcome notifications
[Number of critical non-compliance
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about a
food premises followed up / Number
of critical non-compliance
notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about food
premises] x 100

Governance
Satisfaction

Satisfaction with Council
decisions

[Community satisfaction rating out of
100 with how Council has performed
in making decisions in the interest of
the community]

MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

2020

4.56

0.00%

100.00%

45

2021

3.43

100.00%

66.67%

48

PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

2022

5.58

0.00%

40.00%

45

2023

6.17

0.00%

100.00%

45

Material variations

Utilisation of aquatic facilities
has increased due to COVID-19
restrictions being lifted in late
2022, allowing full use of
facilities. Previous years had
restrictions which decreased
usage of these venues.

There were no animal
management prosecutions in
2022/23.

Increase in outcomes is due to a
dedicated Environmental Health
Officer was employed to
complete Food and Safety
Inspections. All critical major
and crucial non-compliance
outcome notifications were
followed up within the 2022
calendar year.

No material variation
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Service Performance Indicators cont...

Results

Service/indicator/measure 2020 2021 2022

Libraries
Participation

Active library borrowers in 16.28%  14.52%  13.35%
municipality

[Number of active library

borrowers in the last three

years / the sum of the population

for the last three years] x 100

Maternal and Child Health
Participation

Participation in the MCH
service

[Number of children who attend
the MCH service at least once
(in the year) / Number of children
enrolled in the MCH service] x
100

75.04% 80.05% 82.74%

Participation in the MCH 66.20% 76.26% 77.50%
service by Aboriginal children

[Number of Aboriginal children

who attend the MCH service at

least once (in the year) / Number

of Aboriginal children enrolled in

the MCH service] x 100

Roads
Satisfaction

Satisfaction with sealed local 44 52 51
roads

[Community satisfaction rating

out of 100 with how Council has

performed on the condition of

sealed local roads]

2023

13.41%

89.19%

83.57%

44

Material variations

No material variation

Slight increase due to increased
capacity to follow up on overdue
Key Ages & Stages visits each
month

Council have an agreement to
provide MCH services on behalf
of MDAS in Swan Hill. Itis
noted that there is an increase
in Aboriginal children/families
enrolling in mainstream services
over the 22/23 year

The decrease on the previous
year’s satisfaction with sealed
roads can be attributed to the
major flood event combined with
localised flooding in what has
proven to be one of the wettest
years on record.
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PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Results
Servicelindicator/ 2020 2021 2022 2023 Material variations
measure
Statutory Planning
Decision making
Council planning decisions  0.00%  0.00%  0.00%  75.00% In 2022/23 Council had 5 Planning
upheld at VCAT applications refered to VCAT with 3
[Number of VCAT decisions being upheld and 2 were not
that did not set aside compared to previous years where
Council’s decision in relation we had no planning decisions
to a planning application / upheld at VCAT.
Number of VCAT decisions in
relation to planning
applications] x 100
Waste collection
Waste diversion
Kerbside collection waste  27.67% 29.51% 30.92%  29.28% No Material variation

diverted from landfill
[Weight of recyclables and
green organics collected from
kerbside bins / Weight of
garbage, recyclables and
green organics collected from
kerbside bins] x 100

Service Performance Indicator
definitions

"Aboriginal child" means a child who is an
Aboriginal person.

"Aboriginal person" has the same meaning as in the
Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006.

"active library borrower" means a member of a
library who has borrowed a book from the library.

"annual report" means an annual report prepared by
a council under section 98 of the Act.

“class 1 food premises” means food premises,
within the meaning of the Food Act 1984, that have
been declared as class 1 food premises under
section 19C of that Act.

“class 2 food premises” means food premises,
within the meaning of the Food Act 1984 , that have
been declared as class 2 food premises under
section 19C of that Act.

"critical non-compliance outcome notification”
means a notification received by council under

section 19N(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984 , or advice
given to council by an authorized officer under that
Act, of a deficiency that poses an immediate serious
threat to public health.

"food premises" has the same meaning as in the
Food Act 1984.

"local road" means a sealed or unsealed road for
which the council is the responsible road authority
under the Road Management Act 2004.

"major non-compliance outcome notification" means
a notification received by a council under section 19N
(3) or (4) of the Food Act 1984, or advice given to
council by an authorized officer under that Act, of a
deficiency that does not pose an immediate serious
threat to public health but may do so if no remedial
action is taken.

"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Health Service
provided by a council to support the health and
development of children within the municipality from
birth until school age.

"population"” means the resident population estimated
by council.
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Financial Performance Indicators
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Financial Performance Indicators cont...
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Financial Performance Indicators cont...
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Former Indicators

Servicelindicator/measure 2018

Animal management
Health and safety

Animal management prosecutions
[Number of successful animal management
prosecutions]

Efficiency

R level
evenue leve $1,636.84

Average residential rate per residential
property assessment

[Residential rate revenue / Number of
residential property assessments]

Obligations

Asset /
sset renewa 90.90%

Asset renewal compared to depreciation
[Asset renewal expenses / Asset
depreciation] x100

Financial Performance Indicator definitions

"adjusted underlying revenue" means total income
other than:

(a)

non-recurrent grants used to fund capital
expenditure; and

(b)
()

non-monetary asset contributions; and

contributions to fund capital expenditure from
sources other than those referred to above.

"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means
adjusted underlying revenue less total expenditure.

"asset renewal expenditure" means expenditure on
an existing asset or on replacing an existing asset
that returns the service capability of the asset to its
original capability.

“current assets” has the same meaning as in the
Australian Accounting Standards (AAS).

"current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the
AAS.

“non-current assets” means all assets other than
current assets.

"non-current liabilities" means all liabilities other than
current liabilities.

Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Results
2019 2020
0 Retired in 2020.
$1,690.08 Retired in 2020.
116.77% Retired in 2020.

“non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the
condition that it be expended in a specified manner
and is not expected to be received again during the
period covered by a council's Strategic Resource
Plan.

"own-source revenue" means adjusted underlying
revenue other than revenue that is not under the
control of council (including government grants.

"population "means the resident population estimated
by council.

“rate revenue” means revenue from general rates,
municipal charges, service rates and service charges.

"recurrent grant "means a grant other than a non-
recurrent grant.

"residential rates" means revenue from general rates,
municipal charges, service rates and service charges
levied on residential properties.

"restricted cash" means cash and cash equivalents,
within the meaning of the AAS, that are not available
for use other than for a purpose for which it is
restricted, and includes cash to be used to fund
capital works expenditure from the previous financial
year.

"unrestricted cash" means all cash and cash
equivalents other than restricted cash.
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PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Other information

1. Basis of preparation

Council is required to prepare and include a performance statement within its annual report. The
performance statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance
and financial performance indicators and measures together with a description of the municipal district
and an explanation of material variations in the results. This statement has been prepared to meet the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2020.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have been prepared on accounting bases
consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on information
drawn from Council information systems or from third parties (e.g. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance statement presents the actual results for the current year and for the prescribed
financial performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by Council’s strategic resource plan.
The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020 requires explanation of any material
variations in the results contained in the performance statement. Council has adopted materiality
thresholds relevant to each indicator and measure and explanations have not been provided for variations
below the materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

The forecast figures included in the performance statement are those adopted by Council in its financial
plan on 20 July 2021 and which forms part of the Council Plan. The financial plan includes estimates
based on key assumptions about the future that were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at
achieving sustainability over the long term. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained
in the General Purpose Financial Statements. The financial plan can be obtained by contacting Council.
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Certification of the performance statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

Bhan Pratap FCPA
Principal Accounting Officer
Dated: 19 September 2023

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of the Swan Hill Rural City Council for the year
ended 30 June 2023 presents fairly the results of Council’s performance in accordance with the Local
Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2020.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in
relation to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the
performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2020 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

Les McPhee
Councillor (Mayor)

Dated: 19 September 2023

Stuart King
Councillor (Deputy Mayor)

Dated: 19 September 2023

Scott Barber
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: 19 September 2023

Swan Hill Rural City Council - Annual Report 2022/23 110

Page: 124 |
243 ATT: 2.2.1



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

PERFORMANCE STATEMENT

Auditor General’s Report - Performance Statement

VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Victorian Audidor. Generols Office
To the Councilfors of Swan Nilf Rural City Council
Opinicn 1 have sudited the panying perfor . of Swan Hil Rural City

Councll (the counclh which comprises the:

description of muniipality for the year ended 30 June 2021
operational summaey

sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2023
service perfomrance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2023
. financial pesformance indicators for the year ended 30 hune 2023
. other information and

. certification of the performance statement.

In my opinion, the performance statement of Swae Wil Rural Oty Courcll In respect of
the year ended 30 June 2023 peesents Taity, in all material respects, in accordance
with the performance reporting requisements of Part 4 of the Locol Geverament Act
2020 and Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations X020,

Bands for 1 have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audi Act 190 which Incorporates

Opinon the Australlan Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further describe my
responsitilites under that ACt aed 1hose standaeds in the Auditor’s Respoasd fities for
the Audt of the performance stotement vection of my report.

Ny independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975, My sta!l and | are
Independent of the councl i accordance wilh the ethical requirements of the
Accourting Profesuonal and tthical Standarcs Board's APLS 110 Code of fihics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the performance
statement in Victoria, My stall and | have abio fullilled cur other ethical resporidiitios
In accordance with the Code

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is suficent and appropeiate 10
provide 3 banis for my opinion

Counciflors’ The Councillon e responsitie for the peegaration and Lir presentation of the
responsibiities performance statement in accordance with the performance reporting requirements

for the of the Loce! Goveramient Act 2020 and 1he Locol Government (Planning and Reporting)
performance Regwiations 2000 and for such internal cortrol as the Councllon determines o
statement recessary 1o enable the prepacation and fak presentation of a performance statement

that is lree from material misitatement, whether due Lo lraud or error,

Lowel 31 7 25 Collirg Sveet,. Mathoorne Yic 2000
T O3 8401 MO0 enguwrmsliioudt v govay  www.oudit vic gov oy
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Auditor's As required by the Audt Act 1954, my respoesibility & to express an opinion on the

responuibditios performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain

forthe auditod  Teascoable assurance about whether the perfarmance statement as a whole & free

the performance  Tom material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to ksue an auditor’s

statement report that inchudes my opinton. Reasonable assurance Is 3 high level of assurance,
but & not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordarce with the Australian
Standards on Assurance Engagements will always detect a material mbstatement
when it exts, Mastatements can arise from frawd or error and are considered
materisd if, individually or in the agaregate, they could reasonatly be expected 1o
influence the deciions of uiers Laken on the basis of this perfamunce stalement,
As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professional judpeenent and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audin. 1 also:

. identify and assess the risks of matenal misstatement of the pesformance
statement, whether due to lraud or error, design ard perform audit
procedures responsive 1o those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and apgpropriate 1o provide a bas for my opinion, The risk of not
detecting » material mstatement resulting from fraud is Bigher than for one
resulling from error, as Iraod may evolve collusion, forgery, imtentional
omissions, misrepresentaions, of the override of interral control

. obtain an understanding of imternal control relevant 10 the audit in order Lo
design audit procediures Lhat ace appropriste in the circumstances, but not for
1he purpose of expressing an opinion on he elfectivensss of the countil's
internal control

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and coment of the performance
statement, including the disclosures, and whether performance statement
represents the underlying events and results in 3 manner that achieves fair
preseniation.

1 communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit lindings, iInchuding any significant
deliciencies in internal control that | identify durieg my audit.

)

o

MELDOURNE Travis Derricolt
6 October 2023 as delegote for the Auditor-General of Victorio
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Appendices
Donations and contributions

N S L

1st Lake Boga Sea Scouts Contribution $2,600.00
Annuello 100 Contribution $1,000.00
Annuello 100 Support $51.25
Australia Day Activities Contribution $7150.12
Chinkapook Reserves Committee of Management Inc Contribution $2,580.00
Fight Cancer Foundation Limited Contribution $2,000.00
Fijian Community Group Support $5,000.00
Go North Arts Festival Contribution $24,125.00
Go North Arts Festival Support $6,414.50
Lake Boga Bowling Club Inc Contribution $5,450.00
Lake Boga Yacht Club Inc Contribution $1,000.00
Lake Boga Yacht Club Inc Support $1,000.00
Landcare Victoria Inc Contribution $2,000.00
Lead Loddon Murray Inc Contribution $8,000.00
Lifestyle Markets Australia Inc Support $582.20
Lions Club of Lake Boga Inc Contribution $2,000.00
Mallee Almond Blossom Festival Committee Support $21,705.00
Mallee Steam Oil & Machinery Club Inc Contribution $5,000.00
Manangatang Hotel Contribution $1,000.00
Northern District Croquet Association Inc Contribution $1,000.00
Nyah District Christmas Carnival Committee Contribution $2,000.00
Pioneer Country Quarter Horse Assoc Inc Support $5,000.00
Robinvale Euston Event Management Association Support $1,570.85
Robinvale Lawn Tennis Club Inc Contribution $7,335.00
Robinvale Network House - Music Concert Support $1,000.00
Robinvale Network House - Robinvale Christmas Carnival Contribution $3,000.00
Robinvale Network House - Robinvale Christmas Carnival Support $528.20
Robinvale Rifle Club Inc Contribution $6,815.00
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N N L

Robinvale Wines Contribution $1,000.00
RocKwiz LIVE Under the Stars Support $25,000.00
Speewa Heritage Collectors Club Inc Contribution $1,800.00
Speewa Heritage Collectors Club Inc Support $4,000.00
Sustainable Living in the Mallee Contribution $1,000.00
Swan Hill & District Garden Club Inc Contribution $1,000.00
Swan Hill Badminton Association Contribution $1,500.00
Swan Hill Bowls Club Inc Contribution $8,000.00
Swan Hill Club Contribution $1,000.00
Swan Hill Field & Game Contribution $2,000.00
Swan Hill Football Club Incorporated Contribution $500.00
Swan Hill Genealogical & Historical Society Support $2,914.50
Swan Hill Incorporated Support $15,343.20
Swan Hill Incorporated Contribution $4,705.00
Swan Hill Jockey Club Contribution $1,000
Swan Hill Neighbourhood House Inc Contribution $5,000.00
Swan Hill Sikh Association - Diwali Festival Support $26,800.00
Swan Hill Theatre Group Co-Operative Ltd Contribution $3,500.00
Tennis Seniors Victoria INC Contribution $40,000.00
Ultima Football Netball Club Contribution $2,500.00
Ultima Progress Association Inc Contribution $1,000.00
Victoria Police Bowling Club Contribution $2,500.00
Visitor Community Comfort Centre Support $27.90
Youth Endeavour Scholarship - 2 years Contribution $4,500.00
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Appendix 2: Organisations of which Council is a financial member

e

Arts Hub Australia Pty Ltd $350.00
Australasian Fleet Managers Association $453.64
Australian Livestock Markets Association $737.88
Australian Livestock Saleyards Association Inc $1,536.85
Australian Museums & Galleries Association Victoria $221.82
Central Victorian Greenhouse Alliance $12,750.00
Community Childcare Association $254.55
Local Government Infrastructure Design Association $500.00
Murray River Group of Councils $9,601.68
Municipal Association of Victoria $29,725.00
Municipal Works Operations Association $250.00
Murray River Regional Tourism Limited $29,589.00
Performing Arts Connections Australia $1,000.00
Public Libraries Victoria Network $1,969.00
Public Galleries Association of Victoria $872.73
National Saleyards Quality Assurance Inc $565.00
Rural Councils Victoria Inc $4,000.00
School Crossing Victoria Inc $100.00
Victorian Association of Performing Arts Centres $1,555.45
Victorian Maternal Child and Health $75.00
Victorian Tourism Industry Limited $700.00
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Understanding the Financial
Statements

Introduction

The financial report is a key report by the Swan Hill
Rural City Council. It shows how Council performed
financially during the 2022/23 financial year and the
overall position at the end of the financial year

(30 June 2023).

Council presents its financial report in accordance
with the Australian Accounting Standards.

Particular terms required by the standards might not
be familiar to some readers. Council is committed to
accountability and it is in this context that the
following explanations have been developed to assist
readers understand and analyse the financial report.

What is contained in the Annual Financial
Report?

Council’s financial report has two main sections,
namely the report and the notes. There are five
statements and 10 notes. These are prepared by
Council staff, examined by the Audit and Risk
Committee and Council, and are audited by the
Victorian Auditor-General.

The five statements included in the first few pages of
the report are the Comprehensive Income Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity,
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Capital
Works.

The notes detail Council’s accounting policies and
the make-up of values contained in the statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

1. Comprehensive Income Statement

The Comprehensive Income Statement measures
Council’'s performance over the year and shows if a
surplus or a deficit has been made in delivering
services.

The statement includes all sources of income, less all
operating expenses incurred in delivering Council
services. This includes depreciation, or the writing
down, of the value of buildings, roads, footpaths,
drains and all other infrastructure assets that are
used to deliver Council services.

These assets are depreciated over the life of the
asset or as they are consumed. Capital costs or new
assets purchased or created during the year are
excluded from the statement but, as indicated above,
are depreciated as they are used.

The statement is prepared on an accrual basis. This
means that generally all income and costs for the
year are recognised even though the income may not
yet be received (such as interest on bank deposits)
or expenses not yet paid (invoices not yet received
for goods and services already used).

2. Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet is an important financial
statement. This one-page summary is a snapshot of
the financial position as at 30 June 2023. It shows
what the Council owns as assets and what it owes as
liabilities.

The bottom line of this statement is net assets. This
is the net worth of Council that has been built up over
many years.

The assets and liabilities are separated into current
and non-current. Current means those assets or
liabilities that will fall due or be consumed in the next
12 months. The components of the Balance Sheet
are described on the following page.

Swan Hill Rural City Council - Annual Report 2022/23
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Current and non-current assets

e Cash includes cash and cash equivalents
i.e. cash held in the bank, petty cash and term
deposits.

e Receivables are monies owed to Council by
ratepayers and other debtors.

e Other assets include income earned but not
yet received and accounts which have been
prepaid.

o Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure is

the largest component of Council’s worth and
represents the value of all land, buildings,
roads, vehicles, equipment, and other items
which have been invested in by Council over
many years.

Current and non-current liabilities

o Payables are those to whom Council owes
money as at 30 June 2023.

e Provisions include employee benefits, which is
the accounting term for accrued long service
and annual leave. Landfill restoration works
are also grouped under provisions.

o Interest bearing loans and borrowings, which
are repaid over a set period of time, finance
leases that are leases of assets where
ownership of the asset is transferred to the
Council.

Net assets

This term is used to describe the difference between
the value of total assets and the value of total
liabilities. It represents the net worth of Council as at
30 June 2023. The net value of the Council is also
synonymous with total equity.

Total equity

e Asset revaluation reserve is the difference
between the previously recorded value of
property and infrastructure assets and their
current valuations.

e Accumulated surplus is the value of all net
assets accumulated over time, including other
reserve allocations for specific projects.

3. Statement of Changes in Equity

During the course of the year, the value of total
ratepayers equity as set out in the Balance Sheet
changes. This statement shows the values of such
changes and how these changes arose.

The main reason for a change in equity stem from:

o The surplus/(deficit) for the year from
operations, described in the Comprehensive
Income Statement as the surplus/(deficit) for
the year.

¢ Revaluation of assets; takes on a regular
schedule basis on average every three years.
It also occurs when existing assets are taken
up in the books for the first time.

4. Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows summarises Council’s
cash payments and cash receipts for the year. This
statement is presented according to a very specific
accounting standard and needs some care in
analysis.

The values may differ from those shown in the
Comprehensive Income Statement because the
Comprehensive Income Statement is prepared on an
accrual accounting basis.

Cash in this statement refers to bank deposits and
other forms of highly liquid investments that can
readily be converted to cash.

Council’s cash arises from, and is used in, three main
areas:

Cash flow operating activities

¢ Receipts — all cash received into Council’s
bank account from ratepayers and others that
owed money to Council. Receipts also include
the interest earned from Council’s cash
investments. It does not include the costs
associated with the sale of assets.

e Payments — all cash paid by Council from its
bank account to staff, creditors and other
persons. It does not include the costs
associated with the creation of assets.

General Purpose Financial Statement

Page: 132 |
243

118

ATT: 2.21



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Cash flow from investing activities

The accounting term investing activities relates to
payments for the acquisition and creation of assets,
such as new plant, roads and other long-term
revenue producing assets, and the proceeds from
the sale of assets such as plant and land.

Cash flow from financing activities

This is where the receipt and repayment of
borrowed funds are recorded. The bottom line of the
Cash Flow Statement is the cash at end of financial
year. This shows the capacity of Council to meet its
debts and other liabilities.

5. Statement of Capital Works

Each year a significant portion of Council budget
gets allocated to Capital Works projects. This
Statement aims to give readers an understanding of
what capital works assets have been built, upgraded
or renewed throughout the financial year.

This Statement is broken down by asset category to
provide further information as to what asset
category these funds have been spent.

Notes to the Accounts

The notes are a very important and informative
section of the report. The Australian Accounting
Standards are not prescriptive in a lot of issues.
Therefore, to enable the reader to understand the
basis on which the values shown in the statements
are established, it is necessary to provide details of
Council’s accounting policies within the notes.

The notes give details behind many of the summary
figures contained in the statements. The note
numbers are shown beside the relevant items in the
Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet,
Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash
Flows and Statement of Capital Works.

Where Council wishes to disclose other information
that cannot be incorporated onto the face of the
Statements, this is shown in the notes.

The notes also include a comparison to budget
(note 2). This note reports on the actual
performance of Council to its adopted budget, and
provides commentary to all material variances.

The notes should be read at the same time as, and
together with, the other parts of the financial
statements to get a clear picture of the accounts.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Statements by Principal Accounting
Officer and Councillors

The Certification of the Principal Accounting Officer
is made by the person responsible for the financial
management of Council that, in his opinion, the
financial statements have met all the statutory and
professional reporting requirements.

The Certification of Councillors is made by two
Councillors on behalf of Council that, in their
opinion, the financial statements are fair and not
misleading. The Chief Executive Officer also
endorses and signs the certification.

Auditor General’s Report

The Independent Audit Report is the external and
independent opinion on the financial statements. It
provides the reader with a totally independent
opinion on the financial statements. The opinion
covers both the statutory and professional
requirements and also the fairness aspects of the
financial statements.
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Swan Hill Rural City Council 221202 Financel Regent

Annual Financial Report
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Centification of the Financial Statements

In my opinion, the accompanying financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Govemmer Act 2020,
e Local Govermment (Planaing and Repoming) Regulations 2020, the Australian Accounting Standards and cther mandmory
prolestional 10pOAng MQuremarnts.

A

Bhan Protap FCPA

Principal Accounting Officer
Date: 16 September 2023
Swan Hill Rural City Counol

10 Cur OpiNion, the accompanying financial statements prosant furly the Snancial transactions of Swan il Rural City Councd
for the year ended 30 June 2023 and the frandial posftion of the Councl as of Tat date.

A the date of signing, we are not aware of any orcumstances which would render any parsouars in the finencal statements
10 e maleading or naccurmte.

We hirve boen suthorsed by the Councl and by the Local Govemmen (Plning and Reponing) Reguteions 2020 1o conmify
e financial statemants i ther finad form,

Mr Les McPhee Mr Stuart King
Wtyen) Date: 10 September 2023

Date: 19 Septamber 2023 Swan Hill Rural Coty Councl
Swan Hil Rursl City Counci
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VAGO

Independent Auditor’s Report Victorion Auditor. Generaf's Office

To the Councillors of Swan Hill Rural City Council

Opinion I have audited the financial report of Swan Hill Rural City Council {the councd) which
comprises the:

. balance sheet as at 30 Jure 2023

. compeebensive income statement foe the year then ended

stateenent of changes in equity for the year then ended

statement of cash flows for the year then ended

statement of capital works for the year then ended

nrotes Lo the financial statements, induding significant accounting pokcies
certification of the financial statements.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, In all material respects, the finandal
position of the councd as a1 30 June 2023 and their linancial performance and cash Nows lor
the year then ended in accordance with the ficancial reporting requirements of Part 4 of
the Local Government Act 2020, the Loca! Government {Planning and Reporting)
Regulotions 2020 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1954 which incorporates the

Opinion Australian Audring Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor's Responsibiities for the Avdit of the Financiol Report section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constiwtion Act 1975, My stall and | are
Independent of the council i accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standasds Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are rebevant 10 sy audit of the lieancial report in Victona, My
13l and | have also fulfilled our other elhical responsibilities in accordance with 1he Code.

I beleve 1hat the sudit evidence | bave obtained is suffickent and appeogeiate 10 provide 3
bask for my opinion.

Councillors' The Councillors of the council ace resporsible for the preparation and fair peesentation of
responsibilities  the fimancial report in accordance with Australisn Accounting Standards, the Locol

for the Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Planning and Repovting) Regulations
financial 2020, aovd for such internad control s the Councillors determing is necessary 10 enable the
report preparation and far presentation of & licancisd report that is free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud oc error.

In preparing the financial repoet, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s
ability to contimue as a going concer, dischosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the goirg concern badis of accounting unless it is inappropriste 1o do 0.

Level 31 / 35 Colling Street, Melhourne Vic 3000
T 038501 7000 enguitiesiloude vic govow  wwwoudd we. gov.ou
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A2V Francsl Report

Auditor’s As required by the Audt Act 1954, my responsibility is 10 express an opinion on the financial

responsibilities report based on the audit. My objectives for the aud are to obtain reasonable assuranrce

for the avdit of  about whether the lirancial report a5 a whole is free from material misstatement, whether

the financial due 10 fraud or error, and Lo issue an auditor's report that indludes my opinion, Reasonable

report assurance is a high level of assurance, but is rot 3 guarantee that an suda conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standacds will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can aise from lraud or error and wre
considered material ¥, ndividually or in 1he aggregate, 1hey could reasonably be expecied
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintasn professional scepticism throughout the aude. | akso:

. identily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive Lo
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
Basis for ey opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is Bigher than lor oee resulting from error, a8 fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional cenissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

. obtain an understanding of interral control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expessing an opirion on the ellectiveness of the council's intemal control

. evaluame the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasanableness of
accounting estimates and refated disclosures made by the Courciliors

. conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on 1he auds evidence oblained, whether a material
unceriainty exists refated 1o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the council's ability to continue as a going concern. Il | conclude that a material
urCeriainty exists, | am required 10 draw altention in my auditor's report Lo the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinlon. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor's report. However, Tuture events of CoONditions May cause the
councl Lo cease Lo continue 35 3 going concern,

. ovaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the linancial report,
inchuding the diclosures, and whether 1he financial report repeesents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the phinned scope and
timing of the auck and significant auda lindings, inchuding any significant delickencies in
isternal comtrol that | idemily during my audit.

L

g

MELBOURNE Travis Deericott
6 October 2023 o3 delegote for the Avditor-General of Victoria
2
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 20272023 Frnancel Repert

Annual Financial Report
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Understanding Council’s Financial Statements

Introdwcton

Each your, Individual Local Governments across Viclona are requicod to present a sot of audned feancal staterments 10 Their
councd and comemunity

What you will find in the Report

;mwwmunwm.mmmwmammmwmm
June 2023

The format of the inanoal report & standard across all Victoran Councids and comphes with both the accounting and reporting
foquinerents of Austealas Accounting Standards and requieerants as sof down by Local Govemnment Victorla

About the Certfication of the Financial Statements

The Snancisd statements st be cortifed by semior stall and Counclion o “fresenting tarly”™ the Counal's financial resuits
for the year as wel as Councl's financial postion, and are toquired to be adopted by Counct - ensuring both resporsbilty
for and ownership of the Snancial statements.

About the Primary Financial Statements

The Snancial stalements incorpernate 5 “pamarny™ inascal stalements

1. Comprehensive Income Statement
Summarses Counails Snancial pedormance for the year, kstng al ncome & expenses.

Inchades Cther COMBeharmig INCome which ty de changes in Bw far vakes of Councils propety, ifrastructure,
plant and equpment

2. Balance Sheet
A 20 June snapshot of Councif's fimancial position Indkcating £ assets, Rabdtes and "net wealth™

3. Statement of Changes in Equity
The overall change for the year (in doltars) of Counci's “net wealth™

4. Statement of Cash Flows
indcates where Counciis cash came from and whete £ was spent

S, Statemant of Capital Works
This stitement detals 3 amourts expended by Coundl on capsal works.

About the Notes to the Financial Report

The Notes to the fnancial statements peovide greater detail and add@onal information on $he S primary fmancial statements.
About the Auditor's Reports

Cownofl's Anancial stateenents are requeed to be audited by the Vicioran Audtcr General's office.

The ausiar provides an aude 10par which gives an apnion on whether the fnancal stiderrents peesent tarly ®e Councils
fnancid performance and postion

Who uses the Financial Repont?

The fnancial report i a publcly avalable document and is used by (But not med to) Councliors, residents and ratepayecs,
omployees, supplers, contractors, customers, Local Government Victoria, state and federal governments, and fnanciers
nciudng banks and other financal insbitusons

The feancal statoments must be peesented a1 8 Councll meeting no 1ater than 1 month after scbmitting the anmual report
10 the Mnster
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 202272023 Frnancel Repert

Comprehensive Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 K022
Ndes $'000 $ 000
Income / Revenue
Rates and charges n 30800 2010t
Statutory fees and fnes 22 oss 1017
User fees 33 4407 4156
Grants - operating 14 18,142 15307
Grants - captal 2 25X 10,452
Contributons - monetary L 337 %5
Contrbutions - non monetary " 33 2%
Net gain (or 1083} on daposa of property, nirastructure, plant and e P 211
egaporent
Other mcome A7 4178 3563
Total income / revenue 61,529 65,201
Expenses
Empioyes costs “ 20570 0468
Materals and services “ 1%a 2084
Depreciation o 12,400 et
Amortisaton - nght of use assets 4 an 424
Bad and doubthul detts as &5 ()
Borrowing costs a0 70 163
Finance Costs « leases “r 14 24
Cther expenses an 3,533 0
Total expenses 54730 52 434
Surplusideficit) for the year 6.799 12,707
Other comprebensive income
oms that will not be reclassifiod to surplus or deficit in future peniods
Net asset revaluation incrementt decrement) " 45 359 09 524
Total other comprehensive income 45359 69,524
Total comprehensive result 52158 82,231
The above comgrehensive income sialement $50uks be 100d N COnENCEon with De acoompanying notes
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AN Francowl B
Swan Hill Rural City Councll o
Balance Sheet
as at 30 June 2023
2023 K022

Nedes $'000 $ 000
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash oquivalents . 5345 10580
Trade and other recervables L3 4,805 3
Other fnancial assets 8] 50,450 #0554
Invenones 82 184 sl
Other assets 82 2,082 316
Total current assets 62879 55,630
Non-curmrent assets
Property, infrastructure, plant and ogqupment LR 617,284 5M.720
Right-ol.use assets LY ] 2% 408
Intangiie assets .2 3840 3840
Other assets 82 90 %
Total non-current assets 621,360 576,037
Total assets 684 269 631,667
Liabilities
Current labilities
Trade and other payables (2] 2850 oS
Treat funds and deposts L) 485 468
Unearmed incomeirevenue L] 54482 420
Provisions se 8,858 soe
Itfecest-bede ng labidbes Se 278 an
Lease labiities 1 132 25
Total current liabilities 16,075 13,315
Non-current llabilities
Provisions " 1,243 324
infecest. bearing labites 24 2,000 2347
Lease abétes sam X 67
Total non-current kabilities 3,432 5748
Total labilities 18,507 19,053
Net assets 664762 612,604
Equity
Accumuiated surphs 337 961 e
Ressrves " 320,601 201 442
Total Equity 664 762 612,604

The above balance sheet shouid be resd in Songnclion with the Sccompanmyng noles.
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll

Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2023

X0
Balance at Beginning of the financial year

Surplusideficit) for the year

Other comprahensive income
Net asset revaluabion increment! decrement)
Other comperahensive income

Total comprehensive income
Balance at end of the financial year

22
Balance at beginning of the financial year

Surplusdeticht) for the year

Other comperehensive income
Net asset revaluabion increment! decrement)
Other comprohensive income

Total comprehensive income
Balance at end of the financial year

The abowe statement of changes In egulty should be read In COUACHON Wit the ACCOMDATANG nates.
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$°'000

812604
LX)
453599
453%
52158
664782

§30,373
12707

08 524
60,524

8223
612604

202073 Franoal Report
Accumuiated  Revaluation
Surplus Reserves
$'000 $ 000
331,182 281 442
6,760 -
- a5 356
- 45 30
6,759 45 35%
337 861 326 801
318 455 11918
12,707 -
- 09,524
- 0524
12707 63 524
331,162 281 442

Fage 130

ATT:2.21



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

2207 Francsl B
Swan Hill Rural City Council g o
Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2023
2023 2022
inflows) Inflows/
(Outflows) {Outfiows)
Nt $'000 $ 000
Cash flows from operating activities
Rates and charges 20,957 20336
Satutory fees and fnes 895 1017
User fees 4479 4165
Grants - operating 18,385 17.043
Grants - captal 3488 6433
Contnbutions - monetary 337 25
Infecest rocewed 182 452
Trust funds and deposits taken 17 184
Other receipts 145 3167
Net GST refund/{pay=wnt) 2,508 2684
Empioyee costs {20288 (20,274)
Materials and secvices (19129 (21,119)
Other payments (5.331) (2,201)
Net cash provided by\used In) operating activities 23 18,335 21,230
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, infrastructuee, plant and eguipment . (14 001) (16,241)
Proceeds Hom sale of propecty, nfrastructure, plant and equipment 1914 305
Payments for investments (0.596) (7.600)
Net cash provided by\used in) investing activities [22,943) (23.536)
Cash Nows from financing activities
Finance costs (") (463}
Repayment of borsowings 27) (5,168)
Irherest paid - lease labiny (14) (24)
Repayment of lease labdties (278) (447)
Net cash flow provided byl(used in) financing activities (634) (5.802)
Neét Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5,242) (6,108)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 10,500 15,608
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5348 10,590
Finanting artangements %e 2547 281
The abowe statement of cash Sows should e read I ConUNCEon with the 3SCOMpPaNng notes
Fage 131
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll g o
Statement of Capital Works
for the year ended 30 June 2023

2023 K02

$'000 $ 000
Property
Land 530 1298
Total land 539 1,298
Bungegs 5434 2m?
Total buildings 5434 2317
Total propesty 5973 3615
Plant and equipment
Part. machinery and equpment §13 1688
Foctures, feings and furndure ar2 9
Comguters and telecommumications 530 e
Aftworks 1 12
Library bocks 125 131
Total plant and equipment 204 1,911
Infrastructure
Sealed Roods 3050 5313
Unsealed Roads 1119 2165
Footpaths and cycleways 6y T8
Drarage 234 1.133
Recreatonal, losure and community facities 197 »
Wasle management 31 b3
Parks, cpen space and streetscapes Bas 1,106
Other nfrastructure e 110
Total infrastructure 7,069 10,671
Total capital works expenditure 15,108 16,197
Ropresented by
New asset expendture 5,005 8767
Asset reneval expendture 6,780 T80
Asset upgrade exgendture 3,318 1623
Total capital works expenditure 15108 15197

The above staternent of capital works shauld e read N conpuncion with fa sccormpanying noles
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Swan Hill Rural City Council 202372073 Frnancel Repert

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1. Overview

Introduction

The Swan Hil Rural Cay Councd was estabished by an Ovder of the Governor in Counal on 20 January 1665 and is a body
COIpOrate.

The Council's man office is located at 45 Spla® St Swan Hil
Statement of compliance

These linancal statements ate 2 genetal purpose Inancial fepcrt thi conmists of a Compreteniae Income Staterment, Batance
Sreet, Staterment of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Fiows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes accompanying
these fnancal statements. The general purpose fnancial report comples with Australan Accounting Standards (AAS). other

BURORMVE pronouncements of the Austiaban Accounting Standands Boad, the Local Governmen! Act 2020 and the Local
Governvreat (Flanning and Reporting) Regulséons 2020

The Councid 1s a not.for-profit entty and therefore apples the addtional AUS paragraphs applcable 10 a notdoe. proft entity
under the Australan Accounting Standands.

Significant accounting policles

1.1 Basis of accounting

Accouning policies are sedected and applied in & manner which ensures that the cesuling fnancial information satates the
concepts of relevance and refiabilty, Tvereby ensunng that the substance of the underlying transachons oc other everts is
feponied  Accounting policies appled ace discicted n Soctons whero the related balance of Tnancial statement matter is
dackned

The accrual basis of accourtng has been used N the preparation of these Snancal statements, except for the cash flow
nformaton, whereby assets, Ratvites, equty, IncOme and espenses are recognised in the reporting penod to which they
relate, rogardioss of when cash is reconed or paid

The fingocal staderrents are based 00 ™e hatorcal cost comvertion unless a difecent messurament bass is specfcaly
decioned in e notes fo Te firancal staterments.

Judgements, estimates and assamptions are required to be made about the carying values of assets and kabdties that are not
1eadly apparent om othet SOUrces. The eslimads and assccaled judgements are 2ased on peofessional judgement derived
Hrom hastor ical expetience and various cther factors that are bebeved 10 be reasonabile under the cecumatances. Actual results
may dffer from thess estmanes.

The firancal statements have boen prepared on & guing concern bass The financial staterents ase in Australan doliars. The
FCUnts prosanied in the Snancaal stiternents have Seen 1ounded 10 the rearest thousand dolam unkiss SRerwise speciing
Mnor dscrepancies in tables between Sotals and the sum of components are due %o rounding.

Revisions 10 accountng estmates are reccgnised in the penod n which the estemate s revised and also in future perods
That are afocted by the revision Judgements and assuvptions made by management in the agplication of AAS's that have
significant effects on the fnancial statements and estimates selae o

the tair value of land. butdings, infrastructure, plart and equipment (refer 1o Note 6.1.)

the determinaton of depreciation dor buddings, nfrastructure, plant and equipment (refer %o Note 6 1)

the determinaton of employes provisons (refer to Note 55)

the determinaton of lanchill provisions (refer to Note 5.5)

the detserminaton of whether pedformance cbigations ace suftoently specfic 50 as to determine whether an
& within the scope of AASS 15 Revenue fom Contacts with Customers or AASS 1058 income of Not-

for-Profit Entites (sefer to Note 3)

*  the determinabion. in accordance with AASS 16 Loases, of e lease term, the estimation of the discournt rate when not

Imgiick in the lease and whether an armangement is In substance short.term or low value (refer 10 Note 5.8)
*  whether of 2t AASE 1050 Service Concesaon Aranpemants: Graniors & agplcable
*  other aress requieng adgements

conbnued on next pege Page 132
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 2023023 Francel Repart

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 1. Overview (continued)

Unless othersise stated, all accounting poloes are consstont wih those appled = the pnor year Where approphiate,
compaeative figuses have been amended 1o #c0oid with Sumert prasentation and dacionure has been rmade of any matenial
changes %0 comparatives

Goods and Services Tax {GST)

Income and expenses are recognised not of the amount of assocated GST. Recewables and payabies are stated inclusive
of the amount of GST receivable or payadie. The net amcunt of GST recoverable from, of payabie 10, e taxation authority
n nciuded with cther recesvables of payabies in #he balance sheet

1.2 mpact of Covid-19

The Corcoavires (Conid 1) was declared a world - wide pandemic by the Workd Hea®s Crganisation in March 2000 The
Victorian Government advised that as of 11 58pm 12 October 2002 the pandemic declarabon ended, nNo longer requiing
POSEN G CaSeS 10 SOe

Thioughout 202223 Council contirged 10 receve further econome suppcrt with lunding for programs inciusing Local Roads
and Community Infrastructuce. that am 10 assist with the 8conomic recovery fom the pandemic

During 2022-23 the COVID-19 pandemic contimued to impact on Counoll's operabons. Councll has noted the folowing impacts:

*  Council suspeadiad their dedt collection activites during the pasdeme, rsuling in ncreased levels of cutstanding
debicrs. Debt coliection activities tesumed in June 2023
*  Increased stalf tumover and competition for postions, has resulted in staff shortages and ncreased costs due o the

neod to hite teerporarylagency staft

The above mpacts on the financial staterments for the year ended 30 Jume 2023, have lod to a recduction n meome and
expencdure n many areas, but has not resulied In a negatve impact %o Councils 30 June 2023 fnancial result.
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 20272023 Frnancel Repert

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2. Analysis of our resuits

Note 2.1 Performance against budget

The pedormance aganst budget rctes compase Council's & il plan. exp d through s annusl Sudpet. wh actual
pedormance. The Locad Governmend (Planmng and Repording) Regubdons 2020 requites explanation of any rmaterial

varances. Councdl has adopted a matenaity threshold of the lower of 90 percent or $1,000 000 wheve turther explanation Is
wWatTamed ExplanaSons have not boen peovided 100 vaNasens Selow the materally Breshald uriless Ihe VANANCS i Corsidered

10 be matenal becase of s nature
These notes are peepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 2020 and the Local Government (Plannng
and Repartng) Regulstons 2020

Buoget Actual Vanance Varance

2023 203
$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 % Nar
2.1.1 Income / Revenue and
oxpenditure
Income ) Revence
Rates and charges 30,763 30,500 ] 015%
Statutocy fees and fnes 1,065 o8 (1) (12 791% '
User fees 4840 &8 {143 (B08%
Grants - operating 11,608 18,142 6233 62 24% 2
Grants - captal 8744 250 (4.224) (62 831% ’
Contnbutions - monetary 217 7 120 §5 0% .
Contributions - non monetary - = 33 - .
Net gain on dsposal of propenty,
nfrastructure, plant and equipment 368 &0 {308) (83 70)% .
Other ncome 4 8as 4178 (7o) (14.51)% T
Totat income I revenue &0 621 61529 908 1.50%
Expanses
Employes costs 21,560 20570 w0 463%
Materals and services 16,662 19529 82 (16.05% .
Degreciation 11,357 12400 (1.043) .181% .
Amortisation - nght of use assets 237 n (&) (16 88)% 1®
Bad and doubthul detts 12 &5 335 (275.001% "
Bomowng costs 70 70 - 000%
Firance costs - loases 8 1“4 ()] (55 561% N
Othet expensos 1,285 153 (245) (19.201% 1
Total expenses 51,631 54,730 {3,198 B211%
Surplusideficit) for the year 9080 6,799 (2.29%) (25 20)%
contneed on next pege Page 135
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 227073 Francal Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2.1 Performance against budget (continued)

(i) Explanation of material vanations

Vanance Explanation
Ref
1 Building and plannng permit lees weee $185,000 below forecast due 10 a downtum n the levels of
Datkiing actvily and 50 3 reduction in B senices peovided by Councsl due 10 the iSssues associated wih
tecnating setably quakfied buldng and planning staff

2 Operatng grants favourable vanance includes Grants Commssion funding ($3,160 000), flood relet
{51.500,000), Rotevale Resource Centre - Communty Recovery Hub (5454 000} and addaonal funds
tecetved for the Our Region Ow Rivers progect Ouwr Region Our Rivers funds were recewed by Counal and
passad on 10 partnes Councis as thew projects wete completed

3 The budget included captal grants for Cur Repons Cur Rwvers (53,400000) and Locad Roads and
Comrevunty Infdastructuse (59,300 000), a8 at 30 Juse only 310,000 of ths fundng was received due 10
promct delays

a Councd wins able 1 allract addRonsd contnbusons towaeds the Roburake Workens Bus Piiot ($25 000)
Sealed Roads - Freeght Road Mapping (513,000, L2 program ($50,000) and the Waste Management
Kerbaide Awde {515,000).

] The Swan HEl Art Galliery received donated artworks %0 the value of $23.000 and the Swan Hl Litrary
rocenod donated bocks valued at $5 000

a Renewal of plant and equipment assets were below forecast due o production and delvery defays on a
rumber of sigrificant plant temrs. At year end Councd has a number of fems on order that ase yot 1o
fnnh production of be delvered

T The budget projected Tower Ml sales of (5§35 4M), actual sales were below ‘ocecast at $83 000 Ths
unfavourabie varance is ofset by increases in intecest rates and above forecast cash holdngs that resutted
" terest ncomo Being 51 AM above forecast

8 The majorty of this vanance (S1,645 000) relates %0 works budgeted as caglal expendture, but deemed
ot 1o meet Capitaliisation thiesholds and requirements and was thesedone expensed  In addtion 10 this
Counct noured $653,000 in costs refating to the October 2022 ficod event and fusl costs for the yoor
were $160,000 above forecast

] Followng the revaiuation of 10ads and footpaths at 30 June 2002, the deplecation expornse was higher
?an forecast due 10 the movement in unit rates.

10, The lease of an addbional taciity (McCrae St puble todets) aod reneea! of the Matemal Chik! Health
bakding had not been forecast

11 The provision for doutful debls relating 1 parking infringements and fnes has increased above Keecast
12 As per note 10 above, the new and renewal of leases was not forecast

13, The disposal of and assets no longer controlied by Councl.

conbneed on nead pege Fage 134

Page: 150 |
243 ATT: 2.2.1



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Swan Hill Rural City Councll i o o
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 2.1 Performance against budget (continued)

Budget Actwl Variance Varance

2023 223
$ 000 $ 000 $ 000 % A
2.1.2 Capital works
Property
Land 2.500 530 (1.981) (78 44)% '
Total land 2500 539 1.981) (78 441%
Butidngs 12,705 S4M (.211) 5729% =
Total buscings 12705 5434 7.271) (57 231%
Total property 15,205 5973 9.232) (80.721%
Piant and equipment & Culture and
herstage
Part. machinery and equipment 1402 o913 579 (B81% 3
Futures, fengs and furnitue 330 &2 142 4300% s
Computers and telocommunications. 1,450 %0 s S3.01% Y
Library bocks 160 125 (35) (2% 881% "
Artwores - 1 1 - T
Total plant and equipment & Culture
and hertage 39132 2041 1.007) (34 83/%
Infrastructure
Sealed Roads 4,262 3050 212 (78 44)% u
Unsoaled Roads 1,088 1.11¢ 3 285%
Footpaths and cyclemays 584 817 k] 5 65%
Drarage 88 sy (5%) (12.03% .
Recreatonal, lesure and community
tacites a4 197 153 4T 7% 1w
Waste management 1,197 3 (1.088) 97.221% 1"
Parks, open space and streetscapes 380 845 485 134 72% =
Othet mfrastructure 474 ) 822 47241% o
Total infrastructure 7618 7088 @) (10.47)%
Total capital works expenditure 2629 15,103 (11,152) (42 43)%
Represented by.
New assot expondtute 12378 5005 (7.373) (59 571%
Assat renewal expendture 10,385 6780 3.565) (34.501%
Assat Upgrace e3zendtine 3512 3318 {194) (5.52)%
Total capital works expenditure 26,255 15,103 (11,152 (42 453)%
conbneed on next pege Fage 137
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 2023023 Francel Repart

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2.1 Performance against budget (continued)

(i) Explanation of material vanations

Vanance Explanation
Ref
1 The budget allowed {S2.500,000) for the development of Tower Hil stage 15, works have commenced with
expondture of $320 000

2 The budget aliowed {57,197,000) for the Swan Hill Art Gallery and Visitation Centre and Swan Hil Tourlsm
and Culturad Hub projocts, with Only design and consultation works teing undertakan o dale

3 Deivery delays and chalienges in sowrcing plast, machinery and equigment replacements resulted in actual
expondtue (5913 .000) beng below budget ($1,492,000)

4 Robinvale Letsute Centre fit out ($330,000) has commenced with expendaure of $181,000 %o date
Other expenditue inchudes 5170000 for Town Hall Austorm ar-condbioning renewal and $85 000 for
parking mete: upgraces

5 Comrputerns and idecommuncations budget ncuded IT equipment replacement ($160,000). implermentaton
of the IT Strategy {$680,000) and actvabion of ightng and digital content at the Poneer Settiement
{5330,000). Actual expendture included IT egupment reglacement of $120,000 and activation of Iighting and
Agial content ™ Pionser Seement of S430 000 IT Strategy expendture of $380 000 was expensed
dee o Not meeting captalsaton rules or threshokls

8 Purchases made 1o provide non-bock materal for the Libracy were made from the libcary collection capeal

purchases budget These were expensed 1o ‘materials and services’, as they could not be captalsed n
SC0Ordance With Cur asset recognon thresholds and usedul Me criteria

7 Councl was able %0 purchase Artwork, funded by donatons 10 e Art Galiery acqustions tust

8 The seaked 10ads budget inciuded $1,033 000 for the senewal of Bunecworth Street, works have not yet
commenced

9 The majorty of the vanance relates 1o works completed on the Robinvale Town Levee beng below
budget

10 The budget ($44,000) allowed for design and crckat wicke! works at Gumett Oval, with works not
commanced 30 date. Actual sxpendiun Ncuses works 1 (rogeess for Robewale Leisure Centre Splash
Park, shade sals for Nyah Semming Pool and irrigation renewal works

" Waste management budget ($1, 117 000) included the construcion of a new waste cel and boundary
fence at Swan HE Lndtil Actual expenditure includes Intal desgn works $or new cel and Ubma compost
tacity

172 Parks, Opon SPAte and SUOSSCIPes varanoe relates 10 works on McCallum Street foopath $340, 000 and
Robimaale skate park $81 000

13 Other infrastructure budget (5174,000) included Livestock exchange ant-sp rutder mats and Swan Hil
Power wpgrades  Actual expendture includes senewal works 10 Swin Hil Asrodiome lighting and rumeey,
anti.sip rubber mats at the Livestock exchange and replacement of materad bins at Swan Mil depot

Fage 138
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 22207 Francl Repert

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 2.2 Analysis of Council results by program

2.2.1 Analysis of Council results by program
Couwncl delverns its funchions and actnites Brough e folioeing programs

Economic growth
mtmnmmmmemmmmwmmm
sock to help owr existing businesses % prosper. This function provides, bulding and planring statutory

management of Caravan parks, econOmc development ograms, topulalory seevices and mwmd
the Poneer Settiement and regional visdor information centre

Community enrichmant

Comrunty ennchment function wil provide a range of services 10 Indviduals and 10 the broader community that assist all in
Ow community 10 ive healthy, fufiling fves. 'We wil embrace our 10l 3s a regional centre by providing a range of cultural
opporunBes. The community annichment function inchades agod care services, matemnal and chid heal™ aler school and
vacabon programs. [ranes, art galery and perorming ans

Infrastructure

Infeastiucture will piovide and maintan pudicly acosasibin nirastructure that is appropate fof the comaunty’s needs n the
most effective and eMfcient manner poasitie. The infrastructure function i responsidie for constructing new infrastructure
and mantaning exstng nfrastructure across the rmunicipalty

Governance and leadership

Covermance and Radership provides etffcent, ellective and proactive SUpPO senices acrons Councl to enable the deltvery of
policy commitments, Councal vision and mussion The function will plan 1o 9w municpalty’s Bng tarm growsh and develcpment
by commiing to a robust program of strategc planning while representing cur commundy's interests and conducting our affars
openly and with integrity, reflecting the high levels of governance our COMMUNty expects.

2.2.2 Summary of income / revenue, expenses, assets and capital expenses by program

Grants
mciuded in
Income | Surplos Income | Total
Rovonue  Expenses (Defich) fevenue msots
Functionsfactrvities $ ‘00 $ 000 $ 000 $ 00 $ 000
2
Econcer Growth 8766 17 984 (11,186) 2680 5448
Community ennchment 5556 2050 (5,461) L) 2818
Ird-astructure 13,084 19,862 (5.208) 745 808311
Governance and leadensho 35210 7854 738 5940 64 862
Total functions and activities 61528 54730 670 20 682 034 200
2022
Economc Growth 15188 146845 S44 11,141 a7
Caomeunty ennchment 5019 8085 (3.018) 3746 2781
Infrastructure 1356 19557 (5.568) 6o 563 000
Governance and adenhip N 87 21137 38 56,600
Total fanctions and activities 85201 52 404 12,707 25,750 8316687
Fage 139
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Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services

3.1 Rates and charges

Councl uses Capsal kmgroved Value as the bass of valuaton of all properties within the mumicipal district. The Cagital
Improved Valie of & proparty 5 the value of s land, buldngs and imgrovements.

The vakation base used 1o calcuiate general rates for 202223 van $5, 561 milion (2001122 $4,756 milon)

Resadental 11,212 1,052
Commercal 1601 1638
Indhastral 85 &9
Farmvrural 12,580 11998
Supplemontary rates and 1ate adjustments 244 -7
Qartage chaege 3822 3620
Specal Marketing Rates e 30
Rate agreaments - Electricty Industry Act 82 6
Amandorments (13 (18)
Cther 17 "
Total rates and charges 30,808 30101

The cate of the latest geraral revaluation of nd for rI0ng purposes within the municipal dstrict was 1 January 2022 and the
vakation wil be first appled in the rating year commencing 1 July X2

Arnual rates and charges ase recognised as revenues when Councd issues annual rates notices  Supplementary rates are
recognsed when a vakation and reassessment is completed and a scoplementary rates nctice ssued

3,2 Statutory fees and fines

Infengements and costs
Bulding and planning fees

Asmal togatraton and relesse fees
Heatth registration fees
Cther fees. and fines

Total statutory fees and fines

2023 202
$'000 $ 000
47 es
823 &
197 160
134 96
B4 n”
955 1,077

Satutory fees and fnes (Including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided,
he payment is recered. or when the penally has been apphed, whchever first occurs.

conbneed on nead pege
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Swan Hill Rural City Councill

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)

3.3 User fees

Aged and heath secrvices
Admesistration fees

Chid carelchidren's programes.
Parking

Sales - Admissons

Hre & Leasing foes
Lvestock Exchange

Othet lees and chages
Total usaer fees

User fees by timing of revenue recognition
User foes recognised over time

Usar foes recognised o & port in ime
Total user fees

AN Fnancowl Report
2023 2022
$'000 §000
687 760
134 134
144 120
182 177
1,345 1239
508 a8
724 a37
a4 420
7 214
4497 4156
724 &
3773 3519
4497 4,156

User fees are recognised as revenue at 3 point in ime, or over Sme. when [(or as) the performance obagabion is satishied

Recogntion & based o the usderlying conteactual torms

conBNGed on nead pege
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Swan Hill Rural City Council X207 Francel Repert

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)

2023 022
$'000 § 000
3.4 Funding from other levels of government
Grants ware receved in respect of the followng
Summary of grants
Commonweaith funded grants 15,262 17428
State furded gramts. 5410 8320
Total grants received 20662 25,759
(a) Operating Gramts
Rocurrent - Commonwoalth Government
Fimancial Assistarce Grants - general purpose * 7,306 6613
Firancial Asssstarce Grants - local roads * 330 2886
Harme and communtly Cane 1,583 1537
Out of school hours care 259 246
Recurrent - State Government
At Gallery and periosmng arts. 100 150
Lbranes 217 294
Matermal and child heath 545 400
Pubic boath 05 &4
School crossing SUpenvisorns 50 49
Other 118 120
Total recurrent operating grants 13674 12260
Norrecurrent - Commonwealrh Governmenr
Home & comerunity care 112 108
Our Regon Cur Rivers 1318 on
Nonwrecurrent - Stafe Government
Communty projocts 8 27
Cutural hertage 50 266
Economic development 124 520
Emeigency managereniiesponse 1,500 -
Employment subsdies - 5
Erwircamental protection 85 163
Famdy and chidren 359 421
Lbranes n 12
Waste management - oq
Other 19 60
Total non-recairent operating grasts 4,488 307
Total operating grants 18,142 15,307
contnesd on next pege Page 142
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)

2023 2022

$'000 $ 000
(b) Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads 1 recovery 793 1372
Total recurrent capital grants 793 1372
Noo-recuvrent - Commonwealth Governvment
Asrodrome - 250
Local roads and commendy mfrastructure program 160 2173
Qur Region Cur Rivers 330 830
Norrecurrent - Stare Government
Art and hertage 43 7
Buildings 04 2807
Drarmage - 224
Lvestock exchange - 3
Parks playgrounds and street beauthcation 640 1302
Recreation, leisure and communty faciites 302 (=)
Roads - 128
Waste management 25 40
Othet 133 315
Total pon-recurrent capital grants 1727 9.080
Total capital grants 2520 10,452
contneed on next pege Fage 14)
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 202372073 Francel Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)

(€) Recognition of grant income

Before recognising funding from gon ent grants as the Counol assesses whether there s a cortract that Is
erforcoadio and has sufficently spedific performance ONigations in accordante with AASS 15 Revenue fom Contracls wih
Customers Whan bomh these condBons are satinfied, the Councll

« ientfios each perdormance cbligabon relating 10 revenue under the contract/agreement

-« detenmines the Yansaction poce

~ 10COgNises @ Contract Rabiity for B OLEQALONS under the aeerment

« recognises revenue s @ satafes its perdformance obiigabions. #t the time of over Bme when senvices ae tendered

Where the contract is not enforcoabie andior does not have sufficiently speofic performance otligatiors, the Councl apples
AASE 1058 income for Nol-for-Frofe Enltes.

Grart reverue with sulficiently sgechic performancs cbigations & recognsed over trme as e pedomance cbigasons
specied in the undedying agreement are mel Where periormance obigations are not sufficiently specfic, grants are
recognsed on the earler of recept of when an unconditonal nght % receipt has been estabished. Grants relating to capital
projects are genstaly recogeised progressively as the cagital projoct is completed The following talile crovides a summary
of e accounting framework undet which grants ane recognaed

Income recognised under AASE 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

General purpose 7,906 681

Other speaific puipase grants 8813 6827

Spectc purpose grants 10 acguire nondnancial assets 2519 10,452

Revenue recognised under AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Spectc purpose grarts 2,023 1,787
20,681 25759

(d) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a

specific manner

Operanng

Balance at start of your 1797 31

Received dunng he fimancial year and remaned unspent at balance date 350 9140

Recomed in peioe yeaes and spert during e fieancial yesr () (7.404)

Balance at year end 2023 1,767

Capiral

Balance at stant of yoaur 2,400 8504

Recened dunng he firancial year and remaned wnspent ot balance date 1782 2150

Reconed in peice yedrs and spert during e feancial year (854) (5.184)

Balance at year end 3418 2,490

Unspert grants are determined and disciosed on a cash bass.

712023 100% of e 202024 slocation wes recerved peor 10 Ane 30 (2022 T5% of the 2022720 slocation recened pror 10 June 30)

conBNeed on nead pege Fage 184
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Swan Hill Rural City Councill

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)

Non-monetary contributions
Non-monetary
Total non-monetary contributions

Total contributions

Contributons of non monelsry 055ots wove recewed i refation 10 She Solowing asse classes

Library Books
Artwors
Total non-monetary contributions

2A2V07 Francs Report
2023 x022
$'000 § 000
337 -
337 295
33 %
33 38
370 3054
5 4
28 36
3 35

Monetary and non monetary contnbusons ale recognsed as Jevenue at ther fau vailue when Councd obtains control over

he comtnbuted asset

3.6 Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant

and equipment

Property, Infrastructure, plant and equipment
Proceeds of sake
Writien down value of assets deposed

Totat net gaink(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructare, plant and equipment
Total net gain/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment

194

{1854

€0

The peofit of o6s 00 sale of a0 assel & dedermmed when conmedl of the asset has passed 16 the buyer

contnued on next pege
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 3. Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)

3.7 Other income

Inflecest

Resnborsements
Tower Hl land sales

Less - Tower Hll oosts of gocds sold
Revenue from volumeer services
Other

Total other income

Interest is recognsed as t s carmed.
Cthet mcoeme 5 Measuiod 3t the ter value of the consdaaton eceied of
control over e right %0 recewe the income.

Page: 160 |
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$'000 § 000
1822 452
960 768
638 2008
51 -
320 174
180 150
4176 3,583
etvabie and is gnised when C d guirs
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Swan Hill Rural City Councill 222073 Fruncal Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 4. The cost of delivering services

2023 22
$ 000 $ 000
4.1 Employee costs
(2) Employee costs
Wages and salares 16475 15,796
WorkCover 224 1,113
Supetannuabion 2357 1588
Fringe benefits tax 4 3
Agency stalt sa7 =
Long service keave 201 320
Salt traming 168 138
Othet 18 118
Total employes costs 20570 20,458
(b) Superannuation
Cownacl made contributions 10 the folowng funds
Defined benefit fund
Empioyer contributions 10 Local Authontes Supsrannuation Fund (Vision Super) 73 103
73 103
Accumulation funds
Employer contnbutions 1o Local Authonties Superannuation Fund (Vison Super) 2,200 1808
2209 1,828
Total superannuation costs 2262 1,951
Redec %0 Note 93 for further nformation relating o Councils superannuation cbigatons
2023 2022
$'000 $ 000
4.2 Matenals and services
Cortract payments 775 10267
Bullting mantenance 013 734
General mantenance 2,443 1644
Utites 1,204 1.208
Oftice admunestrabon wmr 56
Information technology 708 s
Insutance 1.047 a7
Corsutanes 709 L]
Communty Grants $pONSONRR and Contributons 2244 2048
Volunteer services - cost of service 328 174
Other 1,541 1.55%
Total materials and setvices 19,821 20,614

Experaes are recognised as ey are noured and reporied in the fieancal year 30 which they relate.

conbneed on nexd pege Fage 147
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Swan Hill Rural City Council X207 Francel Repert

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 4. The cost of delivering services (continued)
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2023 022

$'000 $ 000
4.3 Depreciation
Property
Bullgings - specaksed 1,205 1282
Baldings - non specalsed 80 78
Total depeeciation « property 1375 1330
Prant and equipment
Plant machinery and equipment 933 g2
Foctures feangs and Sanituce 266 b vy
Comguterns and telecomms 28 65
Artworss AL kL)
Libtary Collecton 130 128
Poneer Settiement vehcles & vessols 58 58
Paneer Settiement st exhitds 2 2%
Poneer Settiement tuiidngs n 1"
Total deprociaion - plant and oquipment 1,560 1549
Infrastructure
Footpaths and cycleways 518 300
Drarage 850 o6
Recr L o Nty 368 %8
Waste management 97 o7
Parks open spaces and streetscapes “7 345
Sealed roads 5325 3644
Unsealed roads 1,861 1,243
Other nfrastucture Ps)) e
Total depreciation - Infrastructare 9,485 7032
Total depreciation 12,400 89011
Refer fo node 82/ c ) 56 and 6 1 for o more delaled breakdown of depreciadon and amorhsation charges and acoountng
pobzy

2023 oered

$'000 $ 000
4.4 Amortisation - right of use assets
Property 77 424
Total Amortisation - Right of use assets 7 Q4
contneed on next pege Fage 143
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Swan Hill Rural City Council i o
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 4. The cost of delivering services (continued)

$'000 § 000
4.5 Bad and doubtful debts
Parking fine dobtors 43 48
Rates debtors - 20
Other dedbors 2 2
Total bad and doubtful debts - allowance for impairment losses & 70
Movement in allowance for impaimment losses in respect of dettors
Balasce at the beginning of the year 338 8
New prov Sicns recognsed during the year 35 €0
Amounts aready provided ¢ snd wiitien off #s uncoliscsble (10 Y]
Amounts provided for But recoverad during the year 10 10
Balance at end of year 373 338

An alcramnce Sor mparment losses in respect of debtons & fecognmed based on an expected credd oss model Tha model
considers both historc and forward fooking indoemabon in determining e level of imparment.

4.6 Borrowing costs

irtevest - Borrowngs
Total borroming costs

2023 22
$°'000 $ 000
0 s
70 163

costy ate recognsed as an expense i the petiod in which ey ate noumed,. except wheoe they are capriaised a8

Borrowing
pat of & qualifying asset comstructed by

4.7 Finance Cos!s - leases

intecest - Lease Liabides
Total finance costs

contnued on next pege
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 202572073 Francel Repart

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 4. The cost of delivering services (continued)

2023 2022
$'000 § 000
4.8 Other expenses
Audions’ rerruneration - VAGO - audt of e firancal stasterments, pedormance
statement and grant scquitials 56 60
A Bors' reunatation - Imemal Aust a2 16
Counciiors’ afowances 25 207
Assaty weitten-off / impasted 574 (=33
Operating lease rentals 180 r g
Viehicle registrations. 100 83
Bank Charges a2 &5
Legal Conts 7 )
Fre Services Lovy 80 e85
Others o7 83
Total other expenses 153 820
Fage 120
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Swan Hill Rural City Councill

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 5. Our financial position

5.1 Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

Current

Cash on hand

Cash at bank

Tetm deposts

Total current cash and cash equivalents

(b) Other financial assets
Current

Tetm deposts - cutrent
Total current other financial assets

Total current financial assets

2A2V07 Francs Report
2023 22

$ 000 $ 000
13 13
5,335 7538
- 3041
5343 10,500
50,450 #0554
50 450 40 554
85758 51,144

Cash and cash egurvalents inciude cash on hand, deposits at call and other highly lguid investments with ongnal maks bes

of thoee months o less, net of outstanding Bank overdiats

Other fmancal assets are valued at fair value, 2t balance date. Term deposats are measwed at ongimal cost Any unrealsed

pans and losses on hokdngs at balance dade are rECOPNSOd & OINEr A IEVEnUe Of CXpense

Other Enancial sssets mciude term deposts and thase with onginal matunty dates of Bree 15 12 months are dasshied as
currert, whist term deposts with matunty dates greater than 12 months are cassfied as non-current

contnued on next pege
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll

Notes to the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

() Trade & Other Recelvables

Current

Statutory recevabios

Rates debton

Infrngement deblors

Pravate scheme deblors

Net GST receivabi

Non-statutory recevabies

Loans and advances to communty CIgansatons
Other dedtors

Provisons for doubifu! debts

Proviscn 1o douttful cebts - rates debtons
Provision for douttful debts - infringements
Provincn for doubtful Sebts - cther debacoes
Total current trade and other receivables

Non-Currant
Non-statusory reconabies

Total trade and other receivables

AN Francsl Report
2023 022
$ 000 $ ‘000
3367 2515
389 30
4 4
135 38
45 48
1,235 1.003
o 5)
(220) (254)
(%) 9
4805 3,666
4 806 3856

Short ferm recewables are cartied at Invoce amount. A peovision ot doubthd debits i recognised when there is otyective
evidence that an imparment has ocourred  Long teom receivabies are camed at amortsed cost using the effective inferest

e mathod

contnued on next pege
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Swan Hill Rural City Councill 222073 Fruncal Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

{d) Ageing of receivables
The ageing of the Council's trade & cther recenvables {exciuding stalutory recenatios) that ate not imgaited was

Current (not yot duo) 487 130
Pant due between 31 and 180 days 215 629
Past due between 181 and 365 days m 137
Past due by more than 1 year 524 146
Total trade and other receivabies 1277 1.045

() Ageing of individually impaired recelvables

Az balance date_ other debiors representng fnancial assets with 3 nominal value of 50,414 (2022 £8 741) were impared
The amount of the roviscn raised aganst Dese Sebiors was S8 414 (2022 $8,741) They indvidually have been impared
% 8 rest of theit doudtful collection Many of the long outtanding past due amounty have been lodged with Counci's cebt
collectons of are on payment acrangements.

The agerg of receivables $hat have been indwidually determined as impaired at reporing date was:

Pant due by more than 1 year 6 8

Total trade and other rocesvabies L 9

continesd on next pege Fage 15
Page: 167 |

243 ATT:2.21



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Swan Hill Rural City Council 222073 Francel Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

2023 2022

$'000 § 000
5.2 Non-financial assets
(a) nventories
Current
Inventones held for aistribusion 39 152
Irvertones hold for sade a7 3%
Tower Hil Estate 88 44
Total current inventories 184 1

Invertiones held for datribusion are meassred ot cost, adiasted when appicable for any loss of secvice potental Af other
nventones, including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realsable value Where inveniones are
2oquIred 1or NO COSE OF NOMNA| CONSINETAton, they are measured at current replacement Cost at the date of aoguUISItion

(b) Other assets

Curront

Prepayments n 125

Accroed mcome 1,780 156

Other 35 35

Total current other assets 2062 316

Non-curent

Other 50 %0

Total non-current other assets 80 50

(<) Intangible assets

Watet nghts 3,840 3840

Total intangible assets 3840 3 840
Water Rights

$ 000

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance at 1 July 2022 3840

Balance at 30 June 2023 3840

Net book value a1 30 June 2022 S840

Net book value at 30 June 2023 3840

Wator rights are valoed at curtent market ates. The valuabon is based on market tansactons teing the trading of water
shares wihe the relevant water Badng egon. Prices are soueced from the Victonan Water Regaer 5o winter traded withn
Tradng zone 7 VIC Mumay - Barmah to SA

conbneed on next pege Fage 154
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 202372073 Frnancel Repert

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

2023 022

$'000 § 000

5.3 Payables, trust funds and deposits and unearmed
income/revenue

(a) Trade and other payables
Current
Noo-statulory payadles
Trade payabies . 30
Salacs and wages a, (T3]
Accroed expenses 1,312 1.704
Total current trade and other payables 2880 3,025
(b) Trust funds and deposits
Current
Refundable deposts 03 150
Firw setvioes propesty vy 12 -
Retention amounts 260 318
Total current trust funds and deposits 485 458
{c) Unearned Incomelrevenue
Current
Grants received in advance:
Grants recenod In avance - operating 2023 1767
Grants received in advance - captal 38 2450
Totad grants received In advance 5441 4257
User fees recalved in advance:
Other 1 %
Total usar foes recorved in advance 1 1%
Total current unearned Incomeirevenus 5442 4276

Unearmed imcomeirevenue represents contract kabiities and reflect consideration recenved in advance hom customens n
respect of grant ncome payable 10 extemal parner Councl's and capital works projects. Unsarned incomefrevenue are
devecogrised and ecorded A% MOVENUS WhHEn Promised Goods And senices ae Marslered 10 he custormer. Refer 1o Note 3

Armourts received a3 deposts and retention amounts controlied by Councl are recognmed as trust funds urtl they are refurned,
transforred N accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeted. Trust funds that are forfeted, resutting n council ganing
control of the funds. are 10 be recognsed as revenue at the time of forfel.

Purpose and nature of items
Refundable deposts - Deposits are taken by Councll as a foem of surety in a number of crcumstances, indudng i refation
10 buliding works, tender deposits, CONtract Copasts and he use of civic laciites

Free sarvices property Levy - Counal i3 the collection agent for fre secvices properdy vy on behalf of the State Government
Counol remnits amounts recened on 2 quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here wil be remitied to the state govermment n
ine with that process.

Retention Amounts « Counal has a contractual 1ght to retam certan amounts untl a contractor has met certan

fequremaents of 8 related warrant or defect penod has slapsed . Subyect to the satdactory completon of the contraciual
obiigations, of Be elagsng of time, these amaunts wil be pasd 1o the televant contracttr in kne with Counal's convactunl
obhgatons.

conbneed on next pege Fage 155
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 202372073 Francel Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

2023 022
$'000 $§ 000
5.4 Interest-bearing liabilities
Current
Other barrowngs - secured 278 n
Total current interest-bearing liabilities 278 n
Non-<urrent
Othe: borrowngs - sacured 2.0600 2347
Total non-current interest-bearing labilities 2069 2,347
Total 2347 2618
Borrowngs are secuted by Swan Hill Rural Cty Counal Geneesl Rates
2) The maturity profsie for Councll's bomowings is:
Not ater ™han one yoar 8 n
Lader than ore year and not later than fve years 1,013 1568
Later than fve yoars 156 6

2347 ame

Bomowings are inBally measwed af fair value, beng the cost of the nterest dbeanng kabities, net of transaction coss. The
Medscreerint Bass Subsequent 10 intial tecogntion depends on whather the Councl has categornsed 28 interest-bering
kateition as ether financial habities desgnated ot far value through the profit and ioss, of financial kabikties at amortsed cost
Any afference between the inBal recognsed amount and the redemption value is recognsed in net result over the perod of
he BOmowing using the effective ntenest method

The dasshicaton depends o0 the nature 85 purpose of the nlerest bearng labities. The Council determines the cassfication
of &s inftecest bearng Sabdtes at Intial recogniion

conbneed on ned pege Fage 156
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Swan Hill Rural City Councill 222073 Fruncal Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

Employee Lanafill
provisions restocation Total

$ ‘000 $'000 $ 000
5.5 Provisions
222
Balance at the baginning of the fnancial year 5156 3.004 8250
Addmonal provisions. 1888 () 1418
Armourss used (1,672 - (1,672
Change n the Sscountied amount afseng bocause of tme and the
oMect of any change i the dscount rate 169 @) 108
Batance at the end of the financaal year 5141 2,860 510
Provisions
Provissons -« current ag’e 1,882 L
Proviscns - son-curment 165 1078 1.243
Total Provisions 5141 2,980 8100
2022
Balance ot the beginting of the fnancisl year 53540 1,558 6907
ASdronal provisions 1134 1442 2578
Amourts used (1,471) - (1.471)
Change n the dacourted t g b of trma o the
o¥ect of any change m the Ascount rate 144 4 238
Balance at the end of the financial year 51%6 3004 8250
Provisions
Proviscns - cutrent 5016 - 5018
Provisons - noa-cutrent 140 3,004 3234
Total Provisions 5156 3004 8250
conbneed on nexdt pege Fage 157
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 202372073 Francel Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

2023 022
$'000 $ 000
{a) Employee provisions
Current provisions expected to be wholly settied within 12 months
Annual leave 1322 1280
1.602 1563
Current provisicns expected to be whelly settied after 12 months
Arnual leave 300 315
Long service leave 3074 3138
3374 3452
Totat current employee provisions 4978 5016
Non-Currant
Long service loave 165 140
Total Noa-Current Employee Provisions 165 140
Aggregate Carnying Amount of Employee Proviscns
Cumrent 4,676 s016
Nancurrent 185 140
Total Aggregate Carrying Amount of Employee Provisions 5141 5156

The calouation of employee costs and benefits inciudes all relovant on-costs and are calculated as 1olows at reporting date.

Amnual bave

A labiity for anrual leave s recognised in the proviscn for empioyee bmetts as a current labdty becaiune the Counct does
not have an uncondtional nght to defer settiement of the Jabity. Liabiltes for annual leave are measured at

« nomnal value if the Councll expects 10 wholly seftle the Sabdty wehin 12 months

- present value if the Councd does not expect 10 wholy settie within 12 months

Labities that ace not expoectnd 10 be wholy sefed within 12 manths of the tepring date are recognised n the piovmicn for
empioyee benefts as cument labdtios, measured at the present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the lablties
e softied using the remunerabion rate expected 1o apply at the bme of settiement

Long servee mave

Labdty fot long sennce leave (LSL) s recognmed in the peovision for employee benefits. UncondBional LSL » daciosed os
a cutment liabaity as the Councll does not have an uncondtonal night to defer settierment. Uncondtional LEL Is measured at
nomnal value £ expected 10 be settied wathin 12 months of at present value if not expected 1o be semied within 12 months.
Constonal LSL that has beon accrued, whare an empioyee 14 yet o reach & qualtying teem of ermploymmnt, is dadlosed as
a non-current kabilty and measured at present vakue

Koy assumgons

« dscount cate a.05% S85%

- Sex rate 435% SE9%

COnBNGed on nead pege Fage 158
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 202372073 Frnancel Repert

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

2023 2022

$'000 $ 000
{b) Landfill restoration
Current
Cutrent 1882 -
Total current 1882 -
Non-carrent
Noncument 1,078 30
Total non-current 1078 3054

Councal s abligated 1 restone Swan Hil and Robovale sdes 19 8 partoular standaed The forecant He of the wte & tased cn
currert esbmates of remaning capacty and the forecast rate of infil. The provision for landfil restoration has been calculated
based on the present value of the expecied cost of works 10 De undertaken The expected cost of works has been estmated
Dased on cutrent understanding of work requited 1o reestate the ste 10 a suitabie standaed  Accondngly, e estimation of the
Provision requited = dependient on the acouracy of the forecast timing of the work, work requined and related costs.

Counal reviews the andi restorabion provision on an annual bass, iInduding the key assemptions isted below

Koy assumgnons

« dscourt rate 4.0%% 3%

- Index rate 8.00% 810%

Total provisions

Current

Employee provsons 4676 5016

Landfil restoration 1,682 -

Total current provisions 4576 5,018

Non-<cerrent

Empioyee provmons 165 140

Lanafil restoration 1,078 3084

Total non-current provisions 3125 3234

5.6 Financing arrangements

The Council kas he 1oiowing fanding artangements in place a3 & 30 June 2023

Credt cand facities 200 X0

Loans and borrowangs 2347 2618

Total Facilities 2547 2818

Used facites 2378 2850

Used faciities 2378 2650

Unused facilities 160 168

contnesd on next pege Fage 159
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Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

5.7 Commitments
The Councl has entered nto the foliowing commiments. Comemttments are not in the Balance Sheet
Commisments are disciosed at ther nominal value and presented incksive of the payable.

{a) Commaments for expenditure

Not later later than 2 later than 5 Later than
than 1 year yoars yoars S years Total
$ 000 $'000 $ ‘o $'000 $ 000
203
Operating
Butiting and property
maintenance 110 - - - 110
Cleaning - councd butidings,
public tollets. barteques a1 7
Cutural and hevtage 14 - 1
Loenses 76 - 76
Masagement & cperations of
the PS Pyap 307 - - - 207
Macerials and supples T2% - - - ™
Otfice equpment and
supphes & - 85
Other Indastructure s - - 35
Professional servioes 655 20 0 721
Recreaton, Wisure and
comemunity laciites 1462 2230 2220 - 5822
Unforms 1% - - - 15
Waste management
operabion and kertede
collecton AL 508 508 T04 180t
Total 4028 2,758 2,754 704 10,244
Capttal
Bultings T2 - - - 722
Cutural and hertage " - - - -
Drarage £ - - - k2
Footpaths - - - - -
Land 19 - - - 19
Other frastucture e - - - 202
Matera’s and supples - - - - -
Parks and ogen spaces 115 - - - 115
Pant & equpment L0 - - - o
Professional servees - - - - -
Recreaton and lesue assets 3459 - - - 3481
Sealed roads 355 1,303 - - 5168
Total 8757 1,300 - - 11,080
contnesd on next pege Page 160
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Note 5. Our financial position (continued)
Laterthan 1 Later than 2

year and not  years and not
Not later Iaster than 2 later than § Later than

than 1 yoar years yoans S years Total
$ 000 $'000 $ ‘0o $'000 $ 000
Fored
Operating
Buikding and peopenty
marierance “©6 - - - 408
Cleanng - counol Dulangs,
public toets. barbeques 6 - - 20
Cutural and hectage - - - - -
Loenses & - - a3
Maragoement & operations of
the PS Pyap o1 - - - (e
Matorials and supplios 1,050 25 » - 1191
Office equipment and
supphes 72 - - 72
Othet Inkastructre 24 - - 2
Professicnal servees 2583 - - 2688
Recreaton, leisure and
comimundty - - - -
Unforms 2 - - 2
Waste
operabion and kertexde
coliection 230 - - - 2301
Total 7584 po] 22 4 7 Bas
Capital
Badings 5100 - - - 5100
Cutural and hertage a7 - - - 8a7
Drarage e - - - 36
Footpaths 163 - - - 1683
Land n - - - 2
Othet wirastructure 7006 151 - - AL
Matenad's and supples 539 - - - 536
Parks and open spoces 641 - - - (23]
Part & ogupment 543 - - - 543
Professional servoes ) - - - L)
Recreation and lesute smsets 5179 - - - 5179
Sealed roads 1149 - - - 1,140
Total 21,583 %1 - - 21,734
conbneed on neat pege Page 161
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Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

(b) Operating loase recervables
Cperating lease recelivables

The Council has entered Lo COMMEEDIa peoperty leases On As Invesament property, consasting of surplus freehold office
complonss. These PIoperes held under operating lekses have reeaining non-canceliable lease tecrs of between 1 and 10
yoears Al leases nclude 3 CP1 based revision of the rental charge annually.

Futue endmcounted minmum rentals recewable under non<cancellable operatng

Bases ace a3 fllows
Not later an one year s 448
Later than one year and not later than five years 820 1.250
Later than fve years 73 et
1,368 2300
conbneed on next pege Fage 167
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Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

5.8 Leases

At inception of a contract, Councd assesses whether a contract is, o contans, a lease. A contract i, of contains, a lease ¢
he cONact conveys the nght 10 contrel the use of an identhed asset for a penocd of tme in exchange for consideration. To
danily whather & CONIact Comveys the Nght 1o contrel the use of & identifod Kiset. B is NOCSSAry 10 Assass whether

*  The contract nvoives the use of an identfed asset,

*  Council has the nght to obtan substartaly all of the economic benefts om use of the asset Bwoughout the period
of use, and

*  Council has the tight to drect e use of ™ assat

This policy Is apphed 1o contracts emered Info, or changed. on of afier 1 July X018

As 2 lessee, Councl recognises a nght.of-use asset and a lease labdty at the lease commencement date. The nght-of-use
wiset % itally measwed at coat which compises the nital avount of the Base labity adjusted for

= any lesae payments rade ¥ or Sefote the commencament date less atry lease Incantives receved, plus

= any intial drect costs incurted, and

* an estmate of costs 10 dismantie and lemove the underying asset of 1O restore the underying asset or the ste on
which 2 is located

The rght-of-use assat is subsequently depreciated using the straight-lne method from the commencerment date 10 the sarker
of the end of the usehd Ife of e right.ol.use asset o the end of the Jease torm The estimated useful ives of nght-of.use
REsets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and egquipment. In adstion, the nght-of-use asset is
percdcally reduced by impament losses, f anry, and adjusted for certan mesutements of the ase labity

The lease labity & intially measured a1 the present value of the jease payments that are not pad at the commencement date,
dacounted using the intorest rate mplot n the lease or, if that rate cannct be readiy determined. an apgropnate incremental
borrowing rate. Generaly, Counci uses an appeogriate noremental BOmowing 1ate as the discount mte

Lease payrnents included o the meassrement of the sase Rabiity comprise the foliowing

*  Faed payments

¢ Varnable lease payments that depend on an ndex o a rate, ntially measwed using the Index Of rate as o the
COMTRNComent date.

*  Amounts expecied to be payabtie under 8 residual value guarantee, and

*  The exercse price under a purchase opbon that Councd s reasonably certaim 10 exercise, loase payments in an optonal
recewal perod if Coundd 15 reascnably Ceralm 1o exarcise an extens.on Opbon, and penaites for early terminaton of a
lease wless Countal is reasonably Certain Aot 1o lermnate eurtly

VWhen the loase kabédty is remeasured in ths way, 8 corespondng adjustment is made 10 the carrying amourt of the nght.ol.
use asset of is recosded In profit or 1oss # the camying amourt of the nght-ol.use asset has been reduced %0 zero

Under AASSE 16 Leases, Counci as a not4or-profit entty has elected not 1o Moasure Nght-of-use assets at indial recogmtion
o1 falr value in respect of leases Bat have sgnificanty below-macket Sevms.

Cowncl has 3 number of Peppercom Leasses for parceds of crown land or land controlied by cther enttes. The leases of land
e used to provide Open SpPace and recreation areas 10 residents along With a Major tounst atiraction in ™e area In known
a5 the Picaeer Setement.

Detads of Puppercom Lesses held by Councdl are as lolows

Remanng Term
t:ﬁo-u 7 $ Pev Aanum
Land - Poneer Settiement 25 years S0
| ake Bogs Boat Ramps and Jetry 2 years $1
Vancus paccels of VicTrack Land (parks & v s $1 each
Lcint User Agreements - Departvent of .
A Vunuo.mq 50-8101:']

conbnued on next pege Fage 16
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Note 5. Our financial position (continued)

(a) Right-of-Use Assets

Property Total
$'000 $ 000
203
Balance at  July 408 408
Acdrons 104 104
Amortisaton charge (2re) 276)
Balance at 30 June 236 26
2022
Balance at 1 Jily 444 444
AddBons 388 a8
Amortisation charge (a4 (424)
Balance at 30 June 408 408
2023 xn
$'000 $ 000
(b) Lease Liabdfties
Maturity analysis - contractual undiscounted cash flows
Lens than one year 132 24
One %0 five years 18 154
Nore than fve yoans 8 2
Total undiscounted lcase Rabilibes as at 30 June: 256 447
Lease labilities incloded in the Balance Sheet at 30 June:
Cutrenmt 132 o
Noncurment 120 167
Total lease labilities 252 48
Short-term and low value loases

Council has elected not 1o tecognise rght-ol-use assets and lbase fabilties for short-term leases of macknery that have
@ lease totm of 12 months o less anct leanes of lowvalue sssets (ndvidual sssets worth loss than exnsing captaisation
theesholds for @ ke asset up % 2 maximem of $10,000). inchding IT equipment. Council recognises the lease payments
assocated with these Bases 35 an expense on a Straight-kne basis over the lease term

Variable lease payments are those that depend on an index of a rate, for example payments Inked 1o the consumer groe
ndex, 8 benchmark Berest (e of Changes in marked rental tites.

Non-<canceliabie lease commitments - Short.term and low-value leases
Commarments for mesimam lease payments for short-leem and iowvakee leases ate payabie as folows

Payatie

Withn one year

Later than one year But not latex than five years
Later than fve years

Total lease commitments

S WA -
SN WL -
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Note 6. Assets we manage

6.1 Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Carrying
amount

Summary of property,
infrastructure, plantand 0 Une 2022
equipment $ "000
Property 126 554
Prant and equipment/Cuiture
and heritage assets 17.120
Infrastructure 420748
Work in progress 7317
Total 571,738
Summary of Work in Progress
Property
Pfant and equipment
Infrastructure
Total
continued on next page

Additions
$'000

2481

2,041
5837
4744

15,103

Contributions
$ 000

Revaluation
$ ‘000

17.001

(561)
28919

45,359

Disposal
$°'000

(1,681)
(173)

(1,854)

Depreciation
$ 000

(1.375)

(1.560)
(9.465)

(12,400)

Opening WIP
$ 000

3,662

619
3.036
7317

Write-off
$ 000

(713)

(713)
Additions
$ '000
3492

1.252
4744

202272023 Financial Repon
Carrying
amount
Transfers 30 June 2023
$ '000 $ ‘000
2541 144 808
660 17.559
2,356 448395
(5,557) 6.504
- 617,266

Transfers Closing WIP

$ 000 $ ‘000

(2,541) 4613

(B60) (41)

(2,356) 1.932

{5,557) 6,504
Page 165
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Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

Land Land non
specialised specialised
$ '000 $'000
(a) Property
Al fair value 1 July 2022 69.527 7,668
Accumulated depreciation at 1
July 2022 - -
69,527 7,668
Movements in fair value
Additions 539 -
Revaluation 12951 1326
Disposal - -
Wite-off (313) (248)
Transfers 458 -
13,635 1,078
Movements in accumulated
depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation - -
Accumuisted depreciation of
disposals - -
Accumuiated depreciation on
revaluation - -
Accumulated depreciation of
write offs - =
Al fair value 30 June 2023 83,162 8,746
Accumulated depreciation at
30 June 2023 - -
Carrying amount 83,162 8,748
continued on next page ...

Total land and
land improve-
ments

$'000

91,908

Bulldings
specialised
$ '000

105,512
(60,353)
45,159

1.942
26,602

(464)
2,083
30,163

(1,393)

{22,526)

312
(23.607)

135674

(83,861)
51.813

Buildings non
speclalised
$ '000

(236)
4,200

1528
{1.681)

(153)

Total
buildings
$'000

109,948

(60,588)
49,359

1,942
28,130
(1,681)

(4564)
2,083
30,010

(1,375)
(25,406)

312
(26,469)

139,957

(87,057)
52,900

2022/2023 Financial Report

Work in Total

progress property

$ 000 $ '000

3662 190,805

= (60,589)

3.662 130,216

3.492 5973

- 42,407

- (1,681)

- (1,025)

(2,541) =

951 45674

- (1,375)

- (25,4086)

- 312

- (26,469)

4613 236478

- (87,057)

4613 149,421
Page 166

ATT:2.21

Page: 180 |
243



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Swan Hill Rural City Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

(b) Plant and Equipment & Culture and heritage assets

At fair value 1 July 2022

Accumulated depreciation at 1
July 2022

Movements in fair value
Additions

Contributions
Revaluation

Disposal

Transfers

Movements in accumulated
depreciation

Depreciation and amortisation

Accumulated depreciaion of
disposals

Accumulated depreciation on
revaluation

At fair value 30 June 2023

Accumulated depraciaton at
30 June 2023

Carrying amount

continued on next page ..

Plant Pioneer
hinery Fi s Settlement Ploneer
and fittings and and vehicles & Settlement
5000 $ 000 $ 000 $°000 $°000 $°000
12,808 4,450 1,200 1829 5730 7814
(8,514) (3.113) (895) (70) (58) (7.181)
4292 1347 205 1.759 5672 633
913 472 530 1 - - »
- & = n = & =
- - - - - - 2,216)
(1,315) - (23) - - - -
433 54 173 - - = -
31 526 680 28 - - {2.216)
(933) (266) (98) (18) (21) 22)
1,142 - 23 - - -
- - - - - 1,655
209 (286) (75) (18) (21) 1.633
12,837 4,988 1880 1,857 5729 5569
(8,305) (3.400) (1.070) (68) (115) (5.538)
4532 1.586 810 1.769 5614 61

Total
$ '000

(21,519)
17,120

2,041
32
{2,216)
{1,376)
660
(859)

{1,560)
1,203

1,655
1,298

37,780

(20,223)
17,557

202272023 Financial Report

Total plant

and

equipment/c

ulture and

Work in heritage
progress assets
$ ‘000 $ 000

819 30,258
- (21.519)
619 17,739
- 2,041
- £
- (2.216)
- (1,376)

(650} (1,519)

o (1,560)
- 1,203

- 1,655
= 1,298

1) 37,739

- (20.223)
(41) 17,516

Page 167
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Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

Recrea- tional, Parks open
Seded Unsealed  Footpaths leisure and Waste spaces and Other
roads roads ¥ Y g y " p
$°'000 $°000 $'000 $ 000 $ ‘000 $ o0 $'000 $ 000
(c) Infrastructure
Al fair valos 1 July 2022 306,678 115291 32437 58491 18536 6819 13415 13787
Accurmdated deprecation st
1 July 2022 2.0 (14,623) (15.205) (21,062 8.320) .625) (5.827) 0.954)
235688 100,688 17.232 37.429 12216 194 7.488 9,833
Movements in fair value
Addtions 2,706 o9 288 4 51 - 675 a4
Revaluation 15434 5,765 1621 9943 3151 .03 2,280 2344
Disposal - - - - - - - -
Write-off - - - - - - - -
Transfers 1,408 134 368 2 - - 246 -
19.548 6,898 227 10,179 3202 1.023 3401 3228
Movements in
accumidated depreciation
Depreciation and
amortsation 5,525 (1,881) 1§ (650y (368) 97 “17) (231
Accurmdated depreciation of
drporaty - - - o - - - -
=
on revaluation 3650) 73M) (e {3,680y (1,130 (884} (1078 M2
Revalution - - - - - - - -
(8.975) (2.502) (1.276) (4.230) (1505) (1,091) (1,495) (943)
Al faie vakos 30 June 2023 328,224 122190 714 63670 21,739 7841 16,616 17,018
Accurmdated deprecistion st
30 June 2023 (81,985) (17.216) (18.481) (25.292 (7.825) (7.7115) (7.422 4,896)
Carrying amount 248259 104,974 18233 43378 13913 126 9364 12,118

continued on next page |

Total
$'000

567454
(146,706
420,748

8%
41,561

2,356
49,754

(12642
(22,107)
617,210

(168,815
448,395

202272023 Fnancial Report

Workin

$'000

570490
(146.708)
423,784

7,089
41,561

48,650

(12,842
(22,107
610,142

(162.815)
450,327

Page 168
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Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

AQUisiton

The purchase mehod of accounting is used for all acqusitions of assets, deind the far value of assets provided as
conMSeraton At The date of acquiion phas any Incidental coats attnbutatie 1o Be scqualion Fair value s the price Bat
would be recetved %0 sell an asset (or pasd to transfier a Katdity) n an orderly transaction between market parbicipants o the
measwerment date

Whete assets ae constructed by Councl, cost inciudes of materals wsod in constiuction, direct labour, bommowing costs
nowrted duning constraction, and an appropaate share of ditectly attrutable variable and fxed overheads

In sccordance with Councils policy, the theeshold kmits have applied when recognisng assets wenin an applicable asset class
and uniess otherwse stated are CONSEIent Wi the prior year

Asset recogrition thresholds and depreciation perods

Page: 183 |

243

Depr eciation Thireshoid
Pericd Umit
yons $ w0
Lang and Land Improvements
Bubdings
Butangs 30 to 190 years 19
Detdng mprowemants 30 1o 100 years 19
Leasehokd srgrovernents 51015 years 1%
Plant and Equipment
Plactt machinery aad ogupment
Large plart 10 yeurs 3
Smak plast 2 years )
Fuhures. Sm9egs and famiture 5 yoars 3
Campsters snd lelecammuncadons 30 Syeans 2
Cultaral and haritage
Anworks 100 years -
Librery Calecton 510 100 years -
Paneer Setterment vehicies & vessels 100 yeurs s
Pioneer Setlement wte sahibity 100 ywars 3
Pneer Setlerment butidagy 100 yowrs 1%
nfrastructre
Sealed road frmaton - 19
Sesied road pavenents €010 100 yoars 1
Sesled road seals 1510 80 yeors 10
Road anclary assets 2010 25 years 1%
Unsasied road neters serfece . 1w
Urnveaded rosd gravel surface 30 yeurs 1°
Kerd end chasnel 2510 50 years 10
Foolpaths and Cpteweys 2010 100 years 10
Dvavrage 2010 100 yewrs 19
Recreation 'sisere and communty cites 1010 90 yeors 19
Warte mana gament 10 yoary 1°
Parks open space and sieetscapes 1010 80 years 10
Ctner wirasruonre 1010 150 yoars 10
Land under roads
Councl 1ecognises land under roads £ controls at fair value
conbneed on next pege Fage 169
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Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

Deprocialion and amorisason

Bulldings, land improvements, plant and equigment nfrastiucture, and other assets having limited usebd ves ane
systemascally deprocaned vl ther uselul bves 1o e Councl in 8 mannes which iefiacts Consumpton of the service potential
ombodied in those assets Estmates of remaiming useful Wves and residual values are made on a regular bass with major
asset casses reassessed annually Deprociabion rates and methods are reviewed ancualy

Whete assets have separate dentiable components that are subject 1o tegular replicemont, these COMPOoeNts Are assigred
datnct useful ives and rosciual vakues and & separate depiecaton rate s determened for sach companent

Road earthworks are not depreciated on the basis that they ace assessod as not having @ limited useful ite
Straght line deprociation s charged based on e residual useful ife as determined oach year.
Degrociation periods used a0 kslod sbove and &0 conSistont with The pior pedr unless ctherwise stated

Repars and manfenance
Where the repalr relates to the repacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the captalsabion threshold the
o8l is Capitalised and dopreciated The carrying value of the replaced asset s expensed

Leasahold imgvovements

Leasehold improvements are recognsed at cost and are amortised over $he uneapired penod of e lease of the estmated
uselul ife of the mprovement, whichever & the shorter. At balance date, leasehold improvements ace amortised over a2 5 to
15 your pencd

Vaiuation of land and butidings

Valuation of land and bulkdngs were undertaken by a qualhed ndependent valuer Campbedl Kennon AAPI Reg 103503 The
waluation of land and buldngs is at far value, beng maret value based on highest and best use pematied by relovant land
pannng proviscns. Whare Bnd use & st icied Irough existing planming provisions the vakaton is seduced 10 reflect this
imtaticn. This adjustment i an uncbservable nput 1 the vakation The agjustment has no iImpact on the comprehensive
noome statement.

Spocaised land is valued o lar value using sto values adusted for englobo (undeveioped andior USenVioed) CHharacler sics,
acoess rghts and pivite intereats of cther parties and enttiermerts of nfrastructure assets and secvices. This adjustment is
an unobservable nput In the valuation. The adustment has ro smpact on the comprehensive Ncome statement

Any significant movements in the uncbeervable inputs for land and land under 10ads wil have a sgnfcant mpact on the fair
vilue of hese assats

The fait value assessed may change signficantly and unexpeciedy ovier o relatively short period of Sme (ncluding #s a resut
of factors that the valuer could not reasonably have been awace of as at the date of valuation) Refer %o Signficant accounting
polickes under Overvew secton and Note 8 4 for further nformation on fair value measurement

The cate of the current valuation is detaded = the following table

Detadts of the Council's tand and buldings and information about the fair value Necarchy as a1 30 June 2023 are os foliows

COnBNGed on nead pege Fage 170
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Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

Date of
Lowel 1 Lowel 2 Level 3 valuation  Type of Vakusion

Leng - - 874 MY Full revalustion
Specatans and - - 018 WNN Full revalustion
Belangs - - 1087 00NN Full revaliaton
Buddng - specuined - - 51,813 WOoa Full revaluston
Totad - - 144 808

Vaivation of infrastructure

Valuabion of infrastructure assets has been determined iIn accordance by apphying the most secent unt rates as calculated
trom a sacrgle of intermal and extemal proects

The cate of the current valuation i detaded = the foliowing table
The valuation is ot ter value tased on curent replacement cont less accumulated deprecation as o the date of valubion
Detaily of the Councils infrastructure and infoemation about the fak vakue hcscchy as at 30 June 2023 are as folows:

Qats of

Lovel 1 Lewel 2 Level ) valuation  Typs of Valuaton
Sealed roads - - 246250 o Index based
Unsesled roads - - 104 974 20N Index based
FOOam s and Cytlewnys - - 123} wosmn Index based
Draraze - - 4337 WOWND Index bewad
Recr lonyre & ety
:ines - - 7 WOouN Index bewes
Waste mans psmant - - 126 xownn Index baved
Packs cpen space & wresticipen - - 034  wowen Index based
Cther rastoctere - - 12158 20060 Index based
Cultural and hertage assets
Detads of e Councl s cultural and hertage svsets and formmation stout the far valee hierarchy ae of 30 Jone 2003 aw as falows:
Aok - x 179 worew  Nareslation
Paoneer Setlerman! vehicios snd
vessels - - 565 WO i revaluston
Poness Setiement sie exhibity - - 2555 wownn Full revaluston
Paneer SefSermant befdagy - - " W00 Full revalustion
Totst - - 45834
Valuadon of cutural and hertage assefs
Arwors

Valuation of ameork assets has Deon dotenmeed in SCCOMAson with &0 IndepIndent valuabon undecaken by Waiten Joel
Aucton and Vakation Secvices. The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2018 Valuation of the assets was detemined
by analysing comparable sales of an artst's work, knowledge of the collechons hatory and condition of the collecton

Ponser Settiement

Valuation of Poneet Settlerment vehicies 3od vestals and slo exhit sssets wis conducted By qualfied indepandent vaiue:
MW David Freeman member of Auctioneers and Vakers Assocation of Australa, aed Chiel Executve Officer of Amande
Adams Auctions, Buleen, Victora The vakuation is basad on avecage market realsabon pnces that should be obtained f the
toms were soid via private treaty or auction sales. The effective date of the valuaton & 30 June 2021

Valuation of Poeeer Settlorent bulldings were undenaken by quaifed independent valosr, Campdell Kennon AAP! Reg
103506 3 o1 30 Juse 2023

The vakuation is ot far value based on replacement cost less accumulated deprecation as at the date of valuation

conbneed on nesd pege Page 171
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Note 6. Assets we manage (continued)

Descripeion of significant unobservable inpurs into level 3 valuarions

Specialised land and and under roads o valued usng & markel based drect comparnon Mchmigue  Sgnficant
uncbservable mputs include the exterd and mpact of restcton of wse and the market cost of and per square mete The
extent and Impact of restnchions on use vares and resulls n a reduchon 1 sumowndng land values betwoen 25% and T5%
1of speciaiised land and between 85% and 95% for land under s0ads. The market value of land varos significantly depending
on the eason of the land and the current market conditions. Currently land values range between $0.12 and $450 10 per
square metre

Specialised bulldings ace valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Sgnificant unoservable inputs include
the cutrent reglacement cost and recraining ol Ives of Buildings. Current replacement costs aoe calculated on @ squane
metre basis. The remaning Useful ves of buldings are determined on the Sass of the current congition of bulldings and vary
from 10 years fo 100 years. Replacement cost is senstive 10 changes in market condBons, wih any increase of decrease n
o8t flowng thicugh 10 the vakation Useful Iives of bulidings ace sensitive 10 changes in expectations of requiesments that
Could athar shorten of extend the usedd lves of buldngs

Infrastructure assets are vakued based on the degreciated replacement cost. Signficant unobservabie inputs Include the
current repiacement cost and remaning usetul ives of infrastructure. The remaining useful ives of nfrastructure assets are
determined on the basis of the cument condtion of the asset and vary from O years to 100 years. Replacernent cost & senstive
10 changes In mivkel condBons, with any incréase or decrease In cost flowing Beough 10 the vakaton Useful lives of
nfrastructure ace senstive 10 charges in Use, expectations of requirements that coukd efher shorten or exiend the useful Ives
of infrastruchure assets

Anwork assets are valued Based on the miket based drect comparson approach. Signiicant uacbsarvalie mputs inchde
the rarty of Se fem hatorica! sgnficance and the history of the arSst I thece are events that delsrmine certain pieces of the
coliection %0 be of histoncal signécance, f the artist has works that have noreased o popularity of the Sem & considered to
be race and in demand, ths would result in & higher fair value

PIONoer Sttiomont VeRCIos And vassels Ao 808 exNLE assets a0k valued besed on 1o market Based difact COMpansen
approach Sgnficant uncbsarvable inputs Include the ranty of the tem and histoncal ssgnficance. If there are events that
determane cortam pleces of the coliechon 10 be of histoncal sigaificance or the fem is considered 10 be rare and n demand,
s would resutt in a higher far vake

Pioneer Settlement bullings are valied using & dopraciated replacement cost tachnigue Signéicant unctaervable nputs
ncude the cument replacement cost and remaning useful ves of buldngs Current replacement cost is caicuated on a
squate metre bass. The remainng useful ives of bulidings are determined on the basis of the curent condition of bulangs
arvd vty feoem 1 year 1o 54 yedrs. Replacement COSL & Sensive tO changes in Matket Condhons, with any NCoease of Secroase
n cost Nowng theough 10 the vakustion Useful ives of buldings are senutive 1o changes m sxpeciabons o reguirements that
couls ether shorten of extend ther useful ives.

Reconctiation of specistined land
w0 w2
000 § 0
Land under roads 2. LSRE
Parks and teserves 1088 14725
Crown Lasa 11.073 P
Total specialised land 83082 o 527

(c) Community Asset Committee

All oreties controlied by Couscd that have materal income, expenses assets o labities, such as communily asset
commitiess, have been ncluded n s fraacl report Any transactons Between these enttes aod Councll have been
ehminated in full
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Note 7. People and relationships

7.1 Councdl and key management remuneration

(a) Related Parties
Parent entty

Swan Hil Rural Cty Counal is a single ety

Subsilanes and Azsociales

Councl has o intesests in subsiSation and associstes

(B) Koy Management Perscaned

Key management

(KM=} are those people with the authoety and

A2V Francal Report

for planming. directing and controling

persannel responséty
he actviies of Swan Hill Rural Cty Councd. The Counciliors, Civel Executive Ofcer and Executve Deoctors ase deemed

Detads of KMP at any time during the yoar ate:

Ohies Mayor Les McPhee
Depaty Mayor Snsart King
Cr Bll Moar
Cr Ao Young
Ct Chris Jeffery
Cr Nicole Mc¥ay
Cr Jade Benham
Cr Jacque Kelly

Chief Executive Officer
Mt Scott Barber

Directors M Bruce Myers {Communty and Cultural Services)
Ms Hoather Groen (Planning and Development)
Ms Svotls Peteova (Infrastructune)
Ms Leah Joteston (Infrastucture)
Ms Helen Morris (Acting Corporate Sevvices)
Mt Bran Pratap (Conporate Services)

Total Number of Councillors

Total of Chied Executive Officer and

other Key Management Personnel

Total Number of Key Management

Personnel

contnesd on next pege
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0841 272008 10 30062023
1711172200 to 30V062023
167112046 to 30042023
15/ 12016 10 300062023
154172016 10 SO0E023
16042016 to 002023
18032019 10 18072022
24012023 1o 3008023

0E0672002 10 30082023

20021664 to 30062023
03072017 10 30062023
1122017 12 101202022
Q302023 1o IN02023
17012022 10 18072022
18072022 10 30062023

2023 K022
No, No.

8 7

15 15
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Note 7. People and relationships (continued)

(¢} Remuneration of Key Management Persannel

Remunenation comprises employee benefits inclusing all forms of consideration pad, payabie or provided by Counch, or on
Dohal of e Councd, n exchange for seraces reodered. Remunetaton of Key NManagement Persosnel and Other sencr stalt
n daciosed in the folowng categares

Short-term employee benefits nclude amounts such a8 wages, salanes, annual leave of sk leave that are usually pad or
payable on a regular bass as well 2s nonmonetary benefts such a5 alowances and free of Subsicised QOOdS Of SENVOes

Other long-term employos banefits nclude iong senice lese, oer lorg senice benelits of deferied compensation

Post-ompioymaent benefits nclude persons, and cther tetrement benefits paid o payable on a dacrete basis when
employment has coased

Termination benefits inchude temunation of empioyment payments. such 5 SeVerance packages.

2023 a2
$'000 $ 000

Total remuneration of key management persconel was as Sollows

Short-germ empioyee bonefits 1,188 1487
Other long-term empiayee beneflts 65 45
Post-amployment benebts 15 13
Totad 1368 1645

£8
8

The rwumbess of key management personnel whase 1ol remuneration from Councll
and any related enties, fal within the following bands

$1.55600

$10,000 - $19,900
$30,000 - $39.900
$40,000 - 545,909
$70,000 - §79,900
50,000 - $82,600
$90.000 - $99,900
$120,000 - $136,899
$180,000 - $186 850
$190,000 - $166,909
$220,000 - $220.000
$200,000 - $266 600
$300,000 - $300 000

it | B == =NV -. -
I = | ot | ] | -

—
-
W
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Note 7. People and relationships (continued)
{d) Remuneration of cther senicr stalf
Other senior stalf ace offcers of Counch, other than Key Management Personnel whose total remunerabon exceeds $1060,000

253 Who 1epart drectly to & member of the KIMP. *

Total remunecation of cthes senior sta®! was as Sollows.

2023 w2
$'000 $ 000
Srort-term employee benefits an 44c
Cther kong-term employee becelts L)) »
Pest-employment benefts 100 47
Termmation benefits - .
Totas 1,062 s2e
The number of other senor staft are shown below in thewr relevant iIncome bands
2023 x2
No No.
income Range
$170,000 - $176 600 3
$180,000 - 5180 000 3 1
L 3
2023 2022
$'000 § 000
Total Remuneration for the teporting year ot Seesor Officers ncluded above
amounted o 1,082 520

* Due 10 0 Sefintional chane the comparative Souies I Ihs note Mary NOL AEON with The previous Yeor's 80sull repon, whith nduded
Suclosnre of senvor Oficers a8 Gefned In the Loce! Government Act 1686
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Note 7. People and relationships (continued)

7.2 Related panty disclosure
{a) Transactions with related parties
During the penod Councll enterad nto the following transactons weh related partes

Stuant King n HAl Hire - $70.085 Pant and equpment hee
King has a controling nterest in Swan Hil Hire
Nicole naie Living n the Makee - 51,000 Event Supeort Fund

{b) Outstanding balances with retated parties

The tohowing balances ave cutstanding at the end of the reporting penad in relation to ransachons wih related parties.
222= N

2022 = Ne

{c) Loams tolfrom relsted parties

The aggregate amount of loans in existence at balance date that have been made. guaranteed or sacured by the councd fo
# related party s folows

23 = Ne
2022= Nt
{9) Commitments tolfrom retated parties

The aggregate amount of commiments in exstencs 3t balince date that have been made, guatanieed ot secured by Be
counced 1o a rolated party a0 &% folows:

2023= Ne
X022 = N
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties
B.1 Contingent assets and liabliities

Contingent assets and contingent Sabdties ace not recognised in the Balance Sheet, bat are dsclosed and £ qguartifable, are
measwed at nominal value Contnpent assets and Rabdtes are presented inclusive of GST recewvabie of payabie, respectively

{n) Comtingent assets

Contingent assets ate possible assets that arse from past events, whose existence wil be confrmed only by e ocowrence
Of NON-COCUITENCe Of ONe Of MONE UNCHTTAN Ature events not wholly within the contral of ™e Councld. AT balance date the
Councl 300 not wemte of 0y COMINGENE A5sets

{b) Contingent liabilties

Contingent labities are:
- possitie oblgations that anse om past ovents, whoss exisience wil be confinmed only by Ihe OCCUEIENCE Of NON-OCOWTENoS
dmammmmm-mmnmdnc«n-aa
present obiigations that anse from past events but are not recognised because.
« s not protable ™at an cutfiow of resources embodying economo benedts will be required 10 setie the cbilgadion, or
« the amoust of the ctiigation cannot be moaiured with sufficiest relabdey

Superansuation

Councl has cbigations under a defined beneSt scperannuaton scheme that may sesult in the reod 10 make adddional
contridetions to the scheme, mattens relatng 1o this potental cbigason are cutined below. As & tesul of the valatity in fnancial
mackets the likelhood of making such contritutions in future penods exists.

Future superannuabon condidusions

In additon 10 the dsciosed contnbutions. Council has pad unfunded labity payments 10 Vision Super totaling SO (2021/22
$0). There were no contiitations cutstandng and no loans sued rom of 1o the above schames as at 30 Juse 2003 The
expectnd contnbutons 1o be pad 1o the Defined Beneft category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2024 are $48 283

Landte
Counol ogerates a lanafill. Counall wil have 10 carmy out ste rehabibtation works in the future. At balance date Councll has a
provision in place for these remediation works.

Liablinty Mutual Insurance

Councl 5 2 participast of the MAV Liabikty Mutual iInsurance (LMD Scheere. The LV scheme provides pubic labity and
peofessional ndemnty insurance cover The UMI scheme states that each partopant wilf reman labie 10 make further
COMIbutions 10 the Schoens i respect of 3oy INSUrance yost » which It wirs & patSEant 1o the eaent of & patcpants
share of any shorfal in the ceovsion set asice In respect of that NSUANCS yedar, and such labikty will contnue whether ot
nok the pSOPant remains a pardapant in future Insurance years.

MAV Workcare
Councl was a partcpant of the MAY WorkCare Scheme. The MAY WorkCare Scheme provded workers compensation

nwrance MAY WorkCare commencad business on 1 Noverrber 2017 and the last day the Schame opecated & a
solf-asurer was 30 June 2021 In accordance with the Workplace Inury Rehabiitaton and Comgensation Act 2013  there s

actuanal assessments of e Scheme's tal clams labises as undertaken WVMSJOVM i 10quired, adusiments
will cocur at e Syear and G.year points during the labilty penod, and wil atiect patiGpating members.

(c) Guarantess for lcans to other entitios

Councl s not the gaarantor for any loans

Fimancial guaraniee contracts are not recognised as a kabity in the balance sheet unless Te lender has exercised ther right
10 call on the guarantoe of Councl has other reasons 10 beleve that it is probabie that the right wil be exercised

cortnued on ned pege Fage 177
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties

8.2 Change in accounting standards

Cenan now Austyalian Accounting Standards and nterpretations have been putished that are act mandatory for the 30
June 2023 reporting penod. Councd assesses the impact of these new standards. As at 30 June 2023 there were no new
accounting standards of interpeetations issued by the AASE which are appicable for the year ending 30 Jume 2023 that ace
expocied 10 impact Counail

8.3 Financial instruments

(2} Objectves and poicios

The Councifs prncipal fnancial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposts, recenables (excludeg statifory
recewables), payables (excludng statutory payables) and bank bomowngs. Detals of the significant accounting polices and
methods adopted. nciuding the crteria for recogniton, the basis of measwrement and the basis 0n winch INCome and expensos
0 recognised, i respect of each clxss of Trancial asset, Anancal Babily 3nd equity imtrument o disciosed in the ncles
of the firanchl statements. Risk management is camed oWt by senior management undes polcies approved by the Council
These poloes ndude entfication and analyss of the nsi exposure 1o Counal and appeopoate procedures, controls and
118k PRt ITYSANON

(b) Market risk

Maret nsk s the nek that the fair value or future cash flows of Council fnancial rstruments wil fuctuate because of changes
n market pnces. The Counol's exposure to market nsk is pimacty through interest rate risk with only insigrdficant exposure
10 Cthot oo fisks and A0 exposune 10 foreign cunendy rsk

Interes! rade risk

Interest rate rak refers 10 the nsk hat ®e valse of a financal nstrument or cash fiows asscoatod with the nstrument will
Tuctuate dus 1o Changis 1 Mmarket ntecest rales Counci's nlerest rate iabity tisk snses privarly kom long derm oans and
bortowings at fred rates which exposes Counct to far value imtecest rate ik Cash fiow inlerest rale rek » the sk that
the future cash fows of a Snancial instrument will fuctuate because of changes iIn market nerest rates. Council has mvmal
exposure 1o cash Now imecest rate sk through s cash and ceposas that are at Noating rates.

Inrvostment of serpius funds i made with approvied financial instutices under the Locs! Govermment Act 2020
Couwncl manages interest rate nsk by adopting an wvestment polcy that ensures:

*  awersfication of investment product,
. murcu.mmmm
*  benchmarking of red patmon with tudget

Theve has been no sgnficant change in the Counal's exposure, of #s chyectives, polcies and processes for managng interest
rate rak of the methods used 10 measure ths nsk Fom the previous reporting peniod.

Irferest rate increases have signiScantly alfected the return expecind on mvested fonds dusing the yeur This impacted the
surphus by §1 &m

{c} Credit nsk

Crodt rsk is the nsk that a contracting entty will not complete ts cbigations under a Snancial nstrument and cause Counal to
make a financal loss. Council has exposwre 1 credt risk on some financial assets inciuded in the balance sheet Partoularly
signficant areis of creda risk exist in relaton 1O cutstanding fees and fnes as well &5 l0ats and recevabies om sporting
clubs and associatons. To help manage ths nsk

«  Council has a poicy for estabishing credtt vmets for the entites Counal deals with,

*  Ceoundil may requive collatecal where aggeopnate, and

*  Council anly imaests surplus funds with fnancal insttutions which have & recognised credt tating speciied n Councifs
investiment policy.

conbnued on nexdt pege Fage 178
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties (continued)

Recovables consst of a large number of Cusiomers, Spread acrass he ratepayer, Business and government sectors. Credt
1k associsted with the Councls linancal asseds 5 mnimal Secause the man debitr b secured by a chiege over the ratsable
propety

These ace no mateval fnancial assets which are individually detecmined to be impared.

Countsl may also be sutyect 10 Cradt sk o Vansactions whch ane not noluded in T balance sheet, such & when Council
provides & guaranise for ancther party. Detads of cur coningent kabitios are disciosad in Note 8 1(8)

The maxenum exposure to credit nsk at the reparting date %o recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any
provisions for imparment of those assets, as disciosed In the balance sheet and notes to the Snancal statements. Council
does not hold any collsteral

(d) Lquidity risk

Lquictty sk includes the risk that, as a resul of Councl's operational Iquidtty requirements & will not have sutticent funds
10 settie a transaction when required o wil be forced 10 sell a fmancial asset at below value or may be unable 10 settie of
10CovT & findncial saset

To help rechuce thess raks Counal

have a kqudity policy which targets a minemum and average leved of cash and cash equvalents 1o be mantaned.
have readiy accessiie standy facies and cther fundng arangements in place;

have 8 bquedity portialio structure that reguites surplus funds 1o be invested withn vanous bands of hquad iIMslruments,
montor budget 1o actual pedormance on a regular bass. and

set limits oo bonowings relating to the percentage of bans %0 rate revenue and percentage of loan pencpal repayments
o rate revenue

The Councifls maximem exposune 1o kquday risk is the canmying amounts of francal Eabiios as disciosed on the face of the
balance sheet and the amounts related to Snancial guaraniees disciosed in Note & 1(c), and & deemed nsignéicant based
On pnor periods” data and culment assessment of rsic

Thesa has Boon no sigaficant change in Countils exposure, or 25 abyectives, palicies and plocesses for managng kquidity
ik of the methods used 1o measure this rax from he previous reporting penod

With the excepton of borrowings, al fnancial labdties are expected 10 be setied wihin normal terms of trade. Detads of the
maturty peofie 1of DONowngs are disciosed at Note 5.4

Uniess oanwise stated, the carrying amounts of Snancial instruments refiect ther far value
{e) Sensaivity disciosure analysis

Taking nio account past pedoimance, IUture erPectations, SCONOIMIC IXFECasts, and Managoement’'s knowied e and expenence
of e francal markets. Councl Belenves e following Movements a0 ‘Isonatly possidie’ over the next 12 monts

*  Aparaiiel shift of « 0.50% and - 1.50% n market interest rades (AUD) from year-end rates of £ 10%

These movements wil nct have a materal Impact on the vakation of Council's financal assets and labites, noc wil they
have a matenal mpact on ™e resuts of Counclils Operatons.
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties (continued)

8.4 Fair value measurement

Far Valve
Cowscl's Ananciad assets and kabities are not valued in acoordance with the Tar valoe hietatchy, Councl's Snancial assets
and labitios are measured at amortsed cost.

Councl measwes certain assets and labines at tar value where regqured of permitiad by Australan Accountng Standards.
AASE 13 Far vakse measulement, ains 10 Mmpiove consstency and feduce complexty by providng @ dehntion of far vake
and a single scurce of tar vake messutament and disciosue seguarements for use across Acstrakan Accounting Standacds.

Al assets and lobisies for which far vale s measured or disciosed in the fimancial statements are categorised wihin a fair
value Merarchy, desoribed as follows, based on the lowest level Input hat is signdicant 30 ™e fair value measurement as a
while

Leve! 1 — Quoted (unadusted) market prices in actve markets for entical assets or kabltes
Level 2~ Vakation techniques for which the lowest level nput hat s signficant %o the far value measwement 5 drecty or
cbservabie; and
Lovel 3— Valaton techniques for which the lowest vl fgut that s sgnficant 10 ™ far vake messutement s
unobsearvable

For the purpose of fair value daciosures, Council has determined classes of assets and llabiities on the basis of the nature,
charactensdes and rsies of the asset of labity and the level of the fair vaiue hemichy &s oxplaned atove

In addtion, Council determines whether ransfens Pave occurod between lovels in the hieeachy by 10-assssng categorsation
(based on the lowest lovel inpst that i sgnéficant to e fair value measwrement 28 8 whole) 8t the end of each reporting peod

Revoluadon

Subsequert to the inbal recogation of assets, non-Cument physical assets, other than plant and equpment, are measwred at
theet Tar valos Being the price thist would be teceived 10 sefl an assat (O pind 10 Bansfed a Fabity) i an crderdy transaction
between market partGpants at the measurement date (For plant and equipment Carrying amount is considedad 10 appeoumate
far value given short useful ives). A balance date, the Council reviewed e carmying value of the indvidual classes of assots
measwred at fair value to ensure that each asset malerally appeoximated s fak value ‘Whete the casrying valoe materialy
difered om the tar value ¥ Balance date, the class of sset wirs revalued,

Far value vakations are determned in accocdance with a valuation herarchy. Changes 1o the valuation hierarchy well only
ooour If an exiernai change in The restrictions o kmitations of use of an asset result in changes to the permssbie or practical
hghest and best use of e asset. In addtion, Counal undenakes a lormal revakuation of land, bulangs, and sfrastructure
#ssety on a regular bass rangng from 2 10 5 years The valustion i perfioomed athet by experenced councdl olficees of
ndependent experts. The folowing table sets out the frequency of revaluatons by asset class

Asset Class Revaluation frequency
Land 2 yoars
Buidings 2 yoars
Sealed Roads 3years
Unsealed Roads S years
Bridges Syears
Foctpaths and cyclewsys 3 yean
Drainage 5 yoars
Recreatonal, lesure and community facites 5 years
Waste maragement S years
Parks, open 3pace and streetscapes 5 yoans
Omter infrastructure 5 yean

VWhere the assets are revalued., the revaluation increments are credited deectly 10 the asset revaliation reserve except o the
exient That an InCrement reverses 8 pnor year decrement for that class of asset hat had been recognsed as an expense n
Wheh il the InCremnt i recognsed &S Hevenue p 10 the ammcunt of the expense Revalation decremants ace rcogised
¥% a0 expense except where pror increments are ncluded in the asset revaliation resarve for that class of asset in which case
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Note 8. Managing uncertainties (continued)

the decrement & taken 10 the resenve 10 the extent of the remaning ncrements. Within the same ciass of assets. revaluation
s and dect s withis the yoar are offset

Impaemend of assels

AL each regortng date, the Councl reviews the carmyng value of its assets 10 determene whether there s any indcabon that
hesd assets have beon irpaked If such an INdCaton euists, the recoveratie amount of the asset, beng the higher of the
sssals far value has conts of disposal and value in use, & compared 1o the Fsets Carrying value Any excess of B assets
caryng value over s recoverable amount B expensed 10 ™e comprehensive income stadement, unless Te asset 1 carmed
e revalued amount In whioh case e mparment Ioss S recognised duectly against the revaluaton surplus » respect
of the same class of aaset to the extent that the Mparment sk does not exteed the amaunt in the tevakation surpks fo
hat same class of asset

8.5 Events occurring after balance date

NO matiers have cocumed after balance date that reguile dsciosure in the fnancial report

Fage 181
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll i ox
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 9. Other matters
Batance st Badance at
beginning of ond of
reporting increment feporting
period (Secremont) parod
$ 000 $'000 $ 000
9.1 Reserves
{2} Asset revaluation resorves
2022
Propecty
Land and land impeovements 31784 14277 45041
Bualdrgs 2020 2724 W04
61,084 17,00 78 088
Cultere and heritage assets
Poneer Settliement vehicles & vessols 1674 - 1674
Ponser Settiement ste axhitits 1,30 - 1580
Artworss 1638 - 1635
Poneer Settlement buidings 4002 (561) 3441
Water nighes 3.196 - 3168
11,897 (861) 11,335
Infrastructure
Footpaths and cycleways 1. 78 )] 1285
Denvage 17,783 6,383 088
Recreatonal, leswe and community facities T34 204 L)
Waste mansgement 102 el 13
Parks, opon space and stestscapes 281 1202 4033
Sealed roads 141 801 11,784 153875
Ursealed 1cads 23547 5034 28581
Other nirastructure 3204 1,632 48548
208,451 289018 237,580
Total asset revaluation reserves 281,442 45,359 326,801
conbnued on next pege Fage 187
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Swan Hill Rural City Councill 222073 Fruncal Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 9. Other matters (continued)

Balance at Balance amt
beginning of and of
reporting Increment feporting
period (Secromaont) panod
$ ‘0 $'000 $ 000
22
Property
Land and land impeovements 26,418 6,349 376
Bakegs 200 - 20320
54735 6348 61,084
Culture and heritage assets
Poneer Settiement vehcies & vessels 1874 - 1874
Ponser Settiement ste oxhitis 1,30 - 1380
Artworks 1,68 - 1635
Ponset Settement bulings 4002 - 4002
Water rights 240 67 3,150
11,130 767 11,897
Infrastructure
Footpaths and cycleways 15223 {3.44) 11,789
Dramage LR+ - 23
Recreatonal, lesuse and community facilties 73574 - 7374
Waste mansgement 102 - 102
Parks, open space and steetscapes 26 - 280
Sealed roads 83561 £8,.320 141 891
Unsealed roads 15970 78N 23547
Othet nirastructyre Ja - 324
146,054 62,407 208,451
Total asset revaluation reserves 211919 69,523 281,442

The asset revaluston Msene IS used 1o rectnd the rcieased (Ne) value of Councd's assats over e

conbneed on neat pege Fage 102
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 202372073 Frnancel Repert

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 9. Other matters (continued)

2023 2022

$'000 $ 000

9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to
surplus/(deficit)

Scrphai(delict) for ™e year 6,700 12707
Deprecationdamortisation 122077 10338
Impaiment losses 574 9
Proft){loss) on disposal of property, indrastructure, plant and equipment (50 211)
Contrbutons - ron monetary assels 3 (39)
Amounts daciosed in Tnanting actvities 84 187
Change In assets and labdities:
(Increase)decrease in trade and cther recewabies (829 (571)
(increase)\decrease in invenories a7 (138
(Increase)\decrease in prepayments (15 51)
Increaseddecroase) in accrued noome (1.829) (68}
Increased(dacrnase) in cther aasets - (35)
increased(docrease) in trade and cther payables (145) (240}
Increasa(decroase) in provisons (148 1.343
[Decreass)incresse » other Rabiltes 17 184
Increased{decrease) in unearned incomabevenve 1,106 (2,206)
Not cash provided byAused in) operating activitios 18,338 2.220
9.3 Superannuation

Councl makes the magprity of s empioyer Supelannuation contrbutons n respect of &5 empiayeos 1o the Local Authorties
Seperannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categotion of membecsh, sccumulation and defned beneft, sach of
whch i funded dfferently Oblgations for contributons %0 the Fund are recognised as an espense n the Comprahensive
Income Statement when they are made or due.

Acgumulation

The Fund's acoumulation category, Vision MySuperVision Supet Saver, receives both employer and employee contnbutons
on a progressive bass. Employer contribubons are noemally based on a fed percentage of empioyoe eamings (Tor the year
ended 30 June 2023, s was 10 5% as requred under Scperannuation Guiaastee (S5G) legalation (2022 10.0%)

Defined Benefit
Councl does not use defined beneft aocounting for s defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit category
This s because the Fund's Defined Bersfit category s a pocied muli-empioyer Sponsorod plan

These is 10 propotonsd spit of the defined banett Latdtes assets or CoMs Betenen the paticpating ermployers as the delimed
becefit cblgation is a floating cbigation between the partopating employers and the only tme that the aggregate obégation
& alocated 1o spechic employers is when 3 call 5 made As a resut, the leved of participation of Councll in the Fund cannct
Do Measured &% a percertage COMPMed with other Paicipating empioyers. Tharelore, ™e Fund Actuary s unabie 12 allccate
becalt Kabdites, assats and costs Between errployers for the purposes of AASH 110

Funding Arrangements

Council makes empioyer contrbutions 1o the Defined Beneft category of the Fusd at rates determned by the Trusise on the
advice of ®e Fund Actusry. A triennial actuarnal investigabion s currently undecwary for the Defined Beneft category which is
expected 10 be compieted by 31 December 2023 Counol was notifed of the 30 June 2023 VB! durng August 2023 (2022
August 2022). The financial assumptions used to caiculate the 20 June 2022 VE! were:

Net irvostrmont totuns 5 7% pa
Salary indocmation 3.5% pa

conbneed on next pege Fage 104
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Swan Hill Rural City Councll 22207 Francl Repert

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 9. Other matters (continued)

Proe infaticn (CP1) 2.5% pa

AS 8130 Juse 2022, an mdanm actuacal rvestgation wirk hold as the Fund peovides Metime pensions i the Defined Seneft
category. The vested beneét mdex (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Councd is a contritauting empioyer was
102 2% The tnancial assumptions used 10 calculate the VE! weee

Net invesawent retums § 5% pa
Salaty inforrmation 2 5% pa 10 30 June 2023, and 3.5% pa Pereafier
Proe infation (CP1) 3.00% ca.

Councl was notified of the 30 June 2022 VE! during August 2002 (2021 August 2021).
Vision Super his advised that the estmated VEI at June 2023 was 104 1%

The VB is used as the pomary fundng indcator Because the VI was above 100%, the 30 Jume 2022 actuarial rvestigation
determined the Defined Bonefit category was in a satsfaciory fnancial postion and that no change was necessary to the
Defined Benefit catogory’s funding amanpements rom prior years

Employer contributions

{a) Regular conydutons

On the basis of the resuls of the 2022 isterim actuaral vestigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Councll makes emrployer
conttibutions 10 e Fund's Defned Benel?t category ot rates detecmined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year ended 30 June
2023, wis rate was 10 9% of members’ salaries (10 0% in 2021722). This rate i expeciad 10 Increass n Ane with any iIncreasos
n the SG contrbution rate and was reviewed as part of the 30 June 2022 nterim valuation

in addton, Councd rembursos the Fund 1o oovwer the exoris of B benefits Haidl &5 0 CONSOGUNce of retenchment above
the funded resignation of retrement benefit

6} Fundwng cals

# the Defined Beneft category & i an unsatistactory financal positon at an actuanial investgation or the Defined Senett
calogory's VEI is bedow its shorfall kmt at any tme other than the date of the actuarial invesiigason, the Defimed Seneft
calegory has & shorfall for the putpones of SPS 180 and the Fusd is requinsd 10 put @ plan in place 5O that the shortfal is
fully funded within three years of the shortfall cocurring The Fund mondiors ¢s VB on a quanterly basis and the Fund has
set &s shortfal imt 2t 97%

in the event that the Fund Actuary determnes that there is a shorttall based on the albove requitement, the Fund's paticipating
empioyens (nduding Councd) are mquired to make an empityer contrBution 1o cover e shortfall

Using $e agreed methodology. the shortall amount s apportioned between e participating employers based on the pre-1
July 1963 and post. 20 Jure 1560 service labdtes of the Fund's Defined Benel category, together with the empioyer’s payroll
30 June 195G and a2 the date the shontial has been calculated

Dus to e nature of e contractual cbligations between the participating empicyens and the Fund, and that the Fund nciudes
etme pensioners and thew reversionary beceficianes, it & uniikely that the Fund wil be wound up.

M Sere 15 2 surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannct be retumed 10 he partCpating ompioyers.

In the evert thal 8 participating employer is wound-up_ the defined beneft obigatians of that enpioyer wil be Yansfermed to
hat employer’' s SUCTesscr

COnBNGed on neat pege Fage 105
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Swan Hill Rural City Council 202372073 Francel Report

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023

Note 9. Other matters (continued)

The 2022 interim actuarial Investigation swplus amounts

An actuanal invesbgation is conducted annuatly for the Defined Benefit category of which Counall s a contrbuting employer
Generaly, a full actuanal nvesagation is conducted every three years and intenm actuarial ivestigations are conducted for
Qach Nfervening yoas. An intenm mvestgation was conducted as # 30 Jume 2022 and the st Tull investgation was conducted
#8130 Jure 2020

The Fund's actuanal mvesdgations dentfied the SSllowing for e Defined Beref® category of which Councd is 3 contrbuting
employer:

202 2021

Onterem)  (interim)

sm $m

« A VB Surphes “uo 2147
« A total service labaey surphus 1058 2703
« A discounted acorued benefits surplus ms 282

The VB surpius means that the market value of Be fund's assets suppomng the delined benefit cbigatons exceed e vested
becelty That the defined Banefit mesbers woukd have boon entitied %0 If they had all exited on 30 June 2022

The total secnce kabdty sutpius means that the cument value of e assets n the Fund's Defined Beneft cdegory plus espected
future contnbutions excoods the value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2022

The dscounted accrued Denesits surplus moans that the cument value of the assets in the Fund's Defned Berelt category
exceeds the value of benefits payable in the fiure But accrued in tespect of sarvice % 30 June X022

Superanauation contnidutions
Cortnbutons by Counal (excluding asy unfunded labify payments) 10 the AbOve SUDITAMUALON plans for the Anascal yoa!
ended 30 June 2023 ave detaled below

Type of 2023 022

Scheme scheme Rate $'000 $ 000
10.9%

Vision Super Defoed becett (2022 10.0%) 7 103
Accarmulation 105%

Visson Super fund (222 10.0%) 2.200 1628

Fage 168
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Swan Hill Rural City Council R —
Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2023
Note 10. Change in accounting policy
These have been no changes to accounting pobces in the 2022.23 year
Fage 107
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2.3 Service and Local Government reporting
Directorate: Corporate Services

File Number: S16-39-01

Purpose: For Discussion

Council Plan Strategy Addressed

4. Leadership - We will ensure accountable leadership, advocacy and transparent
decision making.

4.1 Excellent management and administration

4.1.1 Well managed resources for a sustainable future

4.1.2 Provide robust governance and effective leadership

4.1.3 Sound, sustainable:

* Financial management « Excellence in service delivery * Strategic planning

Current Strategic documents
Annual Report
Declarations of Interest:

Council Officers affirm that no general or material conflicts need to be declared in
relation to the matter of this report.

Summary

A requirement of the Service performance principles s106 of the Local Government
Act 2020 is the setting of Quality and Cost Standards for Council services and annual
reporting against these standards to the community.

This report contains the actual performance for Council services against the quality
and cost targets and Local Government Performance Reporting Framework Indicators
set for 2022/23.

Discussion

The Local Government Act 2020 requires Council to review its operations to ensure
that the services provided to the community represent ‘Good Value’.

Good Value requires that quality and cost standards be developed for each major
service area. The standards assist the community in determining whether a service
is effective (quality) and efficient (cost). Quality and Cost standards and targets are
prepared for each major service area, plus recommendations have been made to
review and change selected targets for the 2023/24 reporting period. With the
introduction of the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework (LGPRF)
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and mandatory reporting indicators, officers have taken the opportunity to review and
align our standards with the LFPRF and have included the results in the Service

Performance report.

The attached report details the actual result achieved and explanations on variations
where targets have not been achieved. Council currently reports on 138 Quality and

Cost Standards across 10 service groups.

The tables below provide a summary of achievements for the year. Details and

variance explanations can be found in the attached report.

Service Group
Cuality'Cost Standard
Transpor] Serates (cages 2|

Family and Children’s Sanices page 4

Econonmec Prosperity ipsgs 8}

Cormrmunity Care Seraces (sags 7

Comenamity Wellbesng icage B
Wasta I'-'I:-mgmwd pag 10}
Comemunity Amenity (psgs 13)

Reoeation, Culture and Leisure
Sarvices paga 15

Organisationad Support tsegs 20

Govemance and Leadaership (page 24

Totad
Achieved in 202023

Achieved in S021/E2

LGPRF
Transport Seracss (pages 2)

Famly and Children’s Senvices page 5

Cormrmamity Wellbeang (sage 8
Vi'aste Managemeant (page 19)
Recreaton, Culture and Lessurs

g 15}

Govemance and Leadership (page

Total

fuchieved in M02223
Achieved in 2021032

Consultation

Humber of standardsfindicators
Mot Mot
[ z 3 i i1
4 1 0 0 5
2 4 3 1 8
1 i G i &
i 1] 6 0 7
i 1} 2 0 3
T i 1 a 9
B i 26 2 &)
10 14 6 i 40
3 i G 0 i
43 23 o) 3 138
3% 17% Bl X% 100%
% 19.5% 48% 15% 100%
Humber of standards/indicators
Within expected Ohnsicke Mot
range expected range  applicabls L
4 1 - 5
5 - 5
11 2 i3
4 1
4 3
24) 5 5
33 7 ] 40
B2 5% 17.5% 0 100%:
B2 5% 17.5% 1005

The Quality and Cost Standards and LGPREF indicators have been reviewed in
consultation with the employees responsible for each service, Governance,

Organisational Development Manager and Executive Leadership Team

Financial Implications
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iy oy e

Nil.

Social Implications

Nil

Economic Implications

Nil.

Environmental Implications
Nil.

Risk Management Implications

Failing to report on Councils Service Performance would not comply with the Local
Government Act 2020.

Attachments: 1. Service Performance Document (3) [2.3.1 - 24 pages]

Options:

1. To Adopt the Service performance and Local Government performance
reporting document as presented.

2. To Adjust the Service performance and Local Government performance
reporting document to October Council Meeting with no changes for adoption.

Recommendation:

Adopt the Service performance and Local Government performance reporting
document as presented.

CM 2023/67 Motion
MOVED Cr Jeffery

That Council adopt the Service performance and Local Government
performance reporting document as presented.

SECONDED Cr Kelly

The Motion was put and CARRIED 7/ 0
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Swan Hill Rural City Council Service Performance
Report 2022/23

Quality and Cost Standards and Local Government
Performance Reporting Framework Indicators

Service Group Number of standards/indicators

Quality/Cost Standard Exceeded Achieved __NO' app’ﬁg;ble Total
Transport Services (page 2) 6 2 3 0 11
Family and Children’s Services (page 4) 4 1 0 0 5
Economic Prosperity (page 6) 2 2 3 1 8
Community Care Services (page 7) 1 1 6 0 8
Community Wellbeing (page 8) 1 0 6 0 7
Waste Management (page 11) 1 0 2 0 3
Community Amenity (page 13) 7 1 1 0 9
Recreation, Culture and Leisure 8 1 26 2 37
Services (page 15)

Organisational Support (page 20) 10 14 16 0 40
Governance and Leadership (page 24) 3 1 6 0 10
Total 43 23 69 3 138
Achieved in 2022/23 31% 17% 50% 2% 100%
Achieved in 2021/22 31% 19.5% 48% 1.5% 100%
Service Group Number of standards/indicators

HEHRT Withipa(:\);%ecmd expg:l:;sdi(:gnge 1'lppr|‘lig:1b|¢e Total
Transport Services (page 2) 4 1 - 5
Family and Children’s Services (page 5) 5 - - 5
Community Wellbeing (page 8) 11 2 - 13
Waste Management (page 11) 4 1 - 5
Recreation, Culture and Leisure

Services (page 15) 4 3 - 7
Governance and Leadership (page 24) 5 - - 5
Total 33 7 0 40
Achieved in 2022/23 82.5% 17.5% 0 100%
Achieved in 2021/22 82.5% 17.5% - 100%
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Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Transport Services

Transport Services
(Report adopted by Council December 2002)

Programs included within this service group:

o Footpaths
e Aerodromes
e Roads - sealed and unsealed

Footpaths

Quality/Cost Standard Target  2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Grinding metres/year <100 147 66 68
Replacement square metres/year <1,500 1,056 440 475
Average response time to address service requests 2 1 1 1
Weeks

Number of service requests received that address

issues on footpaths 50 44 43 45
Average maintenance expenditure per square metre

of footpath (2)

Total cost to maintain footpaths / Total square metres of $2.20 $1.41 $0.82 $0.92
footpaths

Variance comments:

1) The figure is derived from the number of grinding jobs multiplied by 1.5m which is the
approximate figure per job, i.e. 98 x 1.5m = 147. Recommend changing target to 200.

2) 2022/23 figure is derived from total Footpath Maintenance expenditure ($174,503.12) divided by
total footpath square metreage (246,680) Accuracy of previous year’s figures unable to be
confirmed.

Aerodromes

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23  2021/22 2020/21

Maintain Swan Hill and Robinvale aerodromes in
accordance with Civil Aviation Regulation
Cost increase in maintenance of aerodromes

Cost increase in Net Operating Result does not exceed 6% to 6% 30.85%(" -5.05% -20.12%
previous year.

100% 100% 100% 100%

Variance comment:

1) This increase was due to the operational requirements to purchase Electric Landing Flares (ELF)
and additional safety supervision for aerodrome works.
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Roads
Quality/Cost Standard

Completion of asset inspection as per the Road
Management Plan

Average response time to address service

requests
Weeks

Number of Service Requests received that
address issues on unsealed roads:

Average cost to re-sheet a square metre of

unsealed road
Total cost of re-sheeting / Square metre of re-sheeting

LGPRF Indicator

Sealed local road requests
Number of sealed local road requests per 100 kilometres
of sealed local roads. Expected range:10 to 120 requests.

Sealed local roads below the intervention level
Number of kilometres of sealed local roads below the
renewal intervention level set by Council / Kilometres of
sealed local roads. Expected range: 80 - 100%

Cost of sealed local road reconstruction

Direct cost of sealed local road reconstruction / Square
metres of sealed local roads reconstructed. Expected
range: $20 - $200.

Cost of sealed local road resealing

Direct cost of sealed local road resealing / Square metres
of sealed local roads resealed. Expected range: $4 - $30.
Satisfaction with sealed local roads

Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council
has performed on the condition of sealed local roads.
Expected range: 50 — 100.

Variance comments:

Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Transport Services

Target 2022/23 2021/22
100% 100% 100%
3 15 1
100 189" 120
$4.20 $7.32@  $5.10
Target 2022/23 2021/22
10-120  14.64 5.96

80-

100% 9927% 99.37%
$20 - $30.97®  $59.36
$200 : :
$4-$30 $6.79  $4.80
50-100 44@ 51

2020/21

100%

112

$6.45

2020/21

6.78

99.28%

$30.26

$5.58

52

1) Due to a prolonged major flood event and excessive totals of localised rain, a substantial

rise in the number of service requests were received for unsealed roads.

2) Unprecedented fuel price rises through most of the year have had an effect on the bottom
line, making the target cost unachievable.
3) There has been a reduction from the previous years where resealing occurred in more
remote areas, which increased the previous years cost.
4) The decrease on the previous year’s satisfaction with sealed roads can be attributed to
the major flood event combined with localised flooding in what has proven to be one of

the wettest years on record.
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Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Family and Children’s Services

Family and Children’s Services
(Report adopted by Council September 2002)

Programs within this service:
e Out Of School Hours Child Care consisting of:
o Before and After School Child Care
o Vacation Child Care
o Mobile Vacation Child Care
e Preschools
e Maternal and Child Health

Out of School Hours Child Care

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22  2020/21
Meet the outcomes of the funding and service

agreements 100% 100% 100% 100%
Including licensing, children’s regs and accreditation

Average cost to families per hour of care $4.61 $3.64 $3.37 $2.68

Variance comments:

Maternal and Child Health

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22  2020/21
Percentage of children enrolled from birth 08% 100% 104% 104%
notifications received ? ° ° °
Percentage of children attending for 3.5 - 4 year o o o o
old developmental assessment m £/ 1ot £
Net cost to Council per consultation. $11250 $102.48(1)  $122.09 $56.22
LGPREF Indicator Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Infant enrolments in MCH service

Number of infants enrolled in the MCH service (from birth 90-110% 100.69% 102.01% 102.21%

notifications received) / Number of birth notifications

received. Expected range: 90 - 110%

Cost of MCH service $50 -
Cost to Council of the MCH service / Hours worked by MCH $200
nurses. Expected range: $50 - $200

Participation in the MCH service

Number of children who attend the MCH service at least
once (in the year)/Number of children enrolled in the MCH 70-100% 89.19% 82.74% 80.05%
service.

Expected range: 70 - 100%

Participation in MCH service by Aboriginal children

Number of Aboriginal children who attend the MCH service o, o o o

at least once (in the year) / Number of Aboriginal children 60-100% 83.57% 77.50% 76.26%
enrolled in the MCH service. Expected range: 60 - 100%

Participation in 4-week key age and stage visit

The percentage of infants enrolled in the MCH service  90-110%  92.44% 95.99% 94.01%
who participated in 4-week key age and stage visit

$110.69 $121.52  $109.86

Variance comments:

1) Reduced cost to Council due to previous set up cost for the 63 McRae Street building.
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Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Economic Prosperity Services

Economic Prosperity Services
(Report adopted by Council February 2003)

Programs within this service:
e Economic Development Unit
e Swan Hill Livestock Exchange
o Tower Hill Estate development

Economic Development

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

Achieve population growth for the municipality 0.1% 1.0% -0.3% -0.6%

Achieve an unemployment rate lower than the

[s) o 0, 0,
average for Rural and Regional Victoria 4% S 2.7% 2.7%

Total number of visitors to the Swan Hill Region

(1)
Information Centre 15,263 8,020 12,777

Variance comment:

1) The increased numbers through the visitor centre were largely due to the amount of people
traveling and getting out after the Covid period. People become a lot more confident in travel and
the numbers on the road show in the increase of visitor information visits.

Swan Hill Livestock Exchange

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Maintain National Saleyards Quality Assurance
(NSQA) and Meat Standards Australia (MSA) 100% 100% 100% 100%

accreditation

Total turnover (Cattle plus Sheep and Goats)

(1
demonstrating contribution to the local economy SO $29.9m Sk f &R

Ratio of cost to operate the livestock exchange

verses income generated

(income from sales of cattle, sheep, goats, truck wash and 1.00 0.66 0.80 0.85
agistment divided by the operational costs including

depreciation and reserves)

Variance comments:

1) The Agricultural industry is dynamic and years can alter considerably. The 2022/23 year saw a
significant downturn across the entire country in livestock numbers. All yards have experienced a
decrease in livestock throughput. The industry is still recovering from Covid, floods and fires.
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Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Economic Prosperity Services

Tower Hill Estate

Quality/Cost Standard Target  2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Subdivide and sell lots 18 6(1 16 19

Subdivision and sale costs of properties within
Budget targets

Variance comments:

Yes Yes Yes Yes

1) There were no remaining lots for sale from Stage 13 at the commencement of 2022-23. The 23
Lots in Stage 14 of the Tower Hill Estate Development were released for sale in late May 2023.
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Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Community Wellbeing Services

Community Care Services
(Report adopted by Council February 2003)

Programs within this service:
e Client assessments
e General Home, Personal and Respite Care
e Food services
e Aged Accommodation
e Senior Citizen centres

Community Care Services

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Client Needs

Review of existing clients to assess appropriateness
of service levels, whether service standards are
being achieved and to reassess the needs of the

client
e High needs clients 100% 100% 100% 100%
e Medium needs clients  80% 70%") 80% 80%
o Low needs clients 70% 45%(2) 70% 70%
Average cost per hour of service:
e General Home Care $51.54 $54.00) $58.31 $56.69
e Personal Care $53.72 $61.004 $75.00 $63.38
¢ Respite Care $54.00 $95.000) $46.90 $49.80
Average cost per meal
Total cost of Food Services Program / Number of $12.02 $11.18(6) $12.85 $13.62

meals delivered to clients

Senior Citizen Centre’s
Total cost to operate Senior Citizen Centre’s and $11,500 $19,772.33() $19,772.34 $20,617.25

related activities

Variance comments:

1) Due to shortage of staff, priority has been given to high needs clients, which has reduced the
number of available services to medium priority clients.

2) As per point 1.

3) Due to shortage of staff, there has been a reduction in the amount of hours provided which has
reduced the cost per hour of the service.

4) Similar to point 3, in addition, more people are receiving Home Care Packages (HCP) which
reduces the number of hours provided to Commonwealth Home Support Program (CHSP)
clients.

5) A large increase in requests for respite has increased the cost for the services.
6) Reduced demand for Meals on Wheels has reduced the cost per meal.
7) Cost of senior citizens has remained static.

Targets for 2023/24 will need to be reviewed due to transitioning out of aged care.
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Community Wellbeing Services
(Report adopted by Council June 2003)

Programs within this service:
e Planning
¢ Building Department
e Regulatory Services — Animal Management
e Parking Control
e Food safety

Planning

Quality/Cost Standard Target

Average number of days required to issue planning

. 58
permits
Cost per capita to maintain currency and
appropriateness of the Planning Scheme $20
Gross cost to Council / Population of the municipality
LGPREF Indicator Target
Time taken to decide planning applications
The median number of days between receipt of a planning 30-110

application and a decision on the application.
Expected range: 30 — 110 days

Planning applications decided within 60 days

Number of planning application decisions made within 60 40-100%
days/Number of planning application decisions made.

Expected range: 40 — 100%

Cost of statutory planning service $500 -
Direct cost of the statutory planning service/Number of $4.000
planning applications received. Expected range: $500 - $4,000 U

Planning decisions upheld at VCAT

Number of VCAT decisions that did not set aside council’s

decision in relation to a planning application/Number of VCAT ~ 30-100%
Council decisions in relation to planning applications.

Expected range: 30 — 100%

Variance comments:

2022/23

124

$9.27

2022/23

96

59.85%

$3,967C)

75%*)

1) Planning permit days have increased due to shortage of planning staff.

2) Due to inability to recruit staff, no strategic planning projects were undertaken in 2022/23.

2021/22

79

$12.70

2021/22

79

71.28%

$3,218

0%

2020/21

41

$13

2020/21

41

96.39%

$2,675

0%

3) Contractors were engaged during the year, where Council have been unsuccessful in recruiting

permanent staff which resulted in increased associated costs.

4) In 2022/23 Council had 5 Planning applications referred to VCAT with 3 being upheld and 2 were
not compared to previous years where we had no planning decisions upheld at VCAT.
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Building Department

Quality/Cost Standard Target  2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Average number of days required to issue building 18 43 45 20
permits

Net cost to Council per building permit $305 $374) $112 $149

(Profit)

Variance comments:

1) Prior to suspension of the Building Permit service, all permits were issued by a contractor. The
cost of providing the service has increased significantly as Council has to now rely on a
contractor on higher hourly rates.

Regulatory Services — Animal Management

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

Average cost to Council to enforce Local Laws

ber registered animal $89.00  $103.08() $98.73  $72.59

LGPREF Indicator Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Time taken to action animal management

requests

Number of days between receipt and first response action 1-10 1.31 1.20 1.07

for all animal management requests / Number of animal
management requests. Expected range: 1 to 10 days

Animals reclaimed
Number of animals reclaimed / Number of animals 30-90% 29.56% 26.90% 28.03%
collected. Expected range: 30 — 90%

Animals rehomed
Number of animals rehomed / Number of animals collected. 30-90% 60.95% 69.31% 67.42%
Expected range: 30 — 90%

Cost of animal management service per
EEERI $3-$40  $14.02  $18.38  $10.30

The direct cost of the animal management service per
municipal population. Expected range: $3 to $40

Animal management prosecutions
Number of successful animal management prosecutions. 50-200% 0% 0% 100%
Expected range: 50 to 200%

Variance comments:

1) Average cost to Council to enforce Local Laws has increased in the 2021/22 financial year. This
is a direct result of the increase in the overall debtors (amounts owing to Council).
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Parking Control

Quality/Cost Standard Target  2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Hours ticket machines are not functional 1.0% 1.37%") 1.0% 0.91%
Net operating cost to Council per restricted car

park space per annum $90 $33.47@ $105.74 $96.32

Restricted car parks consist of all parks excluding those
privately owned.

Variance comments:

1) This year’s figure is still high due to damage to our parking meters, effect of them being out of
service and the increased cost of repairs.

2) The 2021/22 and 2020/21 year’s figures had the internal school crossing wages included in the
costs to council, when they should have been excluded. This falsely showed a much higher
operating cost than should have been reported. The 2022/23 cost still includes carpark patrons
free parking periods.

Food Safety

LGPRF Indicator Target 2022/23  2021/22  2020/21

Time taken to action food complaints

Number of days between receipt and first response action for all 1-10 3.17 256 1.90

food complaints / Number of food complaints.
Expected range: 1 to 10 days

Food safety assessments
Number of registered class 1 food premises and class 2 food
premises that receive an annual food safety assessment in

accordance with the Food Act 1984/Number of registered class 1 50-100% 84.76% 76.63% 28.07%

food premises and class 2 food premises that require
an annual food safety assessment in accordance with the Food
Act 1984. Expected range: 50 — 100%

Cost of food safety service

Direct cost of the food safety service/Number of food premises $300- $690.59(1) $513.99 $510.35

registered or notified in accordance with the Food Act 1984. $1,200
Expected range: $300 - $1,200

Critical and major non-compliance notifications
Number of critical non-compliance notifications and major non-

compliance notifications about a food premises followed up / 60-100% 100.00% 40.00% 66.67%

Number of critical non-compliance notifications and major non-
compliance notifications about food premises.
Expected range: 60 — 100%

Variance comments:

1) This cost has increased due to higher number of statutory food samples required, complaint
samples conducted and an increase in training completed by the Environmental Health Officers.
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Waste Management Services
(Report adopted by Council June 2003)

Programs within this service:
o Kerbside collection service
e Landfills

Waste Collection

LGPRF Indicator Target 2022/23 2021/22  2020/21

Kerbside bin collection requests

Number of kerbside garbage and recycling bin collection

requests / Number of kerbside bin collection households x 10-300 115.82 118.16 112.19
1000.

Expected range: 10 to 300 requests

Kerbside collection bins missed

Number of kerbside garbage and recycling collection bins

missed / Number of scheduled kerbside garbage and 1-20 5.19(1) 3.99 5.78
recycling collection bin lifts x 10,000. Expected range: 1 — 20

bins

Cost of kerbside garbage bin collection service

Direct cost of the kerbside garbage bin collection $40-$150 $106 772 $93.39 $86.91

service/Number of kerbside garbage collection bins Expected
range: $40 - $150

Cost of kerbside recyclables bin collection service

Direct cost of the kerbside recyclables bin collection _ (3)
service/Number of kerbside recyclables collection bins $10 - $80 $88.77 $80.40 $78.51

Expected range: $10 - $80

Kerbside collection waste diverted from landfill

Weight of recyclables and green organics collected from

kerbside bins/Weight of garbage, recyclables and green 20-60% 29.28% 30.92% 29.51%
organics collected from kerbside bins. Expected range: 20 —

60%

Variance comments:

1) This figure includes numbers of missed bins and bins that were not put out for collection.

2) Due to many newly constructed dwellings, the number of properties requiring bin collection
services increased. The state levy went up which increased contractor collection costs.

3) This increase is due to an annual CPI increase under the contract, and an increase in the
number of newly constructed dwellings that require service.

Landfill
Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

Net cost per capita of waste deposited at Swan
Hill landfill sites

Net cost per capita of waste deposited at
Robinvale landfill sites (exc GST)

Net cost per capita to maintain rural landfill sites 1
(exc GST) $9.91 $29.69( $26.17  $19.36

$26.29 $41.21M  $39.63  $36.93

$64.36 $53.39  $49.73  $56.17

Variance comment:

11

Page: 215 |
243 ATT: 2.31



MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Community Amenity

1) Landfill costs have increased due to target rate not being adjusted since the contractor change in
November 2020 and adjustment of overall increase in costs. It is recommended that targets be
reviewed for 2023/24 to update in line with current contract arrangements.

Suggested Target Increases for 2023/24: Swan Hill Landfill $43.44, Robinvale $56.27 and Rural
Transfer Stations $31.29.

Community Amenity
(Report adopted by Council June 2004)

Programs within this service:
e Environmental Standards
e Street Beautification
e Public Lighting

Environmental Standards

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

Maintain potable water consumption below
2011/12 levels for parks and gardens annually 37,000kL  42,187kL(")  43,005kL  58,989kL
Source: 2012 - 2016 Sustainable Water Use Plan

Maintain current power usage in Council's 8

highest energy use b“&‘?lig‘v%z:ﬁs 107M  0.867M@  0.795M  0.759M
e Greenhouse gas kWh kWh kWh kWh
e .29T®)
emissions 1,262T 5.29 0T 812T
Total cost to Council for stationary energy of
Council owned infrastructure $674,950  $533,9304)  $471,917  $519,707

Including street lighting

Variance comments:

1) Parks and gardens are watered as required, with water consumption determined by conditions
across the year. Recommend change of target for 2023/24 due to it being exceeded for the last 3
years.

2) Energy use across Council’s eight highest energy use buildings has increased, largely driven by
the Swan Hill Leisure Centre. Council began paying the centre’s electricity and gas bills in
September 2022 and as a result, increased the kilowatts across the eight highest energy use
buildings.

3) Greenhouse gas emissions across the 8 highest energy use buildings remained low due to
Council’s involvement in the Victorian Energy Collaboration (VECQO); VECO is the largest ever
emission reduction project by local government in Australia and aims to reduce each councils’ bills
and greenhouse gas emissions by using renewable energy generated in Victoria. However, due to
the Swan Hill Leisure Centre’s use of natural gas, this figure did increase from 2021/22.

4) Energy consumption costs for stationary energy of Council owned infrastructure increased from

the previous year, once again owing largely to the operating costs attributable to the Swan Hill
Leisure Centre, particularly its gas use which cost Council $76,680.29.

12
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Street Beautification

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22  2020/21
The number of changeovers to water wise

medians and gardens developed throughout the 4 10 5 4
municipality

Number of community street tree theme 2 2 2 1

consultations Minimum of two annually

Cost to Council to maintain garden beds and

grass in public areas per hectare of grass $59,500 $55,165 $64,731  $65,900
maintained

Variance comment:

Public Lighting

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Net increase in number of streetlights to existing
network per year 3 18 14 1

New light and pole assembly

Cost to Council for public lighting per streetlight
Electricity costs are increasing and it is expected they will $100.00 $70.26 $77.31 $84.14

continue to increase over coming years

Variance comments:

13
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Recreation, Culture and Leisure Services
(Report adopted by Council June 2004)

Programs within this service:

o Art Gallery

e Community Centres and Swan Hill Town Hall PACC

e Performing Arts

e Pioneer Settlement

e Library

e Parks, Gardens, Recreation Reserves and Other Sporting Facilities
¢ Indoor Sports Facilities and Swimming Pools

Art Gallery

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23
Number of visitors to the Art Gallery per annum 11,000 7,926(")
Number of exhibitions 25 142

Number of events other than exhibitions
Concerts, conferences, functions etc.

Net cost to Council to operate the Gallery per
visitor

30 19

$26.14 $66.57C)

Variance comments:

2021/22
7,653
16

31

$45.63

2020/21
5,973
8

8

$11.76

1) The target not been met in visitor numbers can be attributed to the 2022 floods that severely

restricted travel throughout Northern Victoria and Southern New South Wales.

2) Delivery of 14 exhibitions is in line with the strategic direction of extending exhibition display times
while increasing the depth of visitor experience. This is also consistent with current trends in the
public gallery sector. The delivery of 25 exhibitions or more is unsustainable with current staffing

levels. Recommend reducing this target to 15 for 2023/24.

3) Major project expenditure for National Print and Drawing Awards (every two years) and Go North
Arts Festival (inaugural event) contributed to higher net cost of visitors, as these projects were
costed to the Art Gallery budget.
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Community Centres and Swan Hill Town Hall
PACC

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/21 2020/21

Number of times the community centre/facility is used
by the community each year:

e Manangatang 150 24 7 33
e Nyah 100 91 92 97
e Lake Boga 100 18 10 6
¢ Robinvale 180 3270 162 78
e Swan Hill Town Hall PACC 250 267@ 195 203
Number of people attending events, functions or
performances at the Swan Hill Town Hall PACC 18,000 21,1416 14,918 7,912
Net operating cost to Council per usage of the facility:
e Manangatang $250 $698 $1,938 $356
e Nyah $400 $309 $270 $291
e Lake Boga $250 $1,467 $1,926 $5,727
e Robinvale $600 $364 $414 $639
e Swan Hill Town Hall PACC $1,054  $2,406.114  $2,44555  $2,577.50
Net operating cost to Council per person using the
Swan Hill Town Hall PACC $14.65 $30.39) $42.44 $66.13

Actual net cost / Number of people attending

Variance comments:

1) The increase in usage of the Robinvale community centre/facility by the community is due to a
concerted effort to raise awareness of the venue and the Theatre now being in operation. Propose
increasing of Target to 250 for 2023/24.

2) The increase to the number of times the community centre/facility is used by the community is due
to the confidence of the community in the SHTHPACC due to the level of service being provided
greatly improving.

3) The increase to the number of people attending performances at SHTHPACC is due to better
quality of shows being presented, a higher level of service being provided and a greater level of
marketing to attract audiences.

4) The net operating cost to Council per usage of the facility is decreasing slowly, due to income from
higher ticket sales and an increase in bars sales due to the SHTHPACC now being permanently
licenced.

5) The net operating cost to Council per person using the SHTHPACC has decreased due to an
overall increase in audience attendance.

Performing Arts
Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

Number of people attending performing arts events

(1)
per annum 3,000 7,130 2,295 1,328

Net cost to Council to operate the performing arts
program per patron $61.95 $30.41  $84.89  $94.90

Final net cost for year / Number of attendees
Variance comment:

1) Ticket sales have greatly increased as audiences are returning to regularly attending shows post
Covid.
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Pioneer Settlement

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
la\l:rr]w:]tr)ner of visitors to the Pioneer Settlement per 80,000 72.6250) 80,579 61,917
Net cost to Council to operate the Pioneer $9.20 $10.15@ $5.95 $14.65

Settlement Museum per visitor

Variance comments:

1) The Murray River flooding and closure to the public impacted visitation in 2022 which resulted in
the cancellation of Heartbeat of the Murray screenings for 76 days and the Pyap cruises for 53
days. Extended closure for Heartbeat of the Murray was due to high water levels receding slowly
and the pressure on show equipment.

2) Increase on previous year was expected due to the prior Covid 19 impacts. Costs were down
during Covid as staff were stood down or redeployed. The cost increase above original target is a
result of the flood impacts and a combination of additional costs associated with the high-water
event and a decline in visitation/income.

Libraries

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Visits to service points

Includes Swan Hill and Mobile Library. Does not include 80,500 52,842(1) 37,142 28,580
Wakool Council library branches

Number of special events held in Library 15 96 52 17
LGPREF Indicator Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

Library collection usage
Number of library collection item loans / Number of library 1-10 0.92 0.97 0.89
collection items. Expected range: 1 to 10 items

Standard of library collection

Number of library collection items purchased in the last 5 _0no, 0 0 0
years / Number of library collection items. Expected range: 40 40-90% 37.07% 41.20%  43.45%

- 90%

Active library members

Number of active library members/Municipal population 10-40% 13.41% 13.35% 14.52%
Expected range: 10 — 40%

Cost of library service

Direct cost to Council of the library service per population $10-$90 $51.98 $50.14 $44.18
Expected range: $10 - $90

Variance comments:

1) Covid closures and restrictions impacted access to library service points in 2020/21 and
2021/22, therefore visits to service points were down. In 2022/23 there were no restrictions
to accessing library service points, enabling the community to use the library spaces with
no restrictions.

2) The Swan Hill and Robinvale libraries were able host several special events during each

school holiday as well as other events throughout 2022/23. Propose increasing target to 30
for 2023/24.
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Parks, Gardens, Recreation Reserves and Other Sporting Facilities

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Maintain grass height between 25 — 60 mm 100% 100% 100% 100%
Net operating cost per hectare:
e Parks and gardens $13,000 $13,415() $11923 $11,350
e Recreation reserves $12,500 $14,135()  $12.877 $12,000

Variance comments:

1) Operating costs for parks, gardens and recreation reserves have increased significantly post
Covid, particularly on freight, machinery, fertilisers, herbicides and contractors
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Indoor Sports Facilities and Swimming Pools
Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

Number of visitors/users of the indoor sports
facilities/swimming pools:

e Swan Hill Leisure Centre and Indoor Pool 80000 65,329 51035 40.679
e Swan Hill Indoor Sport and Recreation Centre  45'000 369812 9833 16.088
o Robinvale Leisure Centre and Pool 27:000 3}’907 33;,224 23:253

Number of visitors/users of outdoor swimming pools:

* Swan Hill Outdoor Pool 20,000 17,722 17,484 15004

* Nyah Pool 9,000 6,813 8119 5806
* Manangatang Pool 7000 3,047 2,527 2,911
Net cost to Council per visitor to operate indoor
facilities:
e Swan Hill Leisure Centre and Indoor Pool $6 $13.300)  $11.16 $13.28
e Swan Hill Indoor Sport and Recreation Centre $1 $4.264  $19.19 $13.60
¢ Robinvale Leisure Centre and Pool $10 $9.15 $13.54 $14.76

Net Operating expenditure / Number of visitors/users
Net cost to Council per visitor to operate outdoor

pools:
« Swan Hill Outdoor Pool $11  $13.740)  ¢3673  $20.60
e Nyah Pool $7 $14.710)  ¢7.04 $9.45
e Manangatang Pool $10  $20.30)  $27.13  $21.15
Net Operating expenditure / Number of visitors/users
LGPREF Indicator Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Health inspections of aquatic facilities
Number of authorised officer inspections of Council aquatic 1-4 0.60 1.0 0.40

facilities / Number of Council aquatic facilities.
Expected range: 1 — 4

Utilisation of aquatic facilities
Number of visits to aquatic facilities / Municipal population 1-10 6.17 5.58 3.43
Expected range: 1 to 10 visits

Cost of aquatic facilities
Direct cost less any income received of providing aquatic facilites ~ $0-$30 $12.39 $14.19 $18.56
per visit. Expected range: $0-$30

Variance comments:

1) Figures have improved on the previous year due to post Covid usage continuing to increase with
the new gym, which will assist with membership growth and an increased usage.

2) The large increase in visitor numbers can be associated with the increased number in junior and
senior basketball, the increased court bookings for training from all differing sports and in general
the boost after Covid.

3) Increased spend in the following categories, with up to $86,000 in buildings maintenance, capital
expense and unscheduled maintenance costs. Council took over the utilities for the Leisure
Centre which increased expenses.

4) Increased numbers through the door playing indoor sport caused the reduction in costs per visit
from the previous year. Actual expenditure slightly decreased also.

5) The reduction in cost from 2021/22 is from a saving of almost $110,000 in actual year to date
expenses with a reduction in contribution costs (due to paying the utilities of the facility) and a
reduction in maintenance.

6) The Nyah Pool had required maintenance completed, which increased expense costs.

7) The Manangatang Pools Cost to Council per visit reduced on the previous year due to the
increase in numbers and a reduction in maintenance costs.
18
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Organisational Support
(Report adopted by Council June 2004)

Programs within this service:
e Customer Service Revenue Control
¢ Robinvale Resource Centre
e Information Management
¢ Information Technology Services
e Finance Services
e Asset Management
e Human Resources
e Commercial Services and Risk Management
¢ Plant and Fleet Management

Customer Service Revenue Control and Robinvale Resource Centre

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Rate debtor collections as a percentage of Total 1

Rate Income 94% 89.5% " 92% 94%
Cost of providing Customer Service and Revenue

Control Services 120%  1.18%  1.12%  1.68%

Net Customer Services and Revenue Control Program Costs /

Total Council Operating Expenditure

Cost of providing customer services from the

Robinvale Resource Centre per head of population $63.50 $83.71@ $72.80 $66.47

Net Robinvale Resource Centre Program Costs / Population of
Robinvale and surrounding district

Variance comments:

1) Rates, Special Rates, Garbage and Fire Services Property Levy Debtors have increased by
approximately 2.5% when compared to 2021/22 collections. This is due primarily to debt collection
practices having been stayed for the last three financial years (2020/21, 2021/22 & 2022/23). The
industry standard across the state is generally between 95-96%. However, this did drop during the
Covid period. It is expected that collection of rates will take a minimum two years to return to near
these levels.

2) This increase included a significant period of leave for the Senior Officer at Robinvale and use of
casuals and staff on higher duties. The budget also included State Government Robinvale project
costs.

Information Management

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

Service meets agreed timeframes for incoming
correspondence registration:

e 3.40pm Monday Yes Yes Yes Yes
e 2.20pm Tuesday — Friday Yes Yes Yes Yes
Cost of service as a percentage of total operating
expenses (excluding major projects). <0.81% 0.54% 0.49% 0.52%
Information Management Program / Total Operating ’ ’ ’ ’

Expenditure

Variance comments:
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Quality/Cost Standard Target
Authority System available 98%
Network Services available 98%
Internet Services available 98%
Cost of providing IT services as a percentage of
total operating expenses <3.0%
IT program (bottom line 3345) / Total operating expenditure
Cost of IT services per connected user
IT program (bottom line 3345) / Number of personal devices $3,870
supported
Variance comments:
Finance Services
Quality/Cost Standard Target
Meet all statutory reporting obligations:
e Annual Report Yes
e Business Plan and Annual Budget Yes
e Victoria Grants and Commission Return Yes
e Local Government Sector Borrowings Surveys N/A
e Taxation (PAYG, GST and FBT) Yes

Cost of providing financial services as a percentage of

Total Council Operating Expenses

2.10%

Finance Program Costs (Bottom Line P3340) / Total Operating

Expenditure (excluding depreciation)

Variance comments:
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2022/23 2021/22
99% 98%

98% 98%
99% 98%

2.50% 2.54%

$3,820  $3,821

2022/23 2021/22

Yes Yes
Yes Yes
Yes Yes
N/A N/A
Yes Yes

1.89% 1.89%

2020/21
98%
98%
98%

2.62%

$3,715

2020/21

Yes
Yes
Yes
N/A
Yes

1.81%
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Asset Management

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

National Asset Management Framework scorecard
that allocates a score depending on the policies and
processes in place:

e Strategic Planning 85 75 75 71
e Annual Budget 100 94 94 94
e Annual Report 95 95 95 95
e Asset Management Policy 90 90 90 90
e Asset Management Strategy 100 100 100 50
e Asset Management Plans 75 64 57 60
e Governance and Management 60 71 61 57
e Levels of Service 60 69 69 50
e Data and Systems 80 72 72 69
e  Skills and Processes 65 58 58 48
e Evaluation 60 50 50 33

Cost index: Full Cost of provision of the service /

Total replacement value of assets managed. 0.90 0.59 0.67 0.82

Total Operating Expenditure (Budget) / Total replacement cost
all assets (Annual Report)

Variance comments:

Human Resources

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21

Number of staff issues referred to Fair
Work Australia

Number of organisational training hours
provided per EFT

Cost of providing Human Resource
Services as a per cent of total operating 1.30% 1.34% 1.29% 1.30%
expenses

Nil 1 Nil 5

7 hours 17.8 21.7 259

Variance comment:
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Commercial Services and Risk Management

Quality/Cost Standard

All tendering and acquisitions undertaken by
Procurement and Property is done in accordance
with adopted Council policy.

Cost of providing Procurement and Property as a

percentage of Total Council Operating Expenses.

Total cost of Program (less Insurance Premiums) / Total
operating cost of Council

Risk Management (insurance)— WorkCover
(EFT to premiums)

Risk Management (insurance)— Property
(Value of property v Premium)

Risk Management (insurance)— Registered
Motor Vehicles

Unit cost

Variance Comment:

Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Organisational Support

Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Yes No™ Yes Yes
<1.2% 0.61% 0.58% 0.58%
$2,300 $2,059 $1,642 $1,407
$0.0020  $0.0020  $0.0020  $0.0019
$425 $5552) $555 $617

1) During 2022/23 Council entered into one contract valued at $200,000 or more for services without
undertaking a competitive process. The contract was with the incumbent contractor for the
Management and Operation of Leisure and Aquatic Services to ensure the continuity of the supply
of services while Council undertook a procurement process for the new contract.

2) Council’'s motor insurance premium is set by Council’s insurer to reflect Council’s specific

requirements and circumstances.

Plant and Fleet Management

Quality/Cost Standard

Percentage of occasions actual service times on
all major plant and vehicle items meet
manufacturers set standard time

Average cost of scheduled services for
passenger and light commercial vehicles

Total service costs (excluding oils and parts) divided by total
number of services as recorded in Fleet Management
Services

Average cost of scheduled services for major
plant items

Total service costs (excluding oils and parts) divided by total
number of services as recorded in Fleet Management
Services

Variance Comment:

Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
90% 90% 88% 89%
$124 $130 $139 $148
$218 $253 $295 $289

1) With inflation at 7% and a worldwide shortage of parts, it is recommended that the target be

reviewed for 2023/24.
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Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Governance and Leadership

Governance and Leadership
(Report adopted by Council May 2005)

Programs within this service:
e Elected Members
e Community Development
e Corporate Governance
e Media and Events

Elected Members

Quality/Cost Standard

Community satisfaction with Council’s
advocacy role per annual Local Government
Survey

Community satisfaction with Council’s
community consultation and engagement per
annual Local Government Survey

Community satisfactions with decisions made in
the interest of the community per annual Local
Government Survey

Community satisfaction rating for overall
performance generally of Council as per Local
Government Community Satisfaction Survey

Variance comment:

Community Development

Target

54

54

55

Quality/Cost Standard Target

Government and other funding attracted

during the year to supplement community ~ $800,000

and Council activities
Number of actions implemented out of

community plans 30

At least one action per plan
Net program cost as a percentage of
operating budget

Net program cost: Total operating expenditure less <1%

revenue / Rates determination statement net
operating result

Variance comment:

$2,091,000

50

45

50

2022/23

25M

<1%

2022/23

48

45

53

2021/22

28

0.62%

2021/22 2020/22

56

2020/21

$1,450,000 $7,730,000

25

0.92%

1) The reason for the reduction in the actions implemented was due to finalisation of the Vibrant
Villages suite of works and prior financial obligations associated with this set of projects.
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Service Performance Report 2022/23 — Governance and Leadership

Corporate Governance

LGPREF Indicator Target 2022/23  2021/22 2020/21

Council decisions made at Council Meetings

closed to the Public

Number of Council resolutions made at an ordinary or

special meeting of Council, consisting only of 2090 o o o
Councillors, closed to the public / Number of Council U 228 S A
resolutions made at an ordinary or special meeting of

Council, consisting only of Councillors

Expected range: 0 — 30%

Satisfaction with community consultation and

engagement

Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how Council 40-70% 50% 48% 51%
has performed on community consultation and engagement

Expected range: 40 — 70%

Councillor attendance at Council Meetings

Sum of number of Councillors who attended each

ordinary and special council meeting / (Number of ® ® ® ®
ordinary and special council meetings) x (Number of 80-100% 89.52% 90.00% 94.44%
Councillors elected at last Council general election.

Expected range: 80 — 100%

Cost of Governance $30K

Direct cost of Governance service / Number of Councillors =

elected at last Council general election. $80K $53’993 $52’315 $43’1 17
Expected range: $30,000 - $80,000

Satisfaction with Council decisions

Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with the Q o G G
performance of Council in making decisions in the 40-70% 45% 45% 48%
interest of the community Expected range: 40 — 70%

Variance comments:

Media and Events

Quality/Cost Standard Target 2022/23 2021/22 2020/21
Number of media releases distributed annually 130 117 107 158
Number of social media post annually 1,700 1,833 1,445 1,470

Production and distribution of Council’s Community
Newsletter 2 15@) 12 5

Twice per year

Cost of providing media and events unit services <0.6% 0.53% 0.53% 0.27%
As a percentage of total Council operating expenses 070 ’ ° ’ ° ’ °

Variance comments:

1) The increase in the number of social media posts can be attributed to 2022 flood event. Council
partnered with the Incident Control Team to conduct a community awareness campaign that
included situation updates, road closures, community meetings, newsletter distribution and other
relevant information distribution via social media. In addition, the high river event impact
secondary services, including Pioneer Settlement with additional social media posts required for
Pyap River Cruise closures and Laser Light Show cancellations. This financial year, also saw the
addition of a new social media page for Robinvale Community Arts Centre. These results include
all social media posts for Councils Primary social media pages, and an additional seven
secondary department sites.

2) Council are now producing a monthly newsletter, recommend to increase this target to 12 for
2023/24.

24

Page: 228 |
243 ATT: 2.31



Q_\-m_-.- HILL MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

3 Officer Report for Noting

4 Decisions Which Need Action / Ratification

4.1 Sign and Seal

Directorate: Chief Executive Officer
File Number: S16-05-01
Purpose: For Noting

Declarations of Interest:

Council Officers affirm that no general or material conflicts need to be declared in
relation to the matter of this report.

Summary

The following documents and agreements have been signed and sealed by the
Councillors and the Chief Executive Officer on the respective dates. Those actions
require the ratification of the Council.

Discussion

During any month Council is required to sign and seal a range of documents arising
from decisions made on a previous occasion(s). Examples include sale of land,
entering into funding arrangements for Council programs etc.

As the decision to enter into these agreements has already been made, these
documents are signed and sealed when received, with Council ratifying the signing

and sealing at the next Council meeting.

The following documents were signed and sealed since the last Council meeting:

No. Document Type Document Description Date
signed/
sealed

1149 | Butterworth Street Between Swan Hill Rural City 19/9/2023

drainage and road Council and Whitfield Excavations
upgrade works Pty Ltd

Note: A Section 173 Agreement is a typically a contract between the Council and a landowner that
places use or development restrictions on the land.

They are intended to ensure compliance with conditions contained in permits granted by the Council
and are often used in subdivision matters. These agreements refer to Section 173 of the Planning and
Environment Act 1987.
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Consultation

Council authorise the signing and sealing of the above documents.
Recommendation/s

That Council notes the actions of signing and sealing the documents under
delegation as scheduled.

CM 2023/68 Motion
MOVED Cr Jeffery

That Council notes the actions of signing and sealing the documents under
delegation as scheduled.

SECONDED Cr McKay

The Motion was put and CARRIED 7 /0

F_ Page: 230 | 243



Q_\-m_-.- HILL MINUTES - Scheduled Council Meeting - 17 October 2023

iy oy e

4.2 Councillor Assemblies - Record of Attendance and Agenda

Items
Directorate: Chief Executive Officer
File Number: S15-05-06
Purpose: For Noting

Declarations of Interest:

Council Officers affirm that no general or material conflicts need to be declared in
relation to the matter of this report.

Summary

The following report provides attendance details of Councillor Assemblies on a
monthly basis.

Discussion

Whilst Minutes have not been recorded, Agenda items and those in attendance are
reported and presented to Council.

An assembly of Councillors is defined as a meeting that is planned or scheduled at
which at least half of the Council and one Officer are in attendance, and where the
matters being considered that are intended or likely to be the subject of a Council
decision.

No formal decisions can be made at an assembly but rather direction can be given
that is likely to lead to a formal decision of Council.

Details of the most recent assemblies of Council are attached.

Council Plan Strategy Addressed

4. Leadership - We will ensure accountable leadership, advocacy and transparent
decision making.

4.1 Excellent management and administration

4.1.1 Well managed resources for a sustainable future

4.1.2 Provide robust governance and effective leadership

4.1.3 Sound, sustainable:

* Financial management « Excellence in service delivery * Strategic planning

Current Strategic documents
No strategic documents applicable.

Key Legislation
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There is no key legislation applicable

Attachments: 1. COUNCILLOR ASSEMBLIES ATTENDANCE AND AGENDA
October (1) [4.2.1 - 3 pages]

Options
Council Assemblies are reported to ensure good governance and transparency.

Recommendation
That Council note the contents of the report.
CM 2023/69 Motion

MOVED Cr Jeffery

That Council note the contents of the report.

SECONDED Cr King

The Motion was put and CARRIED 7/ 0
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COUNCILLOR ASSEMBLIES ATTENDANCE AND AGENDA
26 September 2023 at 1.00pm, Swan Hill Town Hall — Council Chambers

AGENDA ITEMS

Drag Strip

Activating 42 Monash Drive (GrainCorp)
2023/24 Grants Commission Allocation
Potential Planning Applications

Andrew George re Australian Energy Markets
Annual Report

Councillor/Directors question time

ADDITIONAL ITEMS DISCUSSED

o Nil
ATTENDANCE
Councillors
o Cr Bill Moar
e Cr Jacquie Kelly
e Cr Ann Young
¢ Cr Nicole McKay (attended via zoom)
o Cr Stuart King
e Cr Chris Jeffery
e CrLes McPhee
Apologies
o Nil
Leave of Absence
o Nil
OFFICERS
e Scott Barber, Chief Executive Officer
e Camille Cullinan, Acting Director Community and Cultural Services
e Leah Johnston, Director Infrastructure
e Heather Green, Director Development and Planning
e Bhan Pratap, Director Corporate Services
¢ Nathan Keighran, Economic Development Coordinator
o Kate Jewell, Development Manager
e Warrick Fisher, Planning Consultant
e Lina Cornish, Governance Officer
e Grant Jones, Development Officer Facilities
e Peter Ross, Engineering and Strategic Projects Manager
e Dione Heppell, Liveability and Project Development Coordinator
e Ash Free, Finance Manager
e Brooke O’Connor, Community Engagement & Communications Coordinator

Other
e Andrew George

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
e Nil
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COUNCILLOR ASSEMBLIES ATTENDANCE AND AGENDA
3 October 2023 at 1.00pm, Swan Hill Town Hall — Council Chambers

AGENDA ITEMS

Drainage Reserve Funding

Ronald Street Variation

Aged Care Transition

Cool It

New planning council report template
Landscape Design — Art Gallery (Update)
Revenue and Rating Plan
Councillor/Directors question time

ADDITIONAL ITEMS DISCUSSED

Nil

ATTENDANCE
Councillors
e Cr Bill Moar
e Cr Jacquie Kelly
¢ Cr Nicole McKay
o Cr Stuart King
e CrLes McPhee

Apologies
o Cr Ann Young
o Cr Chris Jeffery

Leave of Absence
o Nil

OFFICERS

Bruce Myers, Director Community and Cultural Services
Heather Green, Acting Chief Executive Officer

Kate Jewell, Acting Director Development and Planning
Bhan Pratap, Director Corporate Services

Helen Morris, Organisational Development Manager
Jess Chislett Procurement and Properties Coordinator

Peter Ross, Acting Director Infrastructure / Engineering and Strategic Projects

Manager

Nick Mudge, Environment and Sustainability Officer
Warrick Fisher, Acting Planning Coordinator

lan Tully, Art Gallery Manager

Ash Free, Finance Manger

Brian White, Project Manager

Other

Nil

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Nil
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COUNCILLOR ASSEMBLIES ATTENDANCE AND AGENDA
10 October 2023 at 1.00pm, Swan Hill Town Hall — Council Chambers

AGENDA ITEMS

Dr Anne Webster

Murray Darling Association

Service Performance Reporting

Planning Application

Drag Strip

Housing Summit Update

Regional precincts and partnerships funding program - Federal
Councillor/Director question time

ADDITIONAL ITEMS DISCUSSED
e Nil

ATTENDANCE
Councillors

e Cr Jacquie Kelly
Cr Nicole McKay
Cr Stuart King
Cr Les McPhee
Cr Bill Moar
Cr Chris Jeffery
Cr Ann Young

Apologies

o Nil

Leave of Absence
e Nil

OFFICERS

Scott Barber, Chief Executive Officer

Bruce Myers, Director Community and Cultural Services
Leah Johnston, Director Infrastructure

Heather Green, Director Development and Planning
Bhan Pratap, Director Corporate Services

Helen Morris, Organisational Development Manager
Jess Chislett Procurement and Properties Coordinator
Grant Jones, Development Officer Facilities

Other

e Dr Anne Webster, Federal Member for Mallee

e Mark Lamb and Tim Phillips, Murray Darling Association
¢ Roy Costa and Phillip Englefield

CONFLICT OF INTEREST
e Nil
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5 Notices of Motion

5.1 Community and Regional Benefit Sharing
Having given due notice, Councillor Jacquie Kelly MOVED

That Council develops a position and policy on Community and Regional
Benefit Sharing.

Preamble

On 22 September 2023 Cr Kelly and two Council officers attended a CVGA workshop
'Local Government Guiding Better Practice Renewable Energy Development’. This is
a report on that workshop and the motion comes from that.

The full day workshop was well attended by regional Councils and increased
participants understanding of Benefit Sharing. Sharing the rewards of energy projects
and recognising the shared value of sunshine and wind. Integrating developments into
the vitality and prosperity of the region. There is a move towards more socially just
energy generation outcomes.

As part of the Murray Regional Energy Zone (REZ) Swan Hill Rural City Council can
expect more energy projects coming to the region, eg. wind and solar.

The preparation of a policy can deal with opportunities, benefits and equity. Council
has a role with advocacy and negotiation with large scale developers and can
influence policy and advocate for better practice.

Benefit sharing can bring great benefits to communities, particularly if they are co-
designed, co-governed and coupled with strong engagement. Work on community
shared benefits should start prior to construction.

Projects can deliver better local benefits when Council has a role. A policy will assist
how we go about this. For example some Councils have developed strategic plans
and/or set up a Community Benefit Sharing Working Group. There are "Victorian Best
Practice Guidlelines” that would guide our policy.

Attachments: Nil
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The Mayor Cr Les McPhee did not accept the Notice of Motion under section 10.2 of
the Governance rules stating that the motion was vague and unclear.
Having given due notice, Councillor Jacquie Kelly MOVED

That Council develops a position and policy on Community and Regional
Benefit Sharing.
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6 Foreshadowed Items

Nil.

7 Urgent Iltems Not Included In Agenda
Nil.

8 To Consider and Order on Councillor Reports

8.1 Cr Stuart King

List events / meetings attended

[16/10/2023|Woorinen District Primary School |[Local Gov't presentation |
107/10/2023||SH A&P Society ISwan Hill Show |
105/10/2023|[MDBA Dinner with MDBA representatives |

8.2 Cr Jacquie Kelly
List events / meetings attended

workshop in Bendigo- 'Local Government
Guiding Better Practice Renewable
Energy Development’

Central Victorian

2219123 |5 reenhouse Alliance

Central Murray Football
2319123 Netball finals day

26/9/23 |[Council Assembly 1pm |
126/9/23 |[Ultima Progress Association |6.30pm |
[1/10/23 |Walking Together concert  |Riverside Park |

|

watched the netball finals

13/10/23 ||Council Assembly 1pm
3/10/23 Re3|d<_ant_s and Ratepayers 7pm
Association
4/10/23 |[Fairfax youth festival |l6pm Raise your Voice Choir |
Murray Darling Basin meet Sir Angus Houston and Andrew
5/10/23 : .
Authority McConville
6/10/23 |1t Gallery "Inflated 7pm
exhibition opening
Reconciliation Victoria Voice
7/10/23 |[Community information 10am , Senator Jana Stewart Guest
event speaker
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Fairfax youth Festival
Square Peg concert

Swan Hill Genealogical
8/10/23 ||Society- Swan Hill Cemetery ||1.30pm
Tour

110/10/23|Councillor Assembly 1pm

7/10/23 7pm Swan Hill Town Hall

8.3 Cr Nicole McKay
List events / meetings attended

112/10/23 IMAV State Conference ]
103/10/23 |Boundary Bend Progress Association ]
l05/10/23 IMDBA Dinner ]
07/10/23 |Fairfax Youth Festival ]
[13/10/23 |Rural Councils of Victoria AGM ]

8.4 Cr Bill Moar
List events / meetings attended

103/10/23 |Pental Island Levee Group

8.5 Cr Chris Jeffery

List events / meetings attended

102/10/2023 ||Swan Hill Lawn Tennis & Croquet Club Committee Meeting |

8.6 Cr Ann Young
List events / meetings attended

||02/10/23 Nyah District Action Group [
|04/10/23 |[Swan Hill Summer Fruits AGM [
06/10/23  [[Swan Hill Art Gallery — Exhibition Opening [
[16/10/23  [Swan Hill Art Gallery — Meeting [
07/10/23  |[Fairfax Youth Festival [

8.7 Cr Les McPhee
List events / meetings attended

21/09/23|Our Swan Hill interview | |

22/09/23|Swan Build House
Opening

[25/09/23[0Our Swan Hill interview | |
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[26/09/23|/ABC Radio interview I
27/09/23|[3SH radio interview I
27/09/23||SBS News interview I
2/10/23 |[Fairfax interview I
2/10/23 |[Mayor/CEO meeting I
13/10/23 |[Cross Border Commissioner meeting I
4/10/23 |[Faifax Choir I
15/10/23 |MRGC Mayors meeting I
15/10/23 |[MDBA Dinner I
16/10/23 |Dr Ann Webster meeting at Art Gallery I
6/10/23 ||Little Athletes Season Launch I
[7/10/23 |[Fairfax Show I
[10/10/23|[Citizenship Ceremony Robinvale I
110/10/23|[Citizenship Ceremony Swan Hill I
[10/10/23||Lunch with Dr Ann Webster I

11/10/23 M(_aeting with Commander of Australian Army's Fourth
Brigade

[12/10/23|MAV Conference and Dinner | |
[13/10/23|MAV State Council meeting | |
[14/10/23|Son Centre School's 30th Year celebration | |
|
|

115/10/23|[3SH Radio interview |
115/10/23|Mayor/CEO meeting |

9 In-Camera ltems

RECOMMENDATION

That, in accordance with sections 66(1) and 66(2)(a) of the Local Government Act
2020, the meeting be closed to members of the public for the consideration of the
following confidential items:

9.1 Ronald St Housing Project - Exception/Variation Report

CONFIDENTIAL ITEM This item is to be considered at an In Camera meeting in
accordance with Section 3(1) (a) of the Local Government Act 2020, this item is to
be considered in an incamera meeting on the grounds that the item concerns
Council business information, being information that would prejudice the Council's
position in commercial negotiations if prematurely released.

CM 2023/71 Motion

MOVED Cr McKay
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That Council:
1. Approve additional project budget as presented in option 3 from unspent
funds.

2. Approve the contract variation as presented in option 3.

SECONDED Cr Jeffery

The Motion was put and CARRIED 5/ 2
9.2 Future of the Swan Hill Drag Strip

CONFIDENTIAL ITEM This item is to be considered at an In Camera meeting in
accordance with Section 3(1) (a) of the Local Government Act 2020, this item is to
be considered in an incamera meeting on the grounds that the item concerns
Council business information, being information that would prejudice the Council's
position in commercial negotiations if prematurely released.

CONFIDENTIAL ITEM This item is to be considered at an In Camera meeting in
accordance with Section 3(1) (e) of the Local Government Act 2020, on the grounds
that the item concerns legal privileged information, being information to which legal
professional privilege or client legal privilege applies.

CONFIDENTIAL ITEM This item is to be considered at an In Camera meeting in
accordance with Section 3(1) (f) of the Local Government Act 2020, on the grounds
that the item concerns personal information, being information which if released
would result in the unreasonable disclosure of information about any person or their
personal affairs.

CM 2023/72 MOTION

MOVED Cr Moar
That standing orders be suspended at 3:19 pm.
SECONDED Cr King
The Motion was put and CARRIED 7/ 0
CM 2023/73 MOTION
MOVED Cr Moar
That standing orders be resumed at 4:56 pm.

SECONDED Cr Jeffery

The Motion was put and CARRIED 7 /0

CM 2023/74 Motion
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MOVED Cr Moar

That Council

1. Having considered all the available information relating to the Swan Hill
Drag Strip resolve to immediately enforce the closure of the Swan Hill Drag
Strip.

2. Delegate the Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer meet with the Swan Hill

Drag Club Executive to inform them of this decision and discuss the future
of the drag strip site.

3. Request the Chief Executive Officer provide a future Council report
following the meeting with the Swan Hill Drag Club executive on the
outcomes of the discussions for further consideration by Council.

SECONDED Cr King
The Motion was put and CARRIED 5/ 2

The Mayor Cr Les McPhee asked for leave of the Chair to debate the Motion at
5.04pm, the Deputy Mayor Cr Stuart King assumed the Chair.

The Mayor Cr Les McPhee reassumed the Chair at 5.07pm.

Cr McPhee called for a division

For: Cr King, Cr McKay, Cr Young, Cr Jeffery and Cr Moar
Against: Cr Kelly and Cr McPhee

CM 2023/75 MOTION

MOVED Cr Moar

That the meeting move out of closed session at 5:09 pm.
SECONDED Cr King

The Motion was put and CARRIED 7/ 0

10 Close of Meeting

There been no further business the Mayor, Councillor Les McPhee closed the
meeting at 5:09 pm
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